» o

Ve

| 8
N CITY OE

YORK

COUNCIL

Notice of a public meeting of

To:

Planning Committee

Councillors Cullwick (Chair), Pavlovic (Vice-Chair), Ayre,
Barker, D'Agorne, Daubeney, Doughty, Douglas, Fenton,
Fitzpatrick, Hollyer, Kilbane, Warters, Lomas and Fisher

Date: Thursday, 12 November 2020

Time: 4.30 pm

Venue: Remote Meeting

AGENDA

Declarations of Interest

At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare:
e any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests
e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests

which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 10)

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Planning
Committee held on 13 August 2020.

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may
speak on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the
committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to 2
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the

www.york.gov.uk



management of public participation at remote meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is at 5.00pm on Tuesday
10 November 2020.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill out an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the
registration form or the meeting please contact the Democracy
Officer for the meeting whose details can be found at the foot of
the agenda.

Webcasting of Remote Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this remote public
meeting will be webcast including any registered public speakers who
have given their permission. The remote public meeting can be viewed live
and on demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

During coronavirus, we've made some changes to how we're running
council meetings. See our coronavirus updates
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for more information on meetings
and decisions.

Plans List
This item invites Members to determine the following planning application:

York Central, Leeman Road, York [20/00710/REMM] (Pages 11 - 132)

Reserved matters application for layout, scale, appearance, landscaping
and access for the construction of the primary vehicle route and
associated roads, infrastructure, landscaping and alterations to the
existing road network pursuant to outline planning permission
18/01884/OUTM [Holgate Ward]

Urgent Business

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the Local
Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer

Ang

ela Bielby

Contact details:

Telephone: 01904 552599
Email: a.bieloy@york.gov.uk


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy

For more information about any of the following please
contact the Democratic Services Officer responsible for
servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EMEAEMNESRHEEREIESS (cantonese)
I3 BT AN NS SIET (7T (TCS A | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Palh)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
«J‘JC L () G T (Urdu)
T (01904) 551550




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee

Date 13 August 2020

Present Councillors Cullwick (Chair), Pavlovic (Vice-

Chair), Ayre, Barker, D'Agorne, Daubeney,
Fenton, Fitzpatrick, Hollyer, Kilbane, Lomas,
Fisher and Rowley

Apologies Councillors Douglas and Warters

61.

62.

63.

Declarations of Interest

Members were asked to declare, at this point in the meeting,
any personal interests, not included on the Register of Interests,
or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they may
have in respect of business on the agenda.

Cllr Rowley declared a personal non prejudicial interest in
Agenda Item 3b (York City Football Club 19/00246/FULM) as
the firm he owned was a sponsor of the club. The Chair, Clir
Cullwick also declared a personal non prejudicial interest on the
same item as the former Chaplain to the club. Noting the link
between the arrangements between the sale of the land and the
Community Stadium, ClIr Ayre in his capacity as Executive
Member for Finance and Performance declared an interest as
did Clir D’Agorne, as Executive Member for Transport declared
an interest and both undertook to not take part in debate on the
application. Concerning Agenda Item 3c (23 Piccadilly
9/02563/FULM) ClIr Fitzpatrick declared a non prejudicial
interest as Ward Councillor and resident of Walmgate.

Public Participation
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at

the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on
general matters within the remit of the Planning Committee.

Plans List



64.

65.

Page 2

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Assistant
Director, Planning and Public Protection, relating to the following
planning applications, outlining the proposals and relevant
policy considerations and setting out the views of consultees
and officers.

Land South of The Residence, Bishopthorpe Road, York
[18/02582/FULM]

Members considered a major full application from Mr D
Coppack for the erection of 85 apartments in two blocks with
seven town houses with associated parking, cycle storage and
landscaping (revised scheme) at Land South Of The Residence
Bishopthorpe Road York.

An officer update was given and Members were informed that
due to the need for the applicant to undertake a bat survey, it
was recommended that the application be deferred.

ClIr Hollyer moved, and Clir Pavlovic seconded, that the
application be deferred. In accordance with the revised Standing
Orders, a named vote was taken. Clirs Ayre, Barker, D’Agorne,
Daubeney, Fenton, Fisher, Fitzpatrick, Hollyer, Kiloane, Lomas,
Rowley, Pavlovic and Cullwick (Chair) all voted in favour of this
proposal, and it was:

Resolved: That the application be deferred.

Reason: In order to allow the applicant is to undertake a
further bat survey in early September. It would not
be appropriate to determine the application until the
survey has been carried out and the results collated
and submitted to the LPA for the consideration of the
Ecologist.

The meeting adjourned at 16:50 and resumed at 17:05.
York City Football Club, Bootham Crescent, York
[19/00246/FULM]

Clir Ayre and ClIr D’Agorne withdrew from the meeting for the
consideration of this application.



Page 3

Members considered a major full application from Persimmon
Homes Limited And York City Football Club for the Erection of

93 dwellings with associated access, infrastructure,
landscaping, public open space and parking at York City
Football Club, Bootham Crescent, York YO30 7AQ.

The Development Manager gave a presentation on the
application detailing the site layout, street scene and house
types. In response to questions from the Committee, Officers
clarified that:

The condition regarding materials was a standard and the
houses on the site would be red brick in keeping with the
area.

There were some records of where ashes were interred and
there would be an archaeological scheme of investigation.
There would be a degree of service charges for the
affordable housing and in order to help minimise this the
affordable housing had been located in one block.

The location of the affordable houses, social rent houses and
houses for sale had not yet been identified.

The strategic housing assessment identified that most
housing in need was for one and two bedroom properties.
Concerning affordable housing, there were four one-bedroom
properties, eight two-bedroomed, and six three-bedroomed.
There was no extra strain on drainage on the site.

Public speakers

The following spoke in support:

Applicant

York City FC's Stadium Development Director Steven Taylor
addressed the Committee, and responded to Members’
questions as follows:

Persimmon Homes Limited was working with York City
Football Club and Historic England to agree protocols on the
on instructions for ashes.

The geophysical survey undertaken by Bradford University
found no evidence of metal caskets and it was noted that
there may be leather caskets. Fans had been consulted and
it was not believed that there were any ashes remaining on
site. It was believed that away from the pitch, ashes may
have been interred in Shipton Street in from of the Longhurst
stand.



Page 4

e The club was aware that it would need to seek permission
from the Ministry of Justice for the removal of ashes.

Paul Butler, Agent for the Applicants, then addressed the
Committee, and in answer Members’ confirmed that the service
charges would need to be discussed with the Applicants.

Members then debated the proposals, after which Clir Pavlovic
Taylor moved, and ClIr Hollyer seconded, that delegated
authority be given to the Assistant Director of Planning and
Public Protection to APPROVE the application, subject to the
conditions listed in the report. During debate Officers clarified
the NPPF condition and S106 contribution. In accordance with
the revised Standing Orders, a hamed vote was taken. Clirs
Daubeney, Fenton, Fisher, Fitzpatrick, Hollyer, Kiloane, Lomas,
Rowley, Pavlovic and Cullwick (Chair) all voted in favour of this
proposal, and Clir Barker voted against the proposal. Therefore
it was:

Resolved: That delegated authority be given to the Assistant
Director of Planning and Public Protection to
APPROVE the application subject to conditions and
completion of a s106 agreement to secure following
obligations as set out in the report.

Reasons:

I. A presumption in favour of development applies at
this site. The policy for decision making in the NPPF
applies which states permission should be granted
unless any adverse impacts of doing so would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the
Framework taken as a whole.

ii.  The amount and type of development proposed for
the site is acceptable and broadly compliant with the
2018 DLP allocation. Planning conditions and a
s106 agreement can be used to secure reasonable
compliance with national and local policies with
regard to housing need, promoting sustainable
transport, design and the impact on the
environment.

The meeting adjourned at 18:10 and reconvened at 18:25



66.

Page 5

23 Piccadilly, York [19/02563/FULM]

Cllr Ayre and ClIr D’Agorne returned to the meeting for the
consideration of this application.

Members considered a major full application from Mr Gareth
Jackson for the Erection of no.132 bed hotel with bar/
restaurant, after demolition of existing office building at 23
Piccadilly York YO1 9PG.

The Development Manager gave a presentation on the

application outlining the street scene, floor plan, and Piccadilly

and St Denys Road elevations. Members raised a number of

guestions to which officers confirmed:

e The view of Historic England

e The view from Walmgate Bar

e Possible structural harm to the Grade 1 listed St Denys
church was a matter between the developer and the Church.

e The visibility of the proposed building from different
viewpoints

e That when looking at the Conservation Area in Picciafilly, the
existing building (propsed for demolishon) was not deemed
of merit.

An officer update was then given which outlined the
Consultation responses from the Conservation Area Advisory
Panel and Environment Agency. Further information from
applicants on the Sustainable Design and Construction, local
workforce / skills. Members were also provided with
amendments concerning conditions 5 and 22.

In response to questions from Members, Officers confirmed

that:

e The poplar tree was not within the site

e The quality of the existing building, which had not been
identified as a building of merit in the conservation area
appraisal.

e The views of the site (using google earth).

e The government had brought in permitted development rights
to turn offices into housing stock.

e The loss of an existing building was a consideration in a
conservation area and it's importance wuld be set against the
importance of what was being put in it’s place.



Page 6

e The facade of the Banana Warehouse in Piccadilly was a
building of merit.

e Permits would be needed to demolish the existing building as
it was in a conservation area

[ClIr Pavlovic left the meeting at 19:35]

During questions a number of Members suggested that it would
be useful to resume site visits to application sites.

Public speakers

The following spoke in objection to the application, raising
Issues in relation to the impact on amenity, structure of the
church, access to the church hall and access to the visual
setting of the church and viability of the existing building.

e Jerry Scott, a local resident
e Dr Charles Kightly, Churchwarden and Chair of the PCC, St
Denys Walmgate. In answer to questions raised by Members
he explained that:
o Access to the church hall could not be maintained
o There had been a meeting with the application and his
objections stood
o The developers said that the existing building could not
be reused
o He did not object to the existing building being used as
a hotel

Applicant

Tim Ross (Agent for the Applicant) and Jay Ahluwalia (Dominvs
Group) addressed the Committee, detailing the positive impact
on local employment, the sustainable design of the building and
the reasons why the existing building was not feasible. Along
with a number of colleagues available to answer questions, in
response to Member questions they explained that:

e The contractor would be using a piling technique using the
lowest piling method

Why the existing building could not be repurposed

They were committed to ongoing liaison with the church
95% of the archaeology would be protected

The existing basement would be reused

Access to the church hall and toilets would not be prohibited



Page 7

e The contractors would be using an office on the opposite side
of the rad as their temporary site office

Members then debated the proposals, after which Clir Kilbane
moved, and ClIr D’Agorne seconded, that the application be
refused on the grounds of the scheme having less than
substantial harm on the setting of St Denys Church, the impact
of key views and the wider context of the church, the 6th floor
block on the front section of the proposed building competing
with the height of the tower of St Denys’ Church when viewed
from Clifford’s Tower and the view of the church would still be
partly obscured and the loss of the building in the conservation
area. In accordance with the revised Standing Orders, a nhamed
vote was taken. Clirs D’Agorne, Fitzpatrick, Kilbane, Lomas and
Rowley voted in favour of this proposal. Clirs Ayre, Barker,
Daubeney, Fenton, Fisher, Hollyer and Cullwick (Chair) against
the proposal and the motion fell.

[Cllr Rowley left the meeting at 20:36]

Cllr Ayre moved, and ClIr Hollyer seconded, that the application
be approved with additional and amended conditions for which
the wording would be delegated to the Chair, Vice Chair and
Officers for agreement:

e Amended Condition 4 Construction management (timings of
working hours)

[Cllr Barker left at 21:00]

The method of piling to use the lowest piling method
Monitoring of the listed building

Amended Condition 25 Noise - waste

Informative relating to the applicant working with the church
Investigation into protecting the poplar tree

In accordance with the revised Standing Orders, a named vote
was taken. Clirs Ayre, Daubeney, Fenton, Fisher, Hollyer and
Cullwick (Chair) in favour of the proposal. Clirs D’Agorne,
Fitzpatrick, Kilbane, and Lomas voted in against the proposal.

Resolved: That the application be approved, subject to:

(i)  Conditions 1-3, 5-21, 23, 24, and 26 as set out
in the report;



(i)

(iii)

Page 8

Amendments to Conditions 4, and 25 to
reflect the following requirements, with the
wording of the amended conditions to be
delegated to officers in consultation with the
Chair and Vice Chair of the meeting:

¢ Amended Condition 4 Construction
management (timings of working hours)
¢ Amended Condition 25 Noise - waste
Amended Conditions 5 and 22 as set out in
the officer update:

Condition 5

Variation to permitted working hours

The temporary extension to working hours is in
accordance with new national guidance.

5 The hours of construction, loading or
unloading on the site shall be confined to 8:00
to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 9:00 to 13:00
Saturday and no working on Sundays or public
holidays.

To facilitate safe working in relation to the
Covid-19 situation extended working hours are
permitted between 0700 and 1930 Monday to
Saturday for a temporary period until 15t April
2021. Works within these permitted extended
hours should adhere to the following:

- The noise associated with any works
should not be audible beyond the perimeter
of the site.

- There should be no piling undertaken
outside of permitted hours.

- There should be no heavy plant movements
during these extended hours.

- The extended hours should only allow
trades working on and within plots.

- There should be no excessive noise, dust
or vibration caused during this period

Any working outside of the permitted hours is
subject to prior approval in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. (It is asked that any



Page 9

requests to work outside of the permitted
hours contains justification and details of
practical measures to avoid noise
disturbance).

Reason: To protect the amenities of adjacent
residents and in line with MHCLG guidance
(22 July 2020).

INFORMATIVE

The City of York Council requests that that any
changes to the original working hours are
communicated to neighbouring properties in a
proportionate manner.

Condition 22

Drainage

Details to be approved as follows -

22 Prior to construction of the building hereby
permitted details of the proposed means of
foul and surface water drainage, including
details of any balancing works and off site
works, shall be submitted to and approved by
the Local Planning Authority. The information
shall include site-specific details of:

- The flow control device manhole the means
by which the surface water discharge rate
shall be restricted to a maximum rate of 8.7
(eight point seven) litres per second.

- The attenuation tank the means by which
the surface water attenuation up to the 1 in
100 year event with a 30% climate change
allowance shall be achieved.

- The full storage volume calculations for the
surface water attenuation above.

The development shall be carried out in

accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order to avoid increased flood risk

elsewhere in accordance with Publication Draft

Local Plan policy ENV4 and NPPF paragraph

163.



Page 10

The final wording of the conditions to be delegated to
officers along with Chair and Vice Chair of the meeting.

Reasons:

I.  The proposed hotel use is acceptable in principle at
this city centre site and fits with the aspirations for
economic growth in the NPPF and the 2018 DLP, by
facilitating a sector where there is growth and
evidentially demand. The scheme is appropriate for
the site; the design is acceptable and relates to the
context.

ii. There would be a very low level of harm to
designated Heritage Assets, which is considered to
be outweighed by the public benefits of the scheme.
The benefits are predominantly economic but are
also environmental and social given the public realm
enhancements involved.

lii.  With regards demolition, given the acceptable
Impact on Heritage Assets, there are no policy
grounds to oppose this; in accordance with NPPF
advice the re-development makes more efficient use
of the site (providing additional floor-space) and the
new build will comply with Local Plan policies on
Sustainable Design and Construction. A condition
will prevent any premature demolition, before there
Is a contract in place for the construction project.

iv. There would be no unacceptable impact on amenity,
which cannot be reasonably controlled through the
use of planning conditions. Other technical matters
can also be dealt with, to the extent the scheme
would be NPPF compliant by way of conditions.

Cllr C Cullwick,Chair
[The meeting started at 4.40 pm and finished at 9.17 pm].



Page 11 Agenda Item 4a

Date: 12 November 2020 Ward: Holgate

Team: West Area Parish: Holgate Planning Panel

Reference: 20/00710/REMM

Application at: York Central Leeman Road York

For: Reserved matters application for layout, scale, appearance,

landscaping and access for the construction of the primary vehicle
route and associated roads, infrastructure, landscaping and
alterations to the existing road network pursuant to outline planning
permission 18/01884/OUTM

By: Homes England, Network Rail Infrastructure Ltd and City of York
Council

Application Type: Major Reserved Matters Application

Target Date: 16 November 2020

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 The proposal relates to the first reserved matters application for Phase 1 of the
infrastructure works required in order to provide the key road, pedestrian and
cycle network through the York Central site. This follows outline approval
18/01884/OUTM for the redevelopment of York Central to provide a mixed-use
development of up to 379,729 m2 of floorspace Gross External Area (GEA)
primarily comprising up to 2,500 homes (Class C3), between 70,000 m2 and
87,693 m2 of office use (Class Bla), up to 11,991 m2 GEA of retail and leisure
uses (Classes A1-A5 or D2), hotel with up to 400 bedrooms (Class C1), up to
12,120 m2 GEA of non-residential institutions (Class D1) for expansion of the
National Railway Museum, multi-storey car parks and provision of community
uses all with associated works including new open space, ancillary car parking,
demolition of and alterations to existing buildings and associated vehicular, rail,
cycle and pedestrian access improvements.

1.2 The first Reserved Matters application includes:

Highway works
e A new road junction off Water End as the main access into the site;
A new shared pedestrian/cycle lane on the north-west of the existing Severus
Road Bridge on Water End;
New pedestrian and cycle crossing facilities on Water End to integrate with
existing segregated cycle provision;
A new shared pedestrian and cycle bridge added to the south-east side of
Severus Road Bridge (known as Severus Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge);

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 12

A new bridge across the East Coast Mainline;

New pathways, planted terraces and landscaping through Millennium Green;
A new highway through the site providing access for buses, coaches, taxis,
emergency and service vehicles and private vehicles creating an access to the
west entrance of the York Railway Station, connecting through to York city
centre and Kingsland Terrace.

A new bus lane on Cinder Street, and routes for two park and ride services to
run through the site including 3 bus stops either side of the road for both inbound
and outbound services;

A bus hub to the south of Museum Square, comprising 2 bus stops in laybys
with shelters, seating and timetable information in each direction.

A new signalised crossing for Cinder Street to connect Foundry Way, Cinder
Street and Hudson Boulevard with Wilton Rise to the south;

Unsignalised pedestrian crossing points on Park Street;

New segregated pedestrian and cycle links through the site to enable the
stopping up of a portion of Leeman Road to enable the development of the
National Railway Museum’s Central Hall.

A replacement railway spur from the new ECML Bridge to the South Yard of the
National Railway Museum;

Pedestrian/cycle crossing through the NRM south yard to provide connectivity
between the Foundry Way and Hudson Boulevard

A new set-down and pick-up facility for the NRM tourist road train located to the
east of the highway close to the Coal Drops.

A new vehicle drop-off area for 12 vehicles close the west station entrance and
2 new coach set-down areas in the Station Quarter for rail-replacement
services.

Marble Arch designated as a pedestrian only route;

A new two-way segregated cycle lane within Leeman Road linking directly to the
existing route on the west side of the Sorting Office;

Leeman Road Tunnel reduced to a single carriageway for vehicles with a
one-way working system controlled by traffic signals;

Modification of Leeman Road to create a new junction for the secondary access
route for maintenance vehicles to the NRM South Yard.

New signalised pedestrian crossing on Leeman Road to the east of the Leeman
Road Tunnel,

8 permanent on-street parking bays on Park Street.

21 new on-street parking spaces on Foundry Way;

New unsignalised pedestrian crossing on Station Rise.

Displaced car parking provision along Cinder Lane currently serving York Rail
Station provided on a temporary basis during construction on land within
development plots B, C, D, F, G and H.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



1.3

Page 13

Landscaping

Retention of the Millennium Oak;

Establishment of landscaped embankments on the primary access route from
the ECML Bridge to the Leeman Road Link;

Planting of new street trees in the southern footway of Park Street;

Planting of new trees within 2.5 m wide landscaped verge to the north of Park
Street, on Hudson Boulevard and within central medians;

Provision of new landscaped verges up to 1.5 m in width to the north side of
Park Street;

A 2.5 m wide landscape zone created to the north of the cycleway and
pedestrian footway on Park Street and Hudson Boulevard to set back the
development hoarding lines and to provide additional public realm in advance of
the development of the remainder of the site;

New street lighting throughout; and

New public realm created at the southern and northern end of Hudson
Boulevard and to the north of the proposed drop-off by York Railway Station.

Drainage and Services

Construction of development surface water drainage within the footprint of the
highway including stub connections for future building plots;

Construction of highway drainage and associated attenuation;

Construction of the main foul drainage network including stub connections for
future building plots;

Two diversions of Yorkshire Water Services public sewers through the site;
Compensatory flood storage;

Diversion of the existing Holgate Beck Culvert;

Diversion of existing utilities (including gas, electricity, and telecommunications)
within the new proposed public footways to enable the development;

Provision for below ground infrastructure to support Electricity Charging Points
for permanent parking spaces; and

Construction of new utility network infrastructure to serve the proposed
development within the site.

Demolition of buildings within the red site boundary and removal of railway lines
have already been approved as part of the outline approval. The buildings to be
demolished as part of the Phase 1 works include:

The concrete depot;

Unipart;

Wagon Repair Depot;

Wagon Repair Generator Block;
Hanger Shed;

Single Storey building in MDU;
Works Delivery Office;

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Page 14

Single storey cycle shed;

Leeman Road Footbridge;

Single storey building off Leeman Road Entrance;

Railway lines shown for demolition on Drawing YC-PP 002 (approved
Parameter Plan ‘Demolition’ on the OPP) with some lifted and stored for re-use
in Central Park, which will be submitted in a future reserved matters application.

The Outline Planning Application required an Environmental Impact
Assessment and as such a detailed Environmental Statement was submitted at
outline stage. An Environmental Compliance Statement is therefore submitted
alongside this Reserved Matters Application to demonstrate that the proposals
would not result in any new or material environmental impacts from those
identified at outline stage and as such that any mitigation measures outlined still
remain relevant. As such an EIA is not required in relation to the proposals set
out within this RMA.

The application is also accompanied by a Design Guide Compliance Statement
to demonstrate how the proposals fall within the design parameters set out
within the Design Guide and Parameter Plans approved at outline stage.

Alongside this reserved matters application there are a number of conditions on
the outline approval which will require formal discharge before the development
can commence. An application referenced AOD/20/00109 has been submitted
which relates to Conditions 11 (phasing of open space), 12 (phasing of car
parking), 29 (invasive non-native species (INNS) measures report), 46 (public
transport), 60 (unexploded ordnance), 66 (geo-archaeological) and 67
(archaeology waterlogged deposits) and is pending decision.

APPLICATION SITE

The application site lies to the west of the City centre comprising land between
the East Coast Main Line (ECML) to the north, the Freight Avoiding Lines (FAL)
to the south, York railway station to the east, and the public highway at Water
End to the west. The site is predominantly brownfield land with railway
infrastructure and rail lines making up a significant part of the site. The site also
includes the Grade Il listed Gate Piers and Gates to York Goods Station which
will remain in situ. Station Rise and Leeman Road in the north eastern corner of
the site also fall within the Central Historic Core Conservation Area.

The station and land to the east of it (including the city walls - a scheduled
monument) lie within the Central Historic Core Conservation Area. To the south
of the site (but not abutting it) is St Paul’s Square and Holgate Road
Conservation Area.

To the west of York Railway Station are a series of open surface car parks to
serve railway car parking requirements. These car parks are accessed via

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

Page 15

Cinder Lane. They have been created within existing structures, including the
former coal drops area which is a brick structure set approximately 4 metres
below the level of the existing Cinder Lane.

At the western end of the site is Millennium Green an area of open space used
for walking, recreation and community events. Part of Millennium Green is a
Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC). Holgate Beck, a tributary of
the River Ouse, crosses the site in an existing culvert, with an un-culverted
section of the Beck running through the open space. Part of the open space to
the west of Holgate Beck is an identified Local Nature Reserve.

The modern housing development of St Peter’s Quarter, off Leeman Road sits
immediately adjacent to the site and comprises three and four-storey town
houses and apartment blocks.

Leeman Road runs through the site linking Garfield Terrace and Kingsland
Terrace to the north of the site with Station Rise to the east. The route has a
height restriction at both ends (3.3m at Leeman Road Underpass in the north
and 3.7m at Leeman Road Tunnel in the east). The site has no other public
vehicular access.

BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The redevelopment of York Central has been in the offing since the end of the
Second World War as rail use significantly declined on the site. In 2008 an early
retail-focussed scheme came to nothing, when the complexity of land
ownerships and problems with access coincided with the economic downturn.
Until recently the site has had limited planning history, reflecting its principal
uses for rail and industry.

In 2019 outline planning approval (18/01884/OUTM) was granted for
redevelopment of the site to provide a mixed-use development of up to 379,729
m2 of floorspace Gross External Area (GEA) primarily comprising up to 2,500
homes (Class C3), between 70,000 m2 and 87,693 m2 of office use (Class
Bla), up to 11,991 m2 GEA of retail and leisure uses (Classes A1-A5 or D2),
hotel with up to 400 bedrooms (Class C1), up to 12,120 m2 GEA of
non-residential institutions (Class D1) for expansion of the National Railway
Museum, multi-storey car parks and provision of community uses all with
associated works including new open space, ancillary car parking, demolition of
and alterations to existing buildings and associated vehicular, rail, cycle and
pedestrian access improvements. The outline approval was subject to a series
of conditions together with a Section 106 agreement which secured 20%
Affordable Housing and financial contributions towards Gypsy and Traveller
provision, Sports provision, Open Space provision, Sustainable Travel and
Education provision.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



1.15

1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

1.20

Page 16

Homes England, Network Rail and the National Railway Museum have applied
to the Department for Transport for a Stopping Up Order (SUO) for part of
Leeman Road from approximately the western entrance to the NRM to the new
highway immediately west of the Leeman Road Tunnel. The applicant also
proposes entering into a Walkway Agreement (Section 35 of the Highways Act
1980) between the NRM and CYC to maintain pedestrian access through the
redeveloped NRM site during opening hours. These are separate processes
which run outside of the determination of this planning application.

PRE-APPLICATION ENGAGEMENT BY APPLICANT

The Applicants have submitted a Statement of Community Involvement which
sets out in detail the community engagement that has been undertaken both
prior to the outline consent being obtained and since then in the lead up to the
reserved matters submission.

In summary, the engagement on the Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA was run from
24 February 2020 to 6 March 2020 with feedback being obtained online through
a dedicated York Central webpage, through exhibitions which were available at
three locations, drop in sessions which ran on four dates and through a
stakeholder workshop.

In terms of publicity of these events this included the distribution of 5,500
leaflets in the local area, a media release, advertising on social media, briefings
with CYC members, emailing stakeholder groups and those registered on the
York Central ‘keep in touch’ list.

The Statement of Community Involvement summarises the comments that were
received as a result of this engagement and provides a response to each of
these points to demonstrate how they have been considered within the final
submission.

As well as the engagement with the local community and key stakeholders the
Applicants had various pre-application meetings with Planning, Urban Design,
Archaeology and Highways on the lead up to the submission.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1

2.2

National Planning Policy

The revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in 2019
and its planning policies are material to the determination of planning
applications.

Development Plan
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
determinations be made in accordance with the development plan unless

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



2.3

2.4

2.5

Page 17

material considerations indicate otherwise. The development plan for York
comprises the saved policies of the Yorkshire and Humber Regional Spatial
Strategy (RSS) relating to the general extent of the York Green Belt. These are
policies YH9(C) and Y1 (C1 and C2) which relate to York's Green Belt and the
key diagram insofar as it illustrates general extent of the Green Belt. It also
includes a number of Neighbourhood Plans.

The City of York Draft Local Plan Incorporating the Fourth Set of Changes was
approved for Development Management purposes in April 2005 (DCLP). Whilst
the DCLP does not form part of the statutory development plan, its policies are
considered to be capable of being material considerations in the determination
of planning applications where policies relevant to the application are consistent
with those in the NPPF as revised in 2019, although the weight that can be
afforded to them is very limited.

The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 (the emerging plan) was
submitted for examination on 25 May 2018. Phase 1 of the hearings into the
examination of the Local Plan took place in December 2019. In accordance
with paragraph 48 of the NPPF as revised in 2019, the emerging plan policies
can be afforded weight according to:

a. the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);

b. the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the
less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be
given); and

c. the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (NB: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be
assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

The Council considers that given the advanced stage of the emerging plan’s
preparation the following emerging plan policies can be given moderate weight
in the consideration of the application in accordance with paragraph 48 of the
NPPF:

DP1 — York Sub Area

DP2 — Sustainable Development

DP3 — Sustainable Communities

DP4 — Approach to Development Management

D1 — Placemaking

D2 — Landscape and Setting

D4 — Conservation Areas

D5 — Listed Buildings

D6 — Archaeology

D7 — The Significance of Non-designated Heritage Assets

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



2.6

2.7

Page 18

D10 — York City Walls

GI1 — Green Infrastructure

GI2 — Biodiversity and Access to Nature

GI3 — Green Infrastructure Network

Gl4 — Tress and Hedgerows

CC1 — Renewable and Low Carbon Energy

ENV1 — Air Quality

ENV2 — Managing Environmental Quality

ENV3 — Land Contamination

ENV4 — Flood Risk

ENV5 — Sustainable Drainage

WM1 — Sustainable Waste Management

T1 — Sustainable Access

T2 — Strategic Public Transport Improvements

T3 — York Railway Station

T4 — Strategic Highway Network Capacity Improvements
T5 — Strategic Cycle and Pedestrian Network

T6 — Development at or Near Public Facilities

T7 — Minimising and Accommodating Generated Trips
T8 — Demand Management

The following policies are also relevant to the planning application. They have
outstanding objections but are consistent with national policy and can therefore
be given limited weight (the objections will be resolved through the Local Plan
Examination process).

SS1 - Delivering Sustainable Growth for York
SS4 - York Central

Evidence Base

The evidence base underpinning the emerging plan is also capable of being a
material consideration in the determination of planning applications. The
evidence base documents relevant to this application are:

General
e CDO023 - Soundness Self Assessment Checklist (2018)

Green Infrastructure and Openspace
e SDO080 — City of York Biodiversity Action Plan (2017)

e SDO085 - Local Plan Evidence Base Study: Open Space and Green
Infrastructure (Update (2017)

e SDO086 - Local Plan Evidence Base Study: Open Space and Green
Infrastructure (2014)

e SDO097 - York’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2017-22)

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



2.8

Page 19

Heritage, Design and Environment protection
e SDO091 - Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, Revision 2 (2013)

e SD093 — City of York Low Emissions Strategy (2012)

e SDO095 - City of York Council Surface Water Management Plan (December
2012)

e SD103 — City of York Heritage Topic Paper (2013)
e SD122 — Carbon Trust’s report on Climate Change in the Local Plan (2017)

Transport and Infrastructure
e (CDO018 - Local Plan Viability Assessment Update (2018)

e SDO076 - Transport Topic Paper (2018)
e SD128 - Infrastructure Delivery Plan (May 2018)

Note: References are as per the Core Document Library submitted to the
Planning Inspectorate for the examination of the Local Plan.

In terms of site constraints then the following apply:

e The wider site has been designated as a Housing Zone and has also been
awarded Enterprise Zone status.

e The site is located in an Area of Archaeological Interest.

e A small part of the site (Leeman Road to Marble Arch Tunnel) is within the
Central Historic Core Conservation Area.

e The site adjoins a number of Grade Il Listed buildings including the Former
North Eastern Railway Goods Station, Gatepiers and Gates to York Goods
Station.

e The north eastern part of the site leading from Water End is located within
Flood Zones 2 and 3 (medium and high flood risk).

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

3.1

Internal

Policy

Given the advanced stage of the emerging plan’s preparation, the lack of
significant objection to the emerging policies relevant to this application and the
stated consistency with the Framework, we would advise that the policy
requirements of emerging plan policies SS4, D1, D2, ENV1, ENV2, ENV4,
ENV5 and T1 should be applied with moderate weight.

There is no policy objection, subject to comments from colleagues in design and
conservation, environmental protection and highways on the technical aspects
of this reserved matters application.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

Page 20

Childcare Strateqy and Business Management
No comments.

Housing Development Team
No comments received.

Highways
Have considered the submitted layout plans and have taken into account

representations submitted as part of the application and raise no objections on
highway grounds subject to conditions.

Economic Development Unit
No comments received.

Educational Planning Officer
No comments.

Lead Local Flood Authority

We support the RMA in principle but there are details and information which
may affect the layout it seeks to fix therefore if planning permission is granted
we are content these can be sought by way of imposing conditions.

Lifelong Learning and Leisure
No comments received.

Public Health (Integrated Wellbeinqg)
No comments received.

Property Services
No comments received.

Public Health

Overall there are no objections to this application but would recommend that
comments from Public Health are taken into consideration as planning
progresses.

Urban Design and Conservation

Detailed comments provided with a number of requests for further
clarity/information surrounding key areas of the site to ensure the original
design intent is achieved.

Waste Services
No objections.

Ecology

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



3.15

3.16

3.17

Page 21

The Preliminary Ecological Appraisal undertaken in June 2019 provides an
accurate update to the baseline ecological survey information submitted in the
original EIA. The conclusions of the report have been reflected in other
submissions such as the Invasive Species Management Plan and the
Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) required to be submitted
as part of the reserved matters application under Conditions 29 and 31. There
are no outstanding matters resulting from the PEA that require further action.

A Biodiversity Enhancement Management Plan (BEMP) has been submitted
just to cover a limited part of the site relating to the Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA
associated with the primary vehicle route and it is understood that further BEMP
reports will be provided to the Authority alongside future reserved matters
submissions. There is also a link with information contained within the LEMP
(condition 31) which deals with habitat creation, enhancement and
management. The information contained on the drawing within the BEMP is
considered sufficient for this reserved matters application.

Archaeology

This latest round of investigation has provided further information to support the
existing evidence, archaeological and geo-archaeological profile of the site. The
borehole survey has shown that organic material survives sporadically in the
Holgate Beck and floodplain area. Sediments from the edge of one of the
kettleholes identified through the deposit modelling has tentatively been
identified.

The general archaeological character of the site is now better understood
allowing an appropriate mitigation strategy to evolve. However, the full
geo-archaeological character and hydrological regime is still poorly or not at all
understood. It is acknowledged by the developers/stakeholders that currently
only the preliminary results of the evaluation are available and that further
analysis and dating is required from the laboratory. The pending results of the
evaluation also need to be entered into the deposit model to further inform the
mitigation strategy for this and future RMAs.

Until the results and analysis from the laboratory, which is then interpreted
alongside the existing data, deposit model and results of the water monitoring
programme there is insufficient data to confidently say what the full impact of the
proposals will be on the deeper deposits. However, a tentative approach to
another round of targeted evaluation has been agreed with the
geo-archaeologist, CYC and Historic England.

Trees and Landscape
If the Applicant is insisting on providing any remaining landscape detail under
condition 24 then there is no comment to add.

Environmental Protection

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



3.18

3.19

3.20

Page 22

The Council’s Contaminated Land Officer advises that the proposal is
acceptable. A site investigation and risk assessment and a remediation
strategy will be required in due course, prior to commencement of development.

In terms of Air Quality the construction traffic flows are expected to be similar to
the numbers assessed in the Environmental Statement (ES) and no new or
different effects are anticipated. The previously submitted air quality
assessment classified the construction of York Central to have a high risk of
dust emissions. Mitigation measures will be agreed with CYC as part of a
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) set out in condition 15.

With respect to operation, the works will not generate any new trips per se
(other than during construction). The conclusions of the previous ES therefore
remain valid.

As there is no mention in this phase of specific lighting of premises, private
carparks or signage, public protection will not be commenting specifically on the
lighting provision associated with the infrastructure.

The Environmental Statement states that there is an increase in the number of
days that night time working is required which would result in a significant effect
that was not reported in the OPA ES. The Agent clarified that night time working
would be 30 weekends over a 12 month period across the whole site and not
specifically in relation to one area of the site. They therefore feel that sufficient
controls can be put in place through the discharge of Condition 15 (CEMP)
condition. It is understood that there are limitations on providing specific
information at this stage when contractors are not in place. It is therefore
agreed that this can be dealt with through the discharge of Condition 15 and
Section 61 being applied for. However the Applicant should be made aware
that there may be strict restrictions placed on the Section 61 Agreement in order
to protect residents during any night time work.

External

Holgate Planning Panel
No comments received.

Ainsty Internal Drainage Board

The Board notes that the applicant seems to be, in principle, proposing to
comply with the outline planning conditions although further details are to be
provided. Given the circumstances, provided the Lead Local Flood Authority
and the Environment Agency are satisfied with the proposals at this stage, the
Board would have no comments to make.

Canal and River Trust
Have no comments to make.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

Page 23

Environment Agency

No objections, but advise that the original conditions from the outline application
are still applicable and are required to be discharged before works can
commence. General comments made with respect to surface water, discharge
rates, biodiversity and habitat enhancements for which the LPA need to consult
with their Drainage Engineer and Ecologist.

Historic England

Historic England commented in detail on the outline planning application and
raised serious concerns on heritage grounds and regrettably these concerns
have not been addressed namely these refer to:

e The archaeological impacts of the scheme have still not been assessed.

e It has not been demonstrated in the application that the primary access
routes would not harm, or take opportunities to enhance, key views.

e There is no design review panel process for the Design Guide as promised.

HE therefore object to the current application on heritage grounds.

Following HE’s initial comments above, HE are aware that revisions have been
made to the archaeological strategy, and that these are in line with the
recommendations made by the City of York Council Principal Archaeologist.
However it is noted that additional archaeological evaluation needs to be
undertaken, although this cannot commence until the results of the completed
work have been circulated, which is anticipated to happen in February 2021.
On the basis of the information provided, Historic England is content to repeat
its previous advice and recommendation that HE object to the proposal on
heritage grounds.

Natural England

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed
development will not have significant adverse impacts on statutorily protected
nature conservation sites or landscapes.

Highways England
Offer no objection.

Network Rail
No response received.

National Grid
No response received.

Northern Powerqgrid

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

4.0

Page 24

No response received.

Sport England
No response received.

North Yorkshire Police Designing Out Crime Officer

It is noted that the main arches to the East Coast Mainline Bridge have been
altered. The changes made to the geometry of the main arches deals with the
safety concerns raised in the earlier NYP response. There are no further
comments to make regarding the proposal.

York Civic Trust

Views York Central as an exceptional opportunity to create a place of
international significance and secure major benefits for residents across the
city, from delivery of new high value jobs, to creating sustainable transport links
in the heart of the city. It is generally very supportive of the application.

Proposals for the introduction of the Severus segregated cycle/pedestrian
bridge and the proposed new East Cost main line road bridge are welcomed as
are the design and landscaping proposed.

Notes that several buildings are to be demolished and would strongly suggest
that these buildings are photographically recorded prior to their demolition or
dismantling. A place to re-establish the Firehouse should be identified as soon
as possible and preferably within the York Central development itself.

York Civic Trust is very concerned with the unrestricted traffic (modelling
suggests up to 1000 veh/hour) to pass through the Leeman Road Tunnel,
gueueing traffic, bus services being less reliable, disruption for commercial and
residential community by a flow of traffic equivalent to Gillygate, potentially
unsafe courtesy crossings on Park Street, the Tunnel operating at around 90%
capacity rendering it vulnerable to breakdown and increase in air and noise
pollution adversely affecting users of Museum Square and residents and users
of York Central.

York Civic Trust recognises that the applicant's proposal includes for future
revisions of traffic management but are firmly of the opinion that this is such an
important facet of the York Central project that the time to address this is now.

Yorkshire Water

Object to the application. Evidence should be submitted to prove that the
relevant sewer diversions proposed within the site has been agreed with
Yorkshire Water. Until then, we cannot agree to any of the proposed drainage
plans.

REPRESENTATIONS

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



4.1

4.2

Page 25

There have been a number of comments made within the letters of
representation regarding the publicity of the application given that the
application was submitted shortly after the national Covid19 lockdown in March
2020. The Council did take account of this within their publicity of the
application. An advertisement was posted in the York Evening Press to achieve
wider publicity, 660 neighbour letters were posted with 45 site notices
displayed. The site notices covered each residential street in the neighbouring
area with additional site notices displayed in areas of public realm (particularly
in and around Millennium Green) where residents were most likely to be
accessing the area for daily exercise during the lockdown. Given that the site
notices went up in two stages residents had between 22 April 2020 and 30 June
2020 (almost 10 weeks) consultation period which the Council consider to be a
reasonable period. In addition re-publicity took place between 13 October and 3
November 2020 in respect of amendments to the pedestrian footways/
cycleways which gave residents a further opportunity to comment. Furthermore
comments posted between these publicity periods have also been accepted
and taken into account.

There have been a total of 50 letters of representation in relation to the original
publicity including the re-consultation which raise objections/concerns in
respect of the proposals submitted these include letters from York Cycle
Campaign, York Central Action Group, York Green Party, Clir Baker, York
Environment Forum Transport Group, York Labour Party, York Ramblers
Group, Cycling UK North Yorkshire and York & District Trades Union Council.
The comments can be summarised as follows:

Highways

e Wilton Rise Bridge is not cycle/disabled friendly. It is important that the
development provides an attractive east/west route for cyclists.

e Issues with debris and water ingress make Marble Arch an unpleasant route
for pedestrians and cyclists.

e Question why cyclists are split from pedestrians under Marble Arch as it
would be safer to keep cyclists away from the road.

e Traffic controlled systems at Marble Arch will delay public transport and force
vehicles onto the congested inner ring road and Holgate area.

e Suggestions of grandfather rights permit approach/bus gate through Leeman
Road/Marble Arch Tunnel.

e Removal of direct walking and cycling access to the City for Leeman Road
residents will increase journey times for them and for access to local
businesses.

e Most direct route for pedestrians/cyclists to the City Centre is the Cinder Path
(between Jubilee Terrace and Scarborough Bridge) but this is poorly
maintained and floods. Improvements to this would encourage continued
use.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 26

e There is a lack of detail about the diverted route once Leeman Road is
stopped up and where there are temporary diversions during construction.

e Concerns for accessibility of emergency services if Leeman Road is closed.

e The proposed realignment of pedestrian access via Leeman Road to the City
Centre after 5pm when there is no access via the NRM needs careful
consideration.

e Concerns where current on-street parking on Leeman Road and the NRM
would be displaced to.

e The development allows more traffic through the site, in conflict with headline
policies of City of York Council, notably for the city to become carbon neutral
by 2030 and to eliminate non-essential private car journeys to the city centre
by 2023.

e The Transport Assessment should be based on realistic assumptions for the
‘do minimum’ and cover interim years 2026/7 and should be asked to test
conditions in the year 2021/2 when the road is to be implemented.

e The scheme should demonstrate how the transport system ties in with the
rest of the city and how it can adapt to fit a post Covid 19 citywide transport
plan.

e There would be an increase in traffic of various types on Boroughbridge
Road /Holgate and Clifton / Bootham which will have a serious impact on
users of the A64, A59 and A19 especially at peak times as well as residents
and businesses in an area from the Southwest to the North of the City.

e Proposals should remove on street parking and introduce speed
management measures on secondary and tertiary roads.

e Proposals impact on an important bus route and park and ride service and
should improve services from Poppleton and Rawcliffe Bar.

e Bus stops should still be accessible to those living in the Leeman Road area
many of whom are elderly and reliant on good bus services.

e |tis not clear which bus services would be increased and these additional
services are clearly needed as soon as the road is developed.

e The proposals need to focus primarily on creating accessible, safe cycle and
walking routes to the City Centre and Train Station, the plans do not achieve
this and are car dominated contrary to draft Local Plan Policy SP8.

e The design of cycle lanes does not conform with Government Guidance and
raises safety concerns for users. Proper prioritisation of cycling should be a
headline feature rather than priority being given to motorists.

¢ Request that the new bridges are built with wider than 3m paths, which have
proven problematic elsewhere due to high volume of users.

e Disappointed that a dedicated cycle path is not provided on the west side of
Park Street and that a new route is not provided under the station to reduce
severance.

e There is no detailed consideration of use of rail instead of road transport for
construction traffic.

e Museum Square will be crossed by many conflicting transport users requiring
physical barriers resulting in something far from the relaxed public open

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 27

space needed.

There are too many shared use routes for pedestrians and cyclists causing
problems for people hard of hearing and who have sight loss which do not
adequately consider the Disability Discrimination Act.

Design/Layout

The new bridge is to be similar to Scarborough Bridge, however this is an
unsightly mix of weathered steel, chromed steel, York stone and concrete
with no continuity in design. The proposals need to use consistent materials.
The bridge will have a negative impact on the visual amenity of local
residents, particularly those along Garnet Terrace and Garfield Terrace.
High density developments may no longer be suitable and space standards
need to be considered.

Ecology/Wildlife

Plans involve the unnecessary removal of nature and wildlife habitat which
benefit local residents. To destroy this at a time of global climate crisis is
absurd.

Millennium Green is a valuable asset to the local community and will be
impacted not only through the loss of some of it, but by it now being next to a
busy road.

If land is needed it should be taken from roads and waste land not areas we
need to protect the most.

There is a thriving eco system of flora and fauna living on Millennium Green,
the development means the loss of this alongside hundreds of trees, loss of
foxes, badgers, hedgehogs, bats and countless other animal’s habitat.
Works should be done outside of the nesting season.

Trees should be species indigenous to the British Isles and preferably north
east England and sourced from mainland Britain so as to avoid unknown
pests and diseases.

Air Quality

The new development should be low emission from day one.

Recent work by West Yorkshire Combined Authority in conjunction with the
York and North Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership indicates that the
Emission Reduction Pathway requires a 43% reduction in private car use by
2030 (regardless of fuel type) with 30% of remaining car use shifted to active
travel by 10% increase in bus use and 60% increase in cycling and walking.
Proposals should align with this.

Assumptions that a switch to electric vehicles will make congestion levels
acceptable is deeply flawed.

The proposals will see lines of standing traffic through Museum Square and
queues along much of the length of the new access road causing

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 28

pedestrians and cyclists to travel past lines of polluting traffic.
The current assessments regarding air quality are inadequate.

The proposals will impact on air quality around Water End and Poppleton
Primary School.

Residential Amenity

Residents would experience disruption due to noise through the increase in
local traffic.

The application does too little to mitigate unavoidable disturbance to local
communities during construction, particularly now that more people may be
working at home, home schooling and self-isolating.

Kerbside noise levels alongside Great Park will be 70 decibels at peak times
including Saturdays which will be intrusive to the enjoyment of the park and
adjacent properties.

Impact on Local Business/Economy

The proposals will either seriously impact or close local businesses (eg
Shopright Ltd, Corking Wines, Howarth Timber) which will remove services
for the local community including the elderly.

Impacts, in particular arising from the alterations to Leeman Road tunnel on
the operations of the Royal Mail sorting office is ultimately a risk to the
business given their performance obligations in the public’s interest. The
Delivery Office is a busy facility open 7 days a week and employing 278 staff.
Traffic congestion undermines local economies and costs businesses
money at a time when the local economy faces huge challenges.

Additional services and facilities should be provided for existing residents.
To take a decision at this time which will fully commit City of York Council to
the delivery of York Central is reckless and irresponsible without full
assessment of the financial implications.

Impact on the 'marketability’ of the site in the face of the current recession
resulting from coronavirus the competition to attract high quality employers
to invest in the site and to realise value from the sale of properties is going to
be even higher than previously. The key to this for York will be to
demonstrate a clear vision to 'Build Back Better' and to market a site with a
high quality of life that will be part of the solution, not part of the problem.
Long lines of queuing traffic (whatever fuel they are using) will not deliver this
aspiration.

Publicity

No applications should be made during the current crisis, very few people are
aware of the application and letters should be sent to everyone within
Leeman Road and the surrounding area as it will have a huge impact on the
local community.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 29

Residents have objected at each consultation, therefore question why no
alternative plan has been put forward. There is the impression this is being
forced upon the local community with no fair alternative.

Due to lockdown the community cannot come together in any meaningful
capacity to oppose the plans or deliver flyers. This is discriminating against
people with children, those shielding and those without internet access.
Residents need to be allowed more time for objections.

Housing

Has thought been given to who will afford to live on site once the housing is
built?

Housing needs should cater for all and should not be an imitation of other
housing developments, with more availability for housing to rent and for first
time buyers.

General Comments

750m of path on the riverbank through Leeman Park has been agreed and
has attracted £100k of Open Space Contribution funding according to the
Section 106 and whilst welcomed was evidently agreed with zero community
consultation (Friends of Leeman Park and Leeman Road Residents
Association would have been starting points). If consulted they would have
highlighted how this proposed path completely misses the point.

4.3 3 letters of support were received including one from the National Railway
Museum which can be summarised as follows:

The site has been mostly railway land and underused or derelict, planning
and funding would enable access to the area and all the potential for
developing the site.

The plan is mature and sensitive to all the varied aspects of the urban
context.

The new road will benefit the adjacent housing area in terms of accessibility
and will remove the rat run through to the station.

New housing and other uses would be close to the station making work,
shopping and leisure accessible on foot.

The new roads and infrastructure is critical to the delivery of the NRMs
scheme to extend their facilities in order to enhance this visitor destination.
The reserved matters application embodies the principles established at
outline stage for example the closure of Leeman Road.

Once the new road infrastructure has been adopted the Council still have an
opportunity to review how the highway operates in future and to impose new
controls or initiatives as they see fit.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 30

4.4  ClIr David Heaton and ClIr Kalum Taylor as Councillors for Holgate Ward have
objected to the proposals and their comments can be summarised as follows:

General Comments

Although enthusiastic about development, as it offers the opportunity to
deliver well paid, secure jobs, setting the tone of York, addressing
environmental impacts of travel to and from the city, and plays a significant
role in addressing housing affordability. The plans do not achieve these
critical goals.

It will allow up to 2,500 dwellings with 80% of them unaffordable.

Publicity/Consultation

Insufficient consultation as a letter was not sent to all households affected
during a period of lockdown when fewer people would see the notice posters.

Impacts arising from COVID Crisis

The impact of COVID requires a thorough re-evaluation of the site as there
will be a significant change in how we live, travel and work for years to come.
CYC are reviewing all major projects, including this one which is encouraging
given the critical nature of this development and the huge financial risks
involved.

Would request that the applicant withdraw their proposals until such a time as
the full impact of COVID is understood.

Impacts of the increase in traffic

It has chance to be a 21st century low-car development but is not.

Fails to meet the Draft Local Plan “To reduce pollution, noise and the
physical impact of traffic, by restraining growth in the use of motor vehicles.”
Restrictions on through-traffic might be relatively traffic-free, but at the
expense of other areas heavily congested. There is nothing green or
sustainable about pushing problems elsewhere, at worst we will be adding a
concerning level of new vehicle traffic to the area.

Congestion has a negative impact on local economies. Encouraging another
congested development will only make current difficulties worse, regardless
of improvements in vehicle emissions.

Potential for queueing at Marble Arch Tunnel to block bus lanes, making new
and existing services unreliable and encouraging people into cars or to
become isolated.

With Marble Arch Tunnel operating at 90% of its capacity at its peak it is
extremely vulnerable to incidents such as breakdowns this could have
significant negative effects on the flow of traffic in the south and west of the
city centre.

Impact on emergency vehicles travelling through this area.

Impacts on Royal Mail in meeting their statutory responsibilities due to
delays.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



4.5

Page 31

Queuing at the Marble Arch Tunnel will be significant, queues of several
hundred metres.

Public Realm concerns within the new development

Effect for businesses that could thrive in a development that is more suitably
designed for their success.

Environmental Effects

Increase in air and noise pollution with queuing traffic making it worse, goes
against CYC motions to declare a climate emergency and a car-limited city
centre by 2030.

Holgate Road and Bootham have seen spikes in gasses dangerous to
health, should not encourage this without adequate contingencies.
Increased traffic and queuing along Park Street will limit potential positive
impact of the proposed Great Park.

If parking is restricted on Park Street where will the cars go? To safeguard
communities York Central Partnership should pay for ongoing cost of a
Residents’ Parking Scheme. There is precedent at the scheme between the
University of York and parts of Badger Hill in response to the Heslington East
development.

Improper cycling facilities

Proposals do not conform to government guidelines as motorists are given
priority in spite of claims that cycling facilities are at the heart of the
development. This is a tremendous missed opportunity.

Should the application for the Stopping Up Order be approved for Leeman
Road, the options for people travelling from the Leeman Road area to the city
centre will change from:

I. Riverside route from Jubilee Terrace (0.5 miles) or Leeman Road (0.7
miles)

ii. To: Riverside route from Jubilee Terrace (0.5 miles), Leeman Road during
NRM'’s opening (0.7 miles), or a route through the development (1 mile) with
a barrier crossing at the beginning and end of each day for an NRM train.

lii. Based on current opening hours route through the NRM will be
unavailable 17 hours each day.

The new route is twice the length of the riverside and an indirect route to the
city centre than Leeman Road. The lack of 24 hour access is not acceptable.
The riverside route will be the only 24/7 option for cyclists and pedestrians.
This route is too narrow for current traffic levels, is poorly lit and has no CCTV
and is prone to regular flooding.

A letter of objection has also been received from the Local MP, Rachael Maskell
which can be summarised as follows:

General Comments

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 32

Strongly in favour of York Central but a failure of York Central Partnership to
realise the consequences of their proposals call for costly mitigation but
could lock York into significant challenges.

Lack of awareness of significant archaeological and heritage opportunities.

Consultation

Constituents express frustration that despite engaging with the partnership, it
has failed to reflect community aspirations in any substantive way.
Consequently, community confidence in the York Central Partnership (YCP)
has suffered.

It is crucial that development proceeds in partnership with local people, and
that YCP make best endeavours to work positively and transparently with
local people.

It is likely to increase inequality, increase pollution in York, which is already
congested and make York even more inaccessible due to house prices and
business costs. There is a serious lack of understanding of York, its
communities and its challenges.

It is highly inappropriate to submit an application at the height of the
Coronavirus Pandemic, when many people’s attention was elsewhere.

The YCP RMA Infrastructure and the City of York Council York Central
project webpages were out of date with key RMA information difficult to find.
The extended consultation period has not addressed these problems.

Quality of application

Statutory bodies (Historic England, Yorkshire Water, Environment Agency,
North Yorkshire Police) have concerns about the level and quality of detail,
YCP’s progress around key OPA conditions and validity of information
presented. This is of major importance, could undermine community
confidence and may indicate the prioritisation of short-term project goals
ahead of the long-term interests of the city.

Would ask that the planning authority reviews all OPA conditions, ensures
statutory bodies are satisfied and all conditions are robustly enforced.

Heritage & Archaeoloqgy

The York Central Project has potential to uncover new and enhance our
existing heritage, which will assist York’s ambition to become a UNESCO
World Heritage Site, the project risks undermining York’s unique character
and historic standing.

It is vital to our heritage and heritage-based tourism economy that the highest
possible heritage standards are achieved. Concerned at Historic England’s
strong objection about the threat to potentially globally significant
archaeology and failure to satisfy OPA conditions or NPPF requirements.

Flooding

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 33

e Itis extremely concerning that the application failed to provide statutory
bodies with information to make flooding and drainage assessments, given
the scale of the development and its proximity to communities with a history
of flooding.

Community Impact

e Local opposition to plans for Leeman Road is very strong. These proposals
will create one new car dominated neighbourhood, creating more traffic,
pollution and noise.

e Residents continue to suggest positive and practical ways to address
concerns including compromises over Leeman Road diversion and traffic
calming measures. These proposals do not acknowledge concerns
particularly from those with mobility issues, nor make solid commitments to
mitigate negative impacts.

e Askthe LPA to ensure everything possible is being done to ensure the quality
of life of those in surrounding communities will be protected and improved.

Sustainable transport & environmental concerns

e Constituents have a clear desire for a 215 century, low-car, low-carbon
community that prioritises sustainable transport and community wellbeing.

e The plans encourage transport use having an adverse impact on reducing
carbon usage, not just on York Central, but on surrounding communities.

e Development needs to remove additional car parking and seek cleaner
alternative public transport and active transport solutions. The city will be left
with further challenges unless there is more ambition to mitigate these risks
at this stage.

e The city’s environmental aspirations are reinforced by the draft Local Plan
Transport Objectives to “reduce pollution, noise and physical impact of traffic,
by restraining growth in the use of motor vehicles”. Over the past year, this
has been reinforced by key Council decisions namely;

- July 2019 City of York Council Executive decision to “use every power at the
council’s disposal to deliver a low-car, carbon neutral development on York
Central.”

- December 2019 Healthier & Greener York decision “the Executive member
for Transport develops and implements a plan, taking into account all
financial and legal considerations, to restrict all non-essential private motor
vehicle journeys within the city walls by 2023

e In May 2020 Secretary of State for Transport published statutory guidance
that the country has a “once in a lifetime opportunity to deliver a lasting
transformative change in how we make short journeys in our towns and
cities”.

e York Central is an opportunity to create a new neighbourhood that meets the
community’s low-car, low-carbon aspirations. The proposed plans set out to;
- Create new areas of congestion and introduce new traffic to the network
- Drive high volumes of new vehicular traffic through new public open spaces

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a




Page 34

- Risk increasing congestion in already congested residential
neighbourhoods

- Fail to prioritise cycling, walking and public transport

- Undermine the city’s environmental aspirations of reducing carbon
consumption

- Create significant levels of new parking provision in the city

On May 6th 2020 the Council Executive committed to “a fundamental review
of all schemes will be needed to assess any new risks as a result of the
pandemic. This will include considering the overall purpose of the scheme
and whether they are still financially viable given the risk to overall economy”.
Support the suggestion that this application should be deferred until the
Council’s review in relation to York Central is known.

Support the call for CYC to commission an independent review of these
infrastructure proposals and for the scope to include impact on existing
neighbouring communities.

Highway and Transport Impacts

Increase of traffic with unrestricted traffic through Leeman Road Tunnel and
potential knock on impacts on city centre roads.

800m of congestion at peak hours through public square, with queuing and
congestion equal to areas in York city centre.

40-minute queues predicted at weekend peak.

Failure to include any commitments to reducing traffic flows including bus
gates, road charging, grand-father rights and other resident access only
arrangements.

Maintains traffic, air and noise pollution through narrow residential streets
onto new spine road.

It is imperative to incentivise sustainable transport and reduce car use to and
from the site.

Dependence on Marble Arch tunnel running at 90% capacity at peak time
causing risk of complete gridlock, pollution hazard for cyclists and threatens
to block path of emergency vehicles.

Unambitious plans around reducing car use or introducing a comprehensive,
city centre Ultra Low Emissions Zone.

Poor quality public realm.

900 vehicles per hour through new public space at peak creating an
unsuitable environment for families, is unattractive to businesses and tourists
Insufficiently wide walking and cycling routes.

Slow cycle junctions connecting new and existing infrastructure.

Unsafe pedestrian crossings over new major, busy road disincentivising
walking and putting pedestrians at risk.

Access plans that fail to take seriously the impact of diverted and extended
walking and cycling routes, particularly for users with mobility issues and/or
children.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 35

e Between 5pm and 10am each day pedestrian routes will be longer and
limited to the riverside route which can feel dangerous after dark and often
floods.

e Compromised public transport provision.

e Bus lanes blocked and 3m delays at peak times that risks disincentivising
sustainable transport.

5.0 APPRAISAL

5.1

5.2

5.3

The key issues for consideration are as follows:

Scope of the Outline Application

Access, Highways and Sustainable Transport
Heritage Impacts

Design, Layout, Appearance and Landscaping
Ecology/Biodiversity

Flooding and Drainage

Public Protection matters

Other matters with the OPA Environmental Statement or Arising from
consultation

SCOPE OF THE OUTLINE APPLICATION

The outline approval referenced 18/01884/OUTM granted consent for the
principle of the redevelopment of York Central to provide a mixed-use
development with associated works including new open space, ancillary car
parking, demolition of and alterations to existing buildings and associated
vehicular, rail, cycle and pedestrian access improvements. As the principle of
development has been established this is therefore not a matter for
reconsideration as part of the determination of this proposed reserved matters
application. This first reserved matters application seeks consent solely for the
access, layout, design, appearance and landscaping for the construction of the
primary vehicle route and associated roads, infrastructure, landscaping and
alterations to the existing road network. Members’ consideration of this
reserved matters application should therefore focus on these reserved matters.

The proposals are to be considered within the context of the parameters set out
within the outline approval and the associated Parameters Plans and Design
Guide. Condition 6 of the outline approval granted a number of Parameter
Plans which covered aspects of the scheme such as the buildings proposed for
demolition and the limits of deviation within which new railway additions, access
and circulation routes and areas of open space would be developed. It also set
out the different types of development zones across the site and set out
maximum heights and proposed site levels.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

Page 36

In addition Condition 7 requires that the development is carried out in
accordance with the Design Guide (DG) approved at outline stage. This set out
the design qualities of the scheme which the Illustrative Masterplan was seeking
to achieve and the underlying design intent which future reserved matters
applications would need to adhere to. This reserved matters application is
therefore accompanied by a Design Guide Compliance Statement (DGCS)
which seeks to demonstrate how the proposals comply with the Parameter
Plans and Design Guide approved at outline stage. Where the reserved
matters application deviates from the DG or Parameter Plans the DGCS
provides justification for this which is discussed in more detail within the relevant
chapters below.

As the outline consent was accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES),
this reserved matters application is accompanied by an Environmental
Compliance Statement (ECS) explaining how it accords with the approved ES.
The purpose being to assess the likely environmental effects of the Phase 1
Infrastructure RMA against the relevant consented Parameter Plans that
formed the basis of the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA), to determine if
the proposals would result in any new or different effects that would change the
conclusions of the previous ES. The ECS is discussed in more detail in each of
the relevant chapters below.

It should be noted that the outline consent was also subject to a Section 106
agreement and 83 conditions, a number of which will require formal discharge
prior to commencement or at other relevant trigger points within the
development process. Therefore where information has not been presented as
part of this RMA each section below confirms which relevant conditions would
deal with any outstanding matters.

ACCESS, HIGHWAYS AND SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT

The outline consent, whilst not seeking approval for the site access, established
the principle of new road and rail infrastructure being incorporated through the
site within limits of deviation set out and conditioned on the Parameters Plan
(YC-PP-006 Access and Circulation Routes). In addition the Environmental
Statement and accompanying Transport Assessment and Travel Plan
demonstrated that the new access road, along with minor revisions to signal
timings, where feasible, would generally mitigate the development’s impact on
the highway network. It was accepted that at some junctions where mitigation
measures were not feasible congestion and queuing would occur and that
effects would moderate adverse, however the impact on road safety would be
negligible.

This reserved matters application is therefore not required to revisit issues
which have already been agreed through the granting of outline consent and is
assessed in the context of whether the proposals accord with what was set out

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

Page 37

at outline stage and to establish whether the conclusions of the ES still remain
valid.

Highway Network Impacts

The outline planning approval (OPA) included a detailed Transport Assessment
(TA) and Framework Travel Plan (FTP) which considered in depth the impacts
of the development on the highway network. The Council’s strategic traffic
model was utilised to estimate how additional vehicular traffic generated by
York Central would be distributed across the city’s highways and to the
Strategic Road Network (Trunk Roads) operated by Highways England. These
figures were based upon the full scope of the application which is unlikely to be
built out and as such was considered to provide a worst case scenario to trip
generation which was accepted by CYC Highway Officers and Highways
England.

The original TA for the OPA forecast delays on the local road network (LRN) (for
Leeman Road Tunnel Option 2) to be 'Medium' and 'Low' for the strategic road
network (A64). It also showed that there would be an increase in traffic flow on
the southern part of the Inner Ring Road (IRR) with one junction experiencing
an increase in volume of 2.3% to a capacity of 93.4% which was not considered
significant. Other links (e.g. A59 and Water End) showed an increase in flows of
over 100 vehicles, with other routes in the western part of the city including the
Outer Ring Road also showing increases in traffic.

Local junction modelling was undertaken at 12 junctions in the vicinity of the site
and two VISSIM Microsimulation models were developed to test in more detalil
the impacts at York Station and Water End, respectively. Three junctions were
identified as operating over practical capacity and one over capacity, these
were:

Water End — Boroughbridge Road
Water End — Clifton Green
Tadcaster Road — St. Helens Road
Water End — New Junction

The Water End corridor between the A59 and A19 would see significant
increases in traffic over the peak hour periods (0800-0900 & 1700-1800
weekday). It was accepted at outline stage that the change in conditions would
create a highway corridor which would struggle to accommodate such localised
traffic demands. In technical terms the link (at Water End) would be at or above
its theoretical operational capacity, meaning it would be saturated. The
modelling showed that there would be a doubling of journey times, extensive
lengths of slow and static traffic, with average speeds falling below 10mph. The
conditions impacted all traffic but would have a major adverse impact on any
buses operating along the corridor or, in particular, approaching via the A59.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 38

However the 2033 modelling scenario indicated that traffic reassigns away from
the A19, as a result of the saturated conditions on Water End.

5.13 At outline stage Officers therefore considered it essential that these highway
impacts be mitigated through minor amendments to improve optimisation and
funding was secured via the s106 agreement to guarantee delivery of potential
measures through a Travel Plan (TP). The TP could assist in reducing the
projected number of car trips to the development by 30% and suppressing the
level of demand through managing the volume of parking on site, particularly at
employment sites. CYC Highway Officers considered that achieving this would
ensure that the impact on the network would be within manageable levels.

5.14 Although this RMA for infrastructure would not result in any additional traffic
generation (aside from construction traffic) an additional Transport Report has
been submitted to take into account minor changes to the highway layout and
modelling refinements made since outline approval to test the operation of the

highway network with these changes in place. The changes to the layout
include:

e The pedestrian crossings at both ends of Leeman Road Tunnel / Marble
Arch have been relocated slightly and signal timings of crossings amended;

e The geometry of the multi-storey car parking access road has been updated;

e A bus lane is provided along the site access road (Cinder Street) on the
inbound approach to Leeman Road tunnel with priority traffic signals;

¢ A layby and turning area is provided immediately west of Leeman Road
Tunnel for the drop-off / pick-up and turning of the National Railway Museum
(NRM) road train;

¢ A layby for two visitor coaches for the NRM to set down is provided at
Museum Square; and

e Pedestrian and cycle crossing provision at the Water End site access have
been relocated and signal timings amended.

5.15 The Transport Report shows that there are predicted changes in general traffic
and bus journey times in the York Station and Water End modelling, however
the changes are reported to be minor with some increase and some decrease in
journey times. The new bus lane and priority signals through the York Central
site in the York Station VISSM Modelling lead to a journey time improvement of
around 35 seconds for buses travelling inbound in the AM peak. There is
predicted to be a slight journey time reduction for outbound buses compared
with the Do Something Updated model. The Do Something Updated model
being an updated traffic modelling exercise which reflected comments made by
CYC prior to the resolution to grant outline planning permission. This was to
address concerns relating to instances of traffic blocking back along Leeman
Road into the tunnel leading to queuing back into Lendal Arch Gyratory and to
enable Marble Arch signals to be better co-ordinated with the Lendal Arch

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

Page 39

Gyratory signals to improve flow through the tunnel and prevent occurrences of
blocking back.

The Transport Report considers that the addition of the bus lane, bus priority
signals and slight changes to the pedestrian crossing provision and timings do
not have a detrimental impact on general traffic journey times along the site
access road.

Based upon the traffic modelling undertaken, it is proposed to provide a
pedestrian/ cycle crossing on Water End which is phased with the new
signalisation of the York Central Site Access Road during peak hours. Itis
proposed that the pedestrian/cycle stage will operate at the same time as the
all-red stage at the site access junction (once every 2 minutes). It should
however be noted that timings of the signalling can be adjusted by the Highway
Authority once the infrastructure is in place to ensure the most efficient flow of
traffic. Junction layout changes at the Water End site access improve access
for pedestrians, however lead to slight journey time increases (by around 15-20
seconds) for general traffic travelling along eastbound and westbound routes on
Water End, and the Salisbury Road Outbound route in the AM peak, compared
with the Do Something Updated. For all other routes, there is minimal
difference. In the PM peak, journey times are very similar to those reported for
the Do Something Updated.

The Transport Report considers that the scheme provides significant benefits
for pedestrians and cyclists, connecting Water End with the city centre.
Changes to the scheme since the OPA improve access for pedestrians and
cyclists and include bus lane provision on Cinder Street. The report therefore
concludes that the changes in journey times as a result of highway design
changes are acceptable and would not unduly affect highway operation from
that presented as part of the OPA scheme and therefore the conclusions within
the OPA ES remain valid. Highway Officers accept these conclusions.

It is noted that there have been a number of representations received raising
concerns with respect to traffic congestion both within and around the site,
concerns with respect to impacts of the signalisation of Marble Arch on traffic
congestion, delays in public transport and impacts on the wider road network,
including accessibility of local schools. In addition there have been suggestions
of a bus gate through Leeman Road/Marble Arch Tunnel and these comments
have been considered within the response from CYC Highways. It is however
considered that the impacts on the highway network as set out above have
been adequately assessed and any relevant mitigation is secured through the
conditions attached at outline stage and the Section 106 agreement.

New Access into the York Central site from Water End

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

Page 40

The outline application set out the indicative location of the new primary site
access, which was approved within an area of deviation on the Parameter
Plans. In addition to the proposed new access there are two existing access
points to the site, these being through Leeman Road Tunnel via Station Rise to
the east and from Kingsland Terrace through Leeman Road underpass to the
North. The reserved matters application is in line with the indicative access
shown on the Parameters Plans approved at outline stage.

Condition 39 of the OPA stated that the access from Water End should include
the following details:

e The provision of a new signal controlled junction;

e Controlled crossings for pedestrians and cyclists on Water End and the new
access road;

e The provision on Water End for three traffic lanes of a minimum dimension of
3.0m (unless otherwise agreed);

e The provision of improved facilities for cyclists and pedestrians of adequate
width;

e Segregated two way cycle paths which are a minimum 3.5m width.

Highway Officers have considered the highway impacts as a result of the
creation of this new access in the position shown, taking into account the
requirements of Condition 39, and have confirmed that the proposed access is
acceptable and accords with Condition 39 parts 1), 2) and 3). However, for
element 4, the shared unsegregated cycle/pedestrian route on the west side of
Water End bridge is 3.0m wide, and although this meets with what is generally
regarded as the preferred minimum on an unsegregated route it neither allows
for an additional 500mm width that is required next to a vertical feature
exceeding 600m height (bridge parapet) nor an additional 200mm adjacent to
the kerb to provide a 3.0m 'effective width'. Highways Officers have reviewed
this and consider it to be acceptable as it is the best design achievable within
the available land, taking account of other requirements under Condition 39.
The shared unsegregated cycle/ pedestrian route on the east side of Water End
bridge is 4.0m wide and provides the 3.0m 'effective width' taking into account
the two 500mm additional widths required for the parapets either side. For
element 5) (segregated two way cycle paths) there was a contradiction within
the OPA Committee Report Paragraph 16.40 which stated that the 3.5m two
way segregated cycle route between Water End and Lendal Gyratory is
considered sufficient. The proposals are therefore on balance considered
acceptable and in general accordance with the outline approval.

Road Layout and Design

In order to improve the overall accessibility of the site various highway
Improvements are incorporated into the existing highway to ensure safe

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.24

5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

Page 41

crossing and entry for pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles. The scheme includes
a new segregated bridge alongside Severus Bridge to facilitate the widening
within the carriageway and the re-provision of a segregated path for pedestrians
and cyclists. The new junction would incorporate signal-controlled crossings (to
be integrated with the main signals) for pedestrians and cyclists to cross both on
Water End and across the mouth of the new junction.

The proposed access road design and layout is as anticipated at outline stage
with a primary vehicle route through the site, secondary vehicle route around
Foundry Way and a rejection loop off Cinder Street and the pedestrian/
cycle/route/servicing/ emergency vehicle route through Hudson Boulevard and
south of Foundry Way as defined by the approved Access and Circulation
Routes Parameter Plan.

The new western access will continue into the site as a new bridge over the East
Coast Mainline (ECML). At this point the character of the access would change
to that of a 20mph street, which has a different balance of functions between
movement and that of place creation which are considered further within the
design section of this report. The road will continue through the site and will
include a segregated cycle path on the north (park) side, a wide landscaped
verge comprising substantial tree species and a footway, before the green
corridor, parkland. The opposite side will include generous footway width. It is
proposed that a number of wide and landscaped central medians will form an
essential component of the street design identified at outline stage which would
aid in reducing the speed of vehicles. A series of pedestrian-cycle crossing
points will be provided, which will link the development on the south side and the
parkland, matching desire lines. A number of bus stops will be provided along
the street, which comply with CYC standards and provide space for waiting.
Highways Officers consider that overall the design and layout are appropriate
and that if supported by adequate signhage, should result in appropriate vehicle
speeds in accordance with the Design Guide.

Park Street would become Cinder Street as it runs through the commercial
area. The parameters for the main highway will continue, however a cycle and
pedestrian-only route will be included named Hudson Boulevard. The widths of
carriageway and footways, provision of medians, bus stops and crossing points
would continue throughout.

A small bus hub will be provided to the south of Museum Square, comprising 2
bus stops in each direction. This will serve York Railway Station, NRM and
office workers. Bus stops will be provided in laybys with shelters, seating and
timetable information.

Condition 40 of the OPP states ‘the reserved matters application(s), which
include block F (as defined in the Parameter Plans), shall include details of
provision for accommodating bus priority measures (inbound 3.5m wide bus

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.29

5.30

5.31

5.32

Page 42

lane). The details shall include landscaping to be installed in advance of
installation of the bus lane. These details shall be approved by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the relevant works and the
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Although Block F will not be developed at this stage the Applicant has decided
to include provision for the required bus lane within this RMA given that it is an
integral part of the road design.

Overall having had regard to the layout and design of the road, cycle and
pedestrian routes through the site CYC Highways are satisfied that the
proposals are acceptable.

Wilton Rise/Chancery Rise Access

The outline application included provision for a pedestrian/cycle link between
York Central and Holgate Road with two potential options shown. Despite
concerns expressed by local residents regarding the suitability of this access,
this application does not seek approval for this link at this stage. Condition 42 of
the outline approval states that ‘Prior to the first occupation of any development
in development zones B, C, D, E, and F a scheme for the pedestrian and cycle
link between the access and circulation routes within York Central site and
Holgate Road (either via Wilton Rise or Chancery Rise as annotated as options
3a and 3b on parameter plan YC-PP 006 Access and Circulation Routes) shall
be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in
accordance with the approved details.” These details will therefore need to be
provided at the relevant phase within the overall development where it will need
to be ensured that the proposals enable accessibility for cyclists and
pedestrians including those with mobility issues in order to provide the attractive
east/west route envisaged at outline stage.

Leeman Road — Kingsland Terrace

The application includes a new link between the new western access (Park
Street) to the existing highway network on the northern side of the site. The new
section of connecting link will include off-carriageway pedestrian and cycle
lanes for travel in both directions.

There will be far fewer vehicles using Leeman Road east of the underpass when
the new through route is constructed and Leeman Road is closed at the NRM.
The type and speed of traffic along this section of Leeman Road will change as
it becomes primarily a residential street, with measures to reallocate space and
make walking and cycling comfortable and safe. The NRM will however retain
an access. CYC Highway Officers are therefore satisfied with the overall layout
in this part of the site.

Marble Arch

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 43

5.33 Condition 41 of the OPA states the Primary Vehicle Route where it would pass
through Leeman Road Tunnel and Station Rise to its junction with Station Road,
shall include the following elements:

¢ A single traffic lane which will operate under traffic signal control.

¢ Signal controls at both ends of the main tunnel together with controlled
crossing facilities for pedestrians and cyclists.

e A two way cycle path within the tunnel and continuing east to War Memorial
Gardens.

e The widening of the footway (on the south-western side of Station
Rise/adjacent to the Principal Hotel) to a minimum of 2m at point.

5.34 The application includes a layout which accords with Condition 41 other than in
respect of the footways. The width of the south-western side of the footway on
Station Rise has been improved in some areas through increasing the width of
the footway to 3m. There is however a pinch point at the junction of Station Rise
and Station Road where the footway width is 1.8m. However, due to land
ownership issues and the existing design of the highway the width of the
footway cannot be altered in this location. This is approximately 2% of the
overall footway length from Station Avenue to the Leeman Road Tunnel.
Highways Officers have confirmed that the highway requirements are not in
accordance with Condition 41 in that the footway is smaller than originally
intended, however this would not have any significant detriment to users given
the limited nature of the reduction and given that it is the best achievable
solution within the land available.

5.35 Some objections have been received from local residents with respect to Marble
Arch being an unpleasant route for pedestrians and cyclists with debris, water
ingress and poor lighting. The Applicant has confirmed that the tunnel will be
resurfaced and that a later reserved matters application should bring forward a
detailed environment enhancement which potentially could include cladding,
lighting, street art etc to improve the route for its users and to encourage its use.

5.36 Some residents feel that cyclists would be safer being kept away from the road
under Marble Arch. However, the proposals as presented in this reserved
matters application are in accordance with the indicative design agreed at
outline stage and CYC Highway Officers accept that the proposed
arrangements are acceptable with respect to the cycle provision.

5.37 Representations have been received which raise concern that Marble Arch
Tunnel would be operating at 90% of its capacity at its peak which makes it
extremely vulnerable to incidents such as breakdowns which could have
significant negative effects on the flow of traffic in the south and west of the city
centre. Highway Officers understand the concerns which are also applicable to

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.38

5.39

5.40

5.41

Page 44

many other roads in the city centre, including Marble Arch Tunnel as it currently
operates. The Highway Authority have however confirmed that they employ
Network Monitoring Officers who monitor traffic on the network and are able to
take prompt action to address issues of this type in the unlikelihood that they
arise. They therefore raise no objections with respect to this.

NRM Road Train

A layby and turning area immediately west of Leeman Road tunnel for drop off /
pick up and turning of the National Railway Museum road train are proposed.
The road train arriving from the city centre will pull in to the layby for passengers
to alight and board. The train will then u-turn in the space available to the south
of the carriageway and the signal timings of the Leeman Road tunnel will allow
the road train to turn out to head back in to the city centre while the pedestrian
crossing is operational. The new arrangements for the road train are expected
to become operational once the development of Museum Square commences
and the road train stop within the National Railway Museum forecourt becomes
unavailable. CYC Highways have confirmed that these arrangements are
acceptable in terms of highway impacts and that a Traffic Regulation Order
(outside of the planning process) will be required to manage use of the bays.

Coach Access

A layby by Museum Square is to be provided to enable two coaches servicing
the National Railway Museum to set down / pick up passengers. The Applicant
has advised that European coaches will not be permitted to use these bays as
passengers would not be able to alight onto the road carriageway. It has been
agreed by the National Railway Museum that where European coach parties
visit the National Railway Museum, it tends to be as part of a wider tour of York
and therefore would drop off elsewhere within the city centre. CYC Highways
have confirmed that these arrangements are acceptable in terms of highway
impacts and that a Traffic Regulation Order (outside of the planning process)
will be required to manage use of the coach bays.

Closure of Leeman Road

Whilst there has been strong objection from local residents regarding the
closure of Leeman Road, the impacts on the highway network, on local
businesses and on pedestrian and cycle accessibility as a result of its closure
were considered in detail as part of the Transport Assessment accepted at
outline stage and the anticipated journey times as a result of its closure were
considered acceptable.

CYC Highways clarified that the additional journey time by car to a business
closest to the point where Leeman Road is to be stopped up (Leeman Road
Auto Services) is approximately 2.5 minutes via the new access road and the

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.42

5.43

5.44

5.45

Page 45

western section of Leeman Road, assuming free flow conditions. Therefore, the
Impact on local businesses is not considered to be significant.

Royal Mail has raised detailed concerns with respect to impacts of the
alterations to Leeman Road on their business which relate primarily to the
following aspects:

e Proposals limiting access to the Delivery Office during the construction
phase. Highway Officers have noted that some disruption to the road
network and traffic in the area is inevitable but that this will be managed
through the Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) to be
discharged under Condition 15 which will include a Construction Travel Plan
and appropriate Street Works processes, which would be carried out in
dialogue with Royal Mail and other stakeholders.

e The closure of Leeman Road from approximately the western entrance to the
NRM to the new highway immediately west of the Leeman Road Tunnel and
the reduction of the Leeman Road Tunnel to a single carriageway with a
one-way working system controlled by traffic signals will both cause
increased journey time and delay to Royal Mail vehicles travelling west to /
from the Delivery Office. This concern is noted but the principle of the
closure of Leeman Road and the one-way-working system for the tunnel
were accepted at outline stage.

The closure of part of Leeman Road will require cyclists to travel around the
NRM at all times of the day/night and for pedestrians to travel around the NRM
outside the museum’s opening hours, currently 10am to 5pm. The impacts on
local residents accessibility to the City Centre was assessed at outline stage
and it was considered that sufficient measures and controls had been put in
place both through conditions and through the ‘Sustainable Transport
Measures’ included within the S106 Agreement for which the £3,892,000
‘sustainable Transport Contribution’ could be used. The list of improvements
that 'may include but is not limited to' under 'Pedestrian and Cycle infrastructure'
in Schedule 4 of the S106 Agreement contains 'Improvements to the Riverside
pedestrian / cycle path'. It is therefore considered that there are measures in
place which could improve accessibility for residents who currently use the
Cinder Path (between Jubilee Terrace and Scarborough Bridge) this being the
most direct route to the city centre for residents of the Leeman Road area.

Furthermore, Condition 45 of the outline approval requires that prior to the
closure of Leeman Road for pedestrians and cyclists a scheme for a new
alternative route for pedestrians and cyclists and details of a pedestrian access
through the NRM extension shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
LPA and shall be implemented before Leeman Road closes.

The closure is part of a Stopping Up Order which is a separate legal process to
the planning application and is currently with the Department of Transport for

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.46

5.47

5.48

5.49

Page 46

consideration. The stopping up of Leeman Road will however not take place
until the new access road is open and is controlled through Condition 45. CYC
Highways have confirmed that temporary diversions will be in place during any
works and these are included within the RMA submission.

Comments have been made from local residents regarding accessibility of
emergency services if Leeman Road is closed. The Agents have confirmed that
they have considered how emergency vehicles and servicing vehicles will
access different parts of the site and they can appropriately use all the roads
through the site, including Park Street, Leeman Road Link, Foundry Way and
Cinder Street as well as Hudson Boulevard. Vehicle tracking has been
undertaken and the roads can appropriately accommodate the required
vehicles. Further consideration will also be given when the individual plots come
forward as separate RMAs. These arrangements have been accepted by CYC
Highway Officers.

Parking provision

Some residents have expressed concern regarding the highway impacts arising
from displaced on street parking provision. This application includes a limited
number of parking spaces, 21 spaces on Foundry Street and 8 parking bays
along Park Street.

In addition, to facilitate the construction of the new access road, the displaced
car parking provision located along Cinder Lane currently serving York Rail
Station will be provided on a temporary basis, during construction, on land
within development plots B, C, D, F, G and H (as illustrated on Parameter Plan
‘Development Zones — Ground Level Uses)’. The total provision will not exceed
the existing provision. A total of 1372 temporary parking spaces would be
provided in these plots. This compares to 1475 existing spaces for commuter
parking, NR & Rail operational parking, and NRM staff and visitor parking.
Additional existing car parking is also provided off Leeman Road in areas
largely outside the RMA boundary, so will not be affected by this application.
Therefore CYC Highways consider that sufficient parking is provided across the
site in order to limit parking impacts around the wider highway network.
Furthermore the S106 Agreement includes 'Residential Parking Measures' in
Schedule 4, 'Sustainable Transport', forming part of the sustainable transport
measures to manage the impact of additional parking in residential streets
within an approximately 20 min. walk from the outer boundary of the site.

Objections have been received concerning parking being restricted on Park
Street and it has been suggested that to safeguard communities York Central
Partnership should pay for ongoing cost of a Residents’ Parking Scheme such
as that at the scheme between the University of York and parts of Badger Hill in
response to the Heslington East development. CYC Highways have confirmed
that such measures could be considered when further RMAs are submitted

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.50

5.51

5.52

5.53

5.54

Page 47

showing expected uses of the development plots and associated traffic and
parking demand. As this application does not include any dwellings or
commercial uses, the issue of parking management has not been considered in
more detail at this stage (apart from the temporary provision described above).

It should also be noted that Condition 12 of the outline approval requires the
submission of details with regard the management of site wide parking to
ensure that parking is strictly prohibited on the majority of the site in line with the
intentions set out at outline stage. In addition Condition 48 relates to site wide
parking management which needs to be discharged prior to commencement.
An Approval of Details application has been submitted for Condition 12 and
CYC Highways have confirmed that the detail provided is acceptable, but will
need to be updated as the development progresses through other RMAs. They
are still liaising with the Applicant with respect to the detail in relation to
Condition 48 and this will therefore be discharged at the appropriate stage of
development.

Travel Plan/Encouraging Sustainable Transport Modes

The outline planning application was supported by a Framework Travel Plan
(FTP) which provided an initial site-wide structure for a proposed 15 year
sustainable travel strategy to be implemented. The FTP contained a limited
level of detail however it was accepted that this would be developed further at
the reserved matters stage. Condition 37 sets out that each reserved matters
application for a building shall include a development specific Travel Plan,
therefore this condition will require formal discharge at appropriate points
throughout the development.

The FTP firmly established a quantifiable measure of success in relation to TP
objectives, namely a principal target which seeks to achieve a minimum 30%
reduction in development generated car trips (and a 10% mode split reduction in
single occupancy car journeys compared against an agreed baseline position)
using the new Western Access Corridor during the AM and PM peak (when
compared against the agreed trip rates within the TA). The FTP also committed
to restrict two-way traffic flows on the Western Access Corridor and through the
Leeman Road Tunnel to those forecast within the TA presented traffic
modelling.

The applicant will be responsible for the delivery of the necessary surveys
associated with monitoring to inform annual TP monitoring reports to be
submitted at various stages throughout the development.

Funding for the measures proposed in the FTP were secured through the s106
agreement to include:

1) Pedestrian/Cycling Infrastructure

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.55

5.56

5.57

Page 48

2) Public Transport Infrastructure (offsite bus priorities)

3) Bus Service enhancements (provision of additional frequent services)

4) Network capacity enhancements including localised junction layout changes
and the linking of groups of junctions to operate more effectively

5) Employment of a site-wide Framework Travel Plan Co-ordinator

6) Provision of City Car Club Facilities

7) Preparation and Development of Sustainable Travel Packs

8) Monitoring of On-street Parking and Introduction of Residential Controlled
Parking Zones.

A further £2.3m was required to fund enhancements to the core elements and
for pump-priming improvements to Park & Ride services, if the Travel Plan is not
achieving targets to affect a minimum 30% reduction in development generated
car trips using the new site access road during the AM and PM peak (when
compared against the agreed trip rates within the TA and the associated
quantum of occupied units at the time of the surveys being completed). This
obligation will extend to 5 years after the completion of development. In
addition a cap on car parking provision for the later stages of development will
be instigated if the 30% target is not achieved.

Given that there are no dwellings or commercial uses proposed as part of these
works an updated Travel Plan has not been submitted as part of this application.
However it is considered that there are sufficient provisions in place through
Condition 31 of the outline approval to ensure that targets for sustainable travel
are achieved and further detail will come forward as further reserved matters
applications for the buildings are submitted. It is noted that there are concerns
that the post COVID19 situation may alter the travel behaviours in future and
updated Travel Plans submitted as part of future reserved matters applications
would assess this situation further.

In response to comments made by objectors, CYC Highways have advised that
it is not possible to predict the impact of Covid-19 on future travel behaviour in
the short, medium or long-term. However, Systra has undertaken some
research (based on a sample of 1,500 UK residents) to assess any changes in
predicted future behaviour and travel habits. Some of the key findings include:

e 20% predict they will use public transport less after Covid-19 travel
restrictions are lifted - key reasons include fear of getting ill, and working from
home more.

e 1in 6 full or part-time workers (17%) believe they will work from home more
once COVID-19 travel restrictions are lifted - key reasons include: to save
commuting time, for a better work-life balance, they anticipate their employer
being more flexible, and to save the cost of commuting.

e Of those who undertake business trips/meetings, two thirds (67%) consider
virtual meetings will replace some or of all of such activities.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.58

5.59

5.60

5.61

Page 49

e Of those whose walking for leisure/exercise has increased, 81% think they
will continue with this change.

At this stage the main access road is providing an alternate route into the city
and the infrastructure for bus services will maximise the attractiveness of public
transport in terms of journey time to counter the potential decline resulting post
Covid-19. The main access also provides an attractive walking and cycle route
into the city that should support more travel by active modes. A fully effective
Travel Plan will be crucial in influencing travel behaviour towards the use of
more sustainable and active travel modes in the longer term and CYC Highways
consider that there are appropriate provisions in place through existing
conditions and the S106 to secure this.

Some residents have expressed concern with respect to the impacts on bus
services. CYC Highways have advised that changes to the frequency and
quality of bus services are outside the scope of this RMA application. Later
stages of the development will need to consider the adequacy of bus services in
terms of frequency and quality and improve them if required to provide a
frequent high quality service for an urban location. In addition, there is a
commitment in the Section106 to fund additional services through the site so
that there are 4 services per hour in each direction.

Concern has also been expressed by some residents in respect of the
accessibility of bus stops. The existing bus stops on Leeman Road comprise
two pairs of inbound/outbound bus stops (one located close to Carlisle Street
and the other by the NRM Great Hall Entrance), an outbound stop to the rear of
the NRM shop and one inbound by the Post Office Sorting Office. There is also
an inbound bus stop on Kingsland Terrace and an outbound stop on Livingstone
Street. Currently the P&R service only runs inbound on Leeman Road whereas
other services operate inbound and outbound. The design and access
statement states that existing local bus services which currently use Leeman
Road will be routed through the site, with a new bus link and stops to be
provided on Park Street. The spacing of these stops has been designed so that
all residents of York Central will be within easy reach of bus services. The
coverage of the Leeman Road Island area will be considered by CYC and the
bus operators before they are rerouted, with S106 funding used, where
required, to ensure adequate coverage. Highway Officers have noted that this
decision would be made by bus operators in conjunction with CYC teams and is
therefore outside the scope of this planning application. The S106 agreement
also states that the owners covenant with the Council not to commence
development of blocks 2 and 3 until the instalment (£930,000) of the
Sustainable Transport Contribution has been paid to the Council.

There have been a number of objections received with respect to cycling
provision throughout the site including the provision across the new bridges, not
conforming with Government Guidance and raising safety concerns for users.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.62

5.63

5.64

Page 50

Highway Officers have reviewed the proposed cycle routes and submitted plans
have been updated to reflect the latest national guidance for Cycle
Infrastructure Design (LTN 1/20) as far as possible. The proposed cycling
infrastructure comprises of a substantial network of mostly segregated routes,
which are given priority over motorised traffic at junctions with side roads and
include pedestrian crossing facilities for the main pedestrian routes, reflecting
the user hierarchy adopted by CYC. Shared (pedestrian and cyclist) areas have
been reduced as far as possible. In a few areas, land constraints and existing
infrastructure have limited the opportunities to provide cycle infrastructure which
is fully compliant with LTN 1/20. Highways Officers accept that a compromise
had to be reached for these areas which include:

e Water End northbound, where cycle and pedestrian provision is proposed as
shared due to limited available land and existing infrastructure;

e Water End new cycle and pedestrian bridge to remain as proposed (4m
wide) as widening the bridge would result in significant additional costs
(different design and additional construction costs);

¢ Leeman Road/Station Rise, where land availability and existing
infrastructure constrain pedestrian and cycle facilities.

Also concern has also been expressed regarding Museum Square which will be
crossed by many conflicting transport users requiring physical barriers and that
there are too many shared use routes for pedestrians and cyclists causing
problems for people hard of hearing and who have sight loss which do not
adequately consider the Disability Discrimination Act. The Applicants have
advised in respect of Museum Square that this area is still to be designed in
detail and will need to consider the various users of the space in order to provide
a suitable gateway space for the development. This area will be included in a
future reserved matters application.

Construction Traffic Impacts

The ES provided an assessment of potential construction traffic impacts
associated with the Phase 1 Infrastructure scheme. Trips were based on the
principal construction activities and estimates of construction personnel each
month through the construction period. The peak (worst case) number of daily
movements was anticipated to be approximately 50-70 HGVs per day and
70-100 car/LGVs per day. It is anticipated that the construction vehicle
movements would be the same as those reported in the ES and accepted by
Highways Officers as part of the outline scheme.

It is intended that construction access points will be addressed through the
Construction Environmental Management Plan which is secured through
Condition 15 and which needs to be discharged prior to commencement of
development.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.65

5.66

5.67

5.68

Page 51

Residents have expressed concern that there is no detailed consideration of
use of rail instead of road transport for construction traffic. Section 3.1.13 of the
Environmental Compliance Statement advises that 'The Applicant is exploring
the option of bringing construction material to the site via rail which could result
in the reduction of approximately 1,000 tonnes of CO2." At this stage the
Applicant is unsure whether this is a viable option however it is being reviewed.

Highway Conclusions

Overall having had regard to all of the highway related issues CYC Highways
have confirmed that the proposals are acceptable with respect to the impact on
the highway network subject to conditions. The proposals are in line with what
was accepted at outline stage in terms of traffic generation, impact on the
existing highway network and the layout and design of the roads, footways and
cycleways. There are also sufficient measures in place through conditions and
the Section 106 attached at outline stage in order to promote sustainable travel
and this is aligned with the Council’s transportation policies. The proposals are
therefore in accordance with the NPPF and Local Plan Policies set out above.
Furthermore the Environmental Compliance Statement confirms that the
changes in journey times as a result of the highway design modifications are
considered acceptable and will not unduly affect highway operation from that
presented as part of the OPA. Consequently, there are no additional effects
than were reported in the traffic and transport chapter, and as a result the
conclusions of the ES remain valid.

HERITAGE IMPACTS

The OPA Environmental Statement, accompanying Heritage Statement and
technical appendices confirmed that following mitigation the proposals would
have a moderate adverse effect on heritage assets arising from demolition of
some of the buildings and disruption due to construction. All other effects on
heritage assets were said to have a slightly adverse or slight, moderate or large
beneficial effect. These impacts were accepted at outline stage.

The impacts on heritage assets are assessed in the context of whether the
detailed proposals, now that the alignment of the road and bridges have been
determined, accord with what was set out at outline stage and to establish
whether the conclusions of the ES remain valid. In addition applications should
be considered in accordance with the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, which states in section 66(1) that local
authorities shall have ‘special regard to the desirability of preserving the building
or its setting’ when considering proposals affecting listed buildings or their
settings. Section 72 of the same Act requires local planning authorities to pay
special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of a conservation area.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.69

5.70

5.71

5.72

5.73

Page 52

Relevant paragraphs of Chapter 16 of the NPPF set out how LPAs should
approach determining applications that affect heritage assets. When
considering the impact of proposals on designated heritage assets great weight
is to be given to the asset’s conservation and any harm to or loss of the
significance of such assets requires clear and convincing justification. Thus, the
provisions of the NPPF import a requirement to identify whether there is any
harm to designated heritage assets and if so to assess the impact of such harm.
If there is harm, paragraphs 195 and 196 of the NPPF are then engaged
according to whether the harm is substantial or less than substantial.

Impact on Listed Buildings within the York Central Site

There are three Grade Il Listed structures on the south side of Leeman Road,
namely the former North Eastern Railway Goods Station, the Weigh Office and
the gate piers and gates.

The OPA ES included a Heritage Statement which set out the baseline
description of key heritage assets within and around the site. The report
acknowledged that the York Central site still contains many railway buildings
seen at the turn of the twentieth century valued as part of York’s industrial
heritage. The buildings were considered to have greater significance when
considered as a whole than a set of individual buildings. The most significant of
the NRM buildings being the Goods Station, with its unusually intact sequence
of Goods Station, Weigh Office and entrance Gateposts all of which are Grade I
listed and still associated with a surviving Coal Office, a remnant of the Coal
Depot, stables, two LNER traders stores and a mess room which were
considered important examples of Victorian processes for handling goods and
coal.

The OPA ES stated that the Grade Il listed forecourt grouping therefore have a
high significance, although the multiple lines of railings and fencing together
with the significant levels of parking currently detract from the setting of these
buildings. The setting analysis submitted therefore recognised that the
proposed development offered positive opportunities for the heritage of the
railway land. In addition impacts to heritage assets within the site have been
mitigated by incorporating as many of the assets as possible into the design
including road routes in order to limit their effects on the setting of these
buildings. The Council agrees that the approach taken to this of area of the site
is appropriate and should have a positive impact on the heritage assets.

The reserved matters application does not significantly alter the impacts on the
setting of these listed buildings beyond those identified at outline stage,
however as part of minor highway modifications the cycle path along Cinder
Lane will now run alongside the wall on the Goods Station side (i.e within the
Goods Station forecourt) rather than outside its boundary which differs from that

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.74

5.75

5.76

S5.77

Page 53

shown at outline stage. Having had regard to this minor change it is not
considered to alter the impact on the setting of the Goods Station forecourt from
what was envisaged. Further reserved matters applications will be submitted to
address other areas of public realm immediately surrounding these listed
buildings including the Coal Drops and Museum Square and these should
include interpretation displays to help explain the historic function of the goods
station and its buildings as part of the recommended mitigation measures set
out in the OPA ES.

Impact on the setting of the Conservation Area

The station and land to the east of it (including the city walls) lie within the
Central Historic Core Conservation Area. Character Area 22 of the
Conservation Area relates to the Railway Area which contains a mix of building
types, of varying scale and period with many surviving features which relate to
the arrival and development of the railway which form a strong narrative when
considered alongside the buildings within the York Central site. Many of the
surviving buildings within this part of the conservation area are listed and as
such have a high significance within a historic setting of high significance.

At outline stage it was recognised that direct impacts on the setting of heritage
assets in the Historic Core Conservation Area as a whole were relatively minor.
A small number of visual connections would be lost through the demolition of
buildings and development of buildings during later reserved matters phases,
however it was considered that these may not necessarily constitute an adverse
effect, particularly in terms of the railway heritage of the city. At outline stage it
was assumed that several redundant buildings in the railway yards could be
conserved and brought back into use; they could then (through positive design
interventions) be reintegrated into York’s wider ‘railway area’ setting. This
would benefit the former NER buildings in the Railway Area conservation area,
however these would be part of further reserved matters applications. Overall
having had regard to the impacts of the proposed infrastructure on the setting of
conservation area it is considered that appropriate consideration has been
given to impacts through the design and alignment of the road and retention of
buildings where possible and that any impacts would be less than substantial.

At outline stage it was established that there would be no impact on St. Paul’s
Square and Holgate Road Conservation Areas and having considered the
layout and design this is still considered to be the case.

Impact on non-designated heritage assets

The Heritage Statement submitted at outline stage recognised that adverse
effects would arise from the fact industrial buildings set in space would be
replaced by clustered blocks of flats and offices, roads and landscaped public
spaces. With rail lines from at least 1870s being removed this would leave the

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.78

5.79

5.80

Page 54

landscape less legible as a piece of industrial archaeology. The report therefore
recommended a number of railway buildings for conservation, whilst others
were recommended for demolition including two prominent railway sheds (the
Wagon Works and Concrete Depot) amounting to loss of heritage value. This
was accepted at outline stage through the approval of a Demolition Plan. In
addition Condition 65 was attached to ensure these buildings were recorded
prior to demolition and this condition will be discharged at the appropriate stage
of development. The outline approval also envisaged that some of the railway
lines would be stored and could be incorporated into key areas of public open
space (e.g Central Park). It will therefore be important to ensure that these are
incorporated within the reserved matters application for Central Park in order to
ensure that this heritage is not lost and also to ensure that the ecological
enhancement measures which envisage the reuse of railway track and ballast
are realised.

The Civic Trust have raised concern that a place to re-establish the Firehouse
should be identified. The Applicant has confirmed that the Firehouse will be
dismantled and stored, however they are unsure at this stage where it will be
reassembled, this could be within the Central Park phase or elsewhere so again
it will be important to ensure that this is incorporated within a future reserved
matters application.

The Coal Drops was an area of the site which was also recognised as being of
heritage importance. Whilst the application proposes the retention of this area it
would increase the ground levels by between 1.5m to 2.5m, which hides a
proportion of the walls, however it is noted some level changes were envisaged
and accepted at outline stage. The OPA D&A stated that the removal of parking
from the coal drops would transform the setting of nearby listed buildings and
the removal of the wall barrier and replacement with railings to the Goods
Station enclosure with open landscaped boundary would improve the visual and
physical connections across New Square. The initial changes proposed to the
Coal Drops are therefore considered acceptable subject to detail regarding the
infill material and temporary surfacing and treatment to existing walls being
agreed through condition. It should be noted that whilst the levels are to be
altered at this stage the final landscaping and material finish within this area
would form part of a later reserved matters application for the public realm.
Having had regard to this the reserved matters application accords with the
detail set out at outline stage and as such the proposals are considered to have
a less than substantial impact on non-designated heritage assets.

Impact on setting of Listed Buildings outside the York Central site

The outline application was accompanied by a Heritage Report and Visual
Impact Assessment which identified impacts on the setting of and views to and
from the city’s most renowned buildings, these being the Minster and the City
Walls (both of which are Grade | Listed and of very high significance). In

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.81

5.82

5.83

Page 55

addition York Railway Station (Grade II* Listed), Holgate Windmill, Poppleton
Road School and the Fox Inn on Holgate Road (Grade Il Listed) were all
identified as being of high significance.

The Council’s Urban Designer acknowledged at outline stage that harm is
caused to a number of sensitive settings which is inevitable given the scale of
development and current open characteristics of the site, where this openness
has contributed to the setting of heritage assets. However it was accepted at
outline stage that the harm was at the lower range and that excellent design at
reserved matters could mitigate some of this harm.

The OPA Environmental Statement identified that overall development was not
considered to detract from the historic setting of the City as a whole.
Accordingly, whilst the proposed development does impact on important vistas,
such as the view from Water End Bridge towards York Minster, it was
acknowledged at outline stage that any development on York Central of a scale
which is commensurate with the policy objectives on achieving appropriate
densities, should reasonably be expected to impact on some views across the
site towards York Minster. However, the opening up of this largely inaccessible
site to members of the public through the formation of the infrastructure
proposed as part of this reserved matters application is likely to create new
views across the Site and towards the historic city. This will include views from
the new access and access road, the central park and new views from Water
End and Millennium Green towards the Minster, afforded by the removal of
Poplar trees to facilitate construction. This in turn would enable a greater
appreciation of these buildings and their setting.

Page 24 of the OPA Design Guide states that RMAs shall be required to test the
scheme against specific townscape views subject to relevance. This is required
in order to protect views of York’s landmark buildings and structures and the
connections between them and the relationship of the historic city to the wider
landscape. Historic England have raised concerns with regard to the lack of
assessment in this regard as the views provided at outline stage do not provide
sufficient detail now the alignment of the road and bridges are known. The
Council’'s Urban Design and Conservation Manager considers that there will be
little sensitivity on heritage impacts as a result of the road alignment within the
limits of deviation as it is the buildings that will make the majority of the harm.
There is scope within the development plots for buildings to be aligned in the
most favourable position so as to minimise impacts wherever possible. In
addition the roads will create some benefits by setting up new views to the
historic city and landscape. In terms of the various options for road alignment
(within the limits of deviation already approved) the impact on the historic
environment would not be considered so significant and it is therefore likely that
other factors in dictating the chosen alignment would outweigh the limited harm.
To evidence this the applicant would have to demonstrate that this assumption
Is correct, however no additional views have been submitted at this stage.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.84

5.85

5.86

Page 56

The Applicants do not consider that additional views are necessary and have
advised that the alignment of the road is tightly defined by the primary vehicle
route shown on Parameter Plan YC-PP 006 with limited lateral and vertical
movement allowable. There is therefore no opportunity to make significant
alterations to the alignment or levels, particularly when highway safety
considerations are taken into account. Additionally, they consider that the
development parameters have been formed to specifically maintain views
through to assets such as the city walls, the arched gables of the railway station
and the grouped assets of the Minster, the Chapter House and St Winifred’s
Catholic Church. There will, therefore, be moments along that route where
views to the historic core will be available. The response from the Agent is
accepted, however it is important to note that future reserved matters schemes
for proposed buildings will be expected to provide sufficient evidence and
justification to demonstrate that they have been positioned within their plot(s) so
as to avoid impacts on the setting of key historic buildings wherever possible.

NPPF paragraph 196 advises that where a development proposal will lead to
less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset,
this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal. The
proposals align with the assessment of harm to heritage assets undertaken at
outline stage. With the exception of the impact on views which cannot be fully
quantified impacts can be assumed to be, as a worst case scenario, less than
substantial based on information submitted at outline stage. It is also
recognised that care has been taken to avoid where practicable harm to York’s
historic fabric and setting. It is therefore considered that the less than
substantial harm to heritage assets identified above are outweighed by the
public benefits arising from the proposal which would enable the key
infrastructure to be incorporated throughout the site to open it up for the wider
development approved at outline stage which bring social and economic
benefits to the city.

Archaeology

The area around York Central has produced significant archaeological remains
and the site is a complex landscape that has significant potential to preserve
locally, regionally, nationally and internationally significant archaeological
features and deposits. In particular, remains of the Roman cemetery and other
Roman period features around York Railway Station, the presence of
waterlogged peat deposits that could provide important evidence relating to the
prehistoric and Roman occupation of York and features and deposits that relate
to the development of York as one of the most important centres of railway
activity in the 19w century.

Summary of archaeological investigation to date

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.87

5.88

5.89

5.90

5.91

5.92

Page 57

An archaeological desk-based assessment, watching brief/evaluation during
geotechnical works (2018), building recording (2019 and 2020) and intrusive
evaluation/water monitoring (2020) has taken place. The aim of archaeological
evaluation is to establish the character and level of preservation of features and
deposits (including organics).

The 2018 works confirmed the existence of an extensive buried landscape
beneath the railways. This work formed the basis for an updated deposit model
to assist in informing the locations and quantity of further archaeological
evaluation and water monitoring. However, the locations for the 2018 and 2020
evaluation works were heavily dictated by areas of safe access on the site and
were not purely based on archaeological knowledge or research.

Evaluation took place during May-July 2020 and trenching revealed a few
undated features, a Roman pit and inhumation as well as other isolated finds,
agricultural soils and railway structures. However, the palaeo-environmental
results from the borehole survey and the full tier 2 hydrological report will not be
available until around February 2021 at the earliest.

This latest round of investigation supports existing evidence of the
archaeological and geo-archaeological profile of the site. The borehole survey
has shown that organic material survives sporadically in the Holgate Beck and
floodplain area. Sediments from the edge of one of the kettleholes identified
through the deposit modelling has tentatively been identified. The general
archaeological character of the site is therefore better understood allowing an
appropriate mitigation strategy to evolve.

The full geo-archaeological character and hydrological regime is however still
poorly or not at all understood. It is acknowledged by the Applicants that
currently only the preliminary results of the evaluation are available and that
further analysis and dating is required from the laboratory. The pending results
of the evaluation also need to be entered into the deposit model to further inform
the mitigation strategy for this and future RMAs.

Impacts of the proposed development on archaeology

The proposed demolitions, construction work and service diversion/creation all
have the potential to negatively impact on any surviving archaeological
resource and, in some cases, geo-archaeological deposits. The evaluation has
provided sufficient information to determine the impact of the proposals on the
archaeological deposits that exist within the upper layers of the site. However,
until the results and analysis from the laboratory, which is then interpreted
alongside the existing data, deposit model and results of the water monitoring
programme there is insufficient data to confidently say what the full impact of the
proposals will be on the deeper deposits. However, a tentative approach to

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.93

5.94

5.95

5.96

Page 58

another round of targeted evaluation has been agreed with the
geo-archaeologist, CYC and Historic England.

Further investigation is required in certain areas of the site, this will focus on the
palaeo-channel in the Holgate Beck and on the potential kettlehole. This second
phase of evaluation can however take place following determination of this
reserved matters application.

The OPA ES recognised that the implementation of an appropriate ARMP
should result in a slight adverse impact on archaeology which was accepted at
outline stage. Condition 68 attached at outline stage required that as part of any
Reserved Matters Application a detailed Archaeological Remains Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. An
updated ARMP for phase 1 has been compiled in so far as it relates to the basic
information that is currently available, however the Council’s Archaeologist has
advised that this will require updating following the completion of laboratory
work and hydrological analysis (approx. Feb 2021) therefore whilst the
Applicant’s have satisfied this condition as far as they can at this stage no
commencement on site can be made until this Condition is fully discharged. As
it was not envisaged that the ARMP be submitted in a phased manner, it is
considered prudent to attach a condition to this RMA to make clear that a further
ARMP will need to be submitted and approved prior to commencement. The
ARMP once approved together with forthcoming WSI(s) will then need to be
followed throughout the implementation of the Phase 1 RMA.

The Council’s Archaeologist has also advised that an archaeological watching
brief will be required on all groundworks which may impact into archaeological
layers including ground investigation works, grubbing up of any foundations
following initial demolition, services and construction. An archaeological
excavation will then be undertaken where necessary to remove any
archaeological deposits which are unable to be preserved in-situ. The Council’s
Archaeologist has also advised that based on the 2018 and 2020 evaluation
mitigation by record is considered to be a suitable general approach for this
scheme. However, a consistent reminder has been given to the Applicants that
in the most sensitive archaeological areas preservation in-situ may be required
depending on findings. Further evaluation in select areas may also be
undertaken ahead of the SMS to further define the extent of the excavation. The
site may also require a program of remediation which is still to be determined.

If a remediation strategy is required it will need to contain a site specific chapter
on archaeology as stated in the Historic England Land Contamination and
Archaeology guidance. The strategy should set out a methodology for
continuing groundwater monitoring during remediation works and a safe
methodology to record any archaeology revealed. This can be dealt with as part
of the discharge of Condition 56.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



5.97

5.98

5.99

Page 59

Conditions 66 (geoarchaeological deposit model) and Condition 67
(waterlogged deposits monitoring) were required to be discharged prior to
determination of the first reserved matters application. A separate application
has been submitted AOD/20/00109 to discharge these conditions and the
Council’'s Archaeologist has confirmed that the detail submitted for these
conditions is acceptable.

Historic England have made comments with respect to the Applicants approach
to Conditions 70 (Written Scheme of Investigation) and 71 (Archiving of Written
Scheme of Investigation) and the Applicants are aware that these conditions
may be triggered once further archaeological investigation has been
undertaken.

Historic England in their original response raise a number of reservations about
the archaeological information that has been submitted to support this
application. The local Councillors and MP share concerns at the lack of
information in this respect. Historic England were made aware of revisions to
the archaeological strategy which are in line with recommendations made by
the Council’s Archaeologist, however they note that additional archaeological
evaluation needs to be undertaken and this cannot commence until the results
of the works have been completed (approximately Feb 2021) they therefore
continue to object to the proposals. The Council’'s Archaeologist is in continuing
dialogue with the Applicants and Historic England to ensure that archaeological
impacts are adequately dealt with. It is acknowledged that whilst this is not ideal
there is an appropriate strategy and conditions in place to ensure that
archaeology can be appropriately dealt with.

Heritage Conclusions

5.100 Overall having had regard to impacts on heritage assets within the site and their

setting, the setting of adjacent conservation areas and the impact on
non-designated heritage assets, the proposals are not considered to result in
adverse impacts and indeed in some areas would result in benefits to the
heritage assets through enabling the re-use of buildings, opening up the site to
enable heritage assets to be better appreciated and by improving their setting.
The proposals are therefore considered acceptable and are in line with what
was envisaged at outline stage given that the road alignment and site levels are
within the limits of deviation approved. Therefore there will be no impacts on
heritage assets or their setting beyond that envisaged at outline stage and the
conclusions of the ES remain valid. The proposals would at worst have a less
than substantial impact on the setting and views of specific heritage assets
outside the site, however this is balanced against the significant public benefits
the scheme will bring forward and the fact that future reserved matters
applications for buildings on the site would need to undertake a detailed
assessment of their individual impacts when determining their position within
development plots. It is acknowledged that archaeological work is still ongoing

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 60

however the Council’'s Archaeologist is satisfied that the approach to
archaeological work and recording has been planned as far as possible at this
stage in the development and that this will be an ongoing exercise. The
proposals are therefore in accordance with the NPPF in so far as the less than
substantial impacts identified to heritage assets have been balanced against
the public benefits. As discussed above, careful consideration has been given
to the statutory duties with regard to heritage assets. As such this application is
considered to meet the requirements of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

DESIGN, LAYOUT, APPEARANCE AND LANDSCAPING

Design Guide Compliance

5.101 The Design and Access Statement (DAS) submitted at outline stage described
the design intent of the development and the key townscape and placemaking
considerations. It described how the site would be divided into five distinct
areas, each defined by a differing mix of uses and each with its own character,
responding to constraints and opportunities and to the design drivers of the
development.

5.102 The Design Guide advanced the design intent in the DAS and provided
guidance for developers in the successful delivery of the development. The
Design Guide set out mandatory requirements which subsequent RMAs would
adhere to alongside advisory aspirational guidelines which would need to be
taken into account by future developers. The Design Guide was conditioned as
part of the outline approval (Condition 7) in order to deliver a coherent approved
vision in accordance with design guidance as detailed in National Planning
Guidance.

5.103 In addition a series of parameter plans were approved at outline stage
(Condition 6) which set out key buildings across the site that would be
demolished or retained, the areas within the site where new railway additions
would be incorporated, development zones above ground, areas within which
the new primary and secondary vehicle routes would be provided as well as
routes for pedestrians and cyclists, the proposed below ground, ground floor
and upper floor level uses, development zones and maximum heights,
proposed site levels and proposed open space areas.

5.104 Each reserved matters application has to be accompanied by a Design
Compliance Statement explaining how that phase, accords with the approved
Design Guide and Parameter Plans. The application includes a compliance
statement which sets out how the proposals, in large, accord with the parameter
plans. There are however a number of areas of non-compliance with the
Design Guide/Parameters plans which can be summarised as follows:

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 61

e Page 23/ 2.3.1 states with respect to visual permeability that there may be
additional considerations which need to be addressed within any RMAs on
the site. It goes on to state that permeability is a key feature of the existing
urban fabric in York, consideration must therefore be given to visual
permeability and views through the site to landscape or historic features of
York. No additional visuals have been provided beyond those accepted at
outline stage as discussed within the heritage section of the report above.

o Page 24/ 2.4.1 states RMAs shall be required to test the scheme against
specific townscape views subject to relevance and review by the Local
Authority and Historic England. No townscape views beyond those
submitted at outline stage have been provided as discussed in the heritage
section above.

e Page 61/2 3.6.6 states that there would be a gravel garden identified to south
of Water End access required as part of brownfield habitat zone identified in
the Ecology Strategy. This appears as a tarmac surface on the submitted
layout plans, however this can be addressed through the landscape and
ecology conditions which need to be discharged.

e Page 86/4.5 states that the Primary Street at the Western Access Road from
Water End is to provide footways no less than 2.5m. The layout shows
footways of 2m which conflict with the width of footway required however has
been accepted by CYC Highways as an acceptable solution given site
constraints and land ownership issues.

e Page 102/4.5.7 states that at Cinder Street there should be central planted
medians within the section of road between Hudson and Wilton Place.
These have been omitted in order to accommodate the bus lane, however
the bus lane was added as part of the S106 requirements and as such this
has already been accepted at outline stage.

Parameters Plans Compliance

e The cycle and pedestrian route alongside the Goods Station wall and piers
are now within the goods yard and are therefore outside the limits of
deviation of circulation routes on Parameter Plan YC-PP-006, however as
set out in the heritage section this change has been accepted and has been
necessitated by a pinch point in the width of the highway so it proposes an
appropriate solution.

e Parameter Plan YC-PP-012 shows areas predominantly soft landscaped,
however there are parts of this at Water End adjacent the access road and
through Plot M which have now been omitted as well as cycleways and
footpaths alongside the proposed park now forming part of the open space
rather than the highway. It is therefore extremely important to ensure that
any areas of open space are retained within future reserved matters
applications in line with the original parameter plan and that sufficient soft
landscaping is included within the landscaping scheme. This will be secured
as part of the discharge of Conditions 23 and 24 of the outline approval.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 62

5.105 Having had regard to these departures overall they are minor deviations which
have largely come about due to site constraints. The development does,
therefore, still follow the main design parameters set out at outline stage. One
area that does however need careful consideration and control is ensuring that
the appropriate level of open space and particularly soft landscaping is provided
as it is already evident that this has been encroached upon in areas of the site
and this will need to be appropriately addressed through the discharge of
Condition 23.

5.106 Condition 23 of the outline approval requires that prior to, or concurrently with
the first reserved matters application a site wide strategy for public realm, hard
and soft landscaping shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Whilst discussions have taken place with respect to the
discharge of this condition, no site wide strategy has been submitted or
approved as yet and as such the Applicants would be in breach of this condition
should this reserved matters application be approved. Concerns have been
expressed by the Planning Officer that this should have been resolved at this
stage to ensure a coherent landscaping approach across the site, to ensure that
the Council are clear as to when public realm and landscaping may be delivered
across the wider site and during which phase this may be delivered and to
ensure that if there are any shortfalls in this reserved matters application then
they are compensated for elsewhere across the site to ensure that the
aspirations of the Design Guide are achieved. Given that Condition 24 deals
with site specific landscaping which needs to be discharged prior to
commencement, the Council are satisfied that there is a mechanism in place to
secure appropriate landscaping on this first phase. However Condition 23
needs discharging as a priority before any commencement on site and certainly
before other phases of development come forward, some of which will include
larger extents of soft landscaping and thus may have the scope to make up for
any areas identified on the Open Space Parameter Plan which have been
encroached upon as part of this phase. The Applicants have been made aware
of the necessity to discharge this condition as a priority and have indicated that
it is their intention to do so.

5.107 Given the size and scale of the site and the extent of information submitted the
following sections will focus on discussing design issues around the main areas
of the site.

Severus Road Bridge and the East Coast Mainline Bridge

5.108 The existing Severus Road Bridge spans several branches of rail, including the
East Coast Mainline, and associated Network Rail land. It is a concrete
structure with an intermediate pier and concrete parapets. The York Central
development will require an increase in the capacity of the bridge for vehicle,
pedestrian and cyclist use and an upgrade of its parapets which cannot be

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 63

achieved within the current bridge deck. To create the additional capacity a
parallel pedestrian and cycle bridge will be constructed on the southern side of
the existing structure.

5.109 The bridge is not intended as a gateway into the development in the same
way as the proposed East Coast Main Line Bridge, therefore the chosen
design is understated to provide a clear hierarchy between the two bridges.
As the south elevation of the bridge will be highly visible to vehicles,
pedestrians and cyclists travelling north away from the new development the
bridge is low key. It does however propose the same materials as the
proposed ECML bridge being constructed from weathering steel with glazing
panels and timber cladding to the steel beam. The Council’s Urban Designer
whilst satisfied with the overall design has commented on the spacing of
guarding within the bridge and feels that the design could have been
improved in this respect. He also commented that the pedestrian experience
on the existing bridge would be poor due to the 1.8m high continuous batrrier,
however on balance has confirmed that overall the new bridge would appear
an appropriate design solution subject to conditions regarding detailing and
materials.

5.110 In terms of the new ECML bridge, the Council’'s Urban Designer considers that
the proposed approach of designing a relatively low-key bridge is the correct
approach, because it will be relatively close to the new tall buildings of York
Central that will naturally be more visually dominant, and because this approach
avoids attempting to compete for attention with other existing distant landmarks
like the Minster. He considers that the bridge should be very interesting for its
slim profiled views from the side; for its skewed structure springing from the
underside abutments; for the views from it through largely visually unobstructed
guarding; and for the way the landscape around it steps, folds and curves up to
meet it as a significantly scaled continuous horizontal feature on either end.
Overall he considers that the design and appearance of the bridge should be a
great addition for York, however finer details relating to material finishes,
anti-vandalism/anti climb features, bridge lighting and maintenance would all
need to be conditioned for both bridges to ensure that they provide the finished
appearance anticipated within the submitted design documents.

5.111 A local resident has commented that if the new bridge is to be similar to
Scarborough Bridge, this is an unsightly mix of weathered steel, chromed steel,
York stone and concrete with no continuity in design and as such the proposals
need to use consistent materials. These comments are noted and a condition is
recommended regarding materials.

5.112 A local resident has also commented that the new bridge would have a
detrimental impact on the visual amenities particularly for those living along
Garnet Terrace and Garfield Terrace. These comments have been considered,
however following assessment of the visuals provided at outline stage and

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 64

having taken into account the separation distance which exists, the angle at

which the bridge is provided relative to these streets together with existing tree
planting and landscaping on Millennium Green (which would be retained as part
of the proposals) and additional landscaping proposed it is not considered that
the visual amenities would be adversely impacted upon by virtue of the bridge.

5.113 The proposed bridges are therefore considered to achieve an appropriate
design and appearance subject to conditions.

Millennium Green

5.114 The new road layout results in the loss of part of the existing Millennium
Green, however this was recognised as an inevitable part of the proposals
accepted at outline stage therefore any assessment at this stage relates to
the impacts arising from the chosen layout, design and landscaping with
ecology impacts discussed later within this report.

5.115 The proposed new road will be elevated above Millennium Green with
landscaped terraces sweeping down to Holgate Beck. Parts of the existing
path network through Millennium Green will be widened and resurfaced and
new accessible routes from the green will be provided through the terraces to
connect to the new footways on the access road and provide new
connections to Water End. Railings will be provided on the embankment
between the western access and Millennium Green. The railing will separate
the safe access areas for pedestrians from the unsafe drops. They will be a
simple vertical bar with a top rail and a handrail will be provided to facilitate
use of stairs and ramps in the same area, final details of which will need to be
discharged as part of Condition 17 (boundaries).

5.116 The Council’s Landscape Architect has confirmed that the typologies shown for
hard and soft landscaping in this area are generally acceptable although it is
recognised that the full soft and hard landscaping detail will need to be
assessed as part of the discharge of Condition 24 (landscaping).

5.117 Overall the general layout and arrangement within the Millennium Green area
appears acceptable subject to the discharge of boundary and soft and hard
landscaping details.

Relationship between the elevated road and Plot M

5.118 Across the application site there are a number of complex level changes and as
such sectional details as various points of the site have been submitted to
demonstrate the relationship between the road and the building plots beyond.
Whilst in general terms these appeared to be acceptable, the Council’s Urban
Designer raised some concerns regarding the relationship between Plot M and
the elevated road and therefore asked the Applicant to provide further detail.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 65

The Applicant provided additional sections which demonstrate the relationship
between the road and the plot which have been accepted by the Council’s
Urban Designer. However detail of the materials and finish of any hard and soft
landscaping as part of the retaining wall need to be given careful thought given
that this may be the outlook for residential properties on Plot M. This will be
dealt with through the discharge of the landscaping conditions (23 and 24) and it
Is considered that an appropriate design solution could be achieved.

Central spine road

5.119 Whilst the general layout of the roads, cycleways and footways and
overarching approach to landscaping is accepted, the Council’s Urban Designer
requested that additional graphics be provided to explain the whole experience
of the new primary route as a sequence of spaces and views that would retain
vehicles to a low speed and orchestrate the experience of distant views of key
landmarks as envisaged in the outline application. The Applicants provided a
video simulation of the road experience but this did not include detail of the
surrounding landscape or views therefore any assessment of the road as a user
experience has been a matter of judgement based on the layout and sectional
details provided with a significant reliance on appropriate hard and soft
landscaping being achieved. The submitted Design Report explains that in
order to improve the environment and experience for the public using the
footways/cycleways through the site until areas of public realm are brought
forward, the scheme will include temporary widened landscape verges adjacent
to the footway long Park Street and Hudson Boulevard which will provide
greater separation between the public and the future development hoardings.
This approach is accepted as an appropriate solution until the reserved matters
application is submitted for Central Park area and other areas of public realm.

5.120 It should be noted that whilst hard and soft landscaping including boundary
treatments and street furniture have been shown indicatively on the plans
presented, discussions are still ongoing regarding the final detail of materials
and planting. Given that there are outstanding concerns from CYC Highways,
Urban Design and the Landscape Architect these matters of detail will be
addressed through the discharge of conditions 17 (boundaries), 23 (site wide
landscaping) and 24 (landscaping). It will however be important that careful
thought and consideration is given to these matters of detail as they are a critical
element of the scheme in terms of achieving a good quality design, appearance
and user experience.

New NRM Line through Central Park

5.121 The reserved matters application seeks approval for a new NRM rail line
enclosed by a 1.2m high temporary post and rail fence which would run through
the area identified as Central Park. The OPA Design Guide and the Parameter
plan PP 012: Open Space Areas illustrates a predominantly green feel for areas

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 66

run through with NRM lines, and there is concern that whilst public access
restrictions are inevitable the stand-off either side of the NRM line takes up a
considerable area of the open space and that the character and setting has to
feel a more naturalistic space. These issues are extremely important given the
low level of public open space being provided relative to the quantity of
development. The RMA as submitted provides insufficient information with
respect to the landscaping treatment surrounding the NRM to demonstrate
compliance with the Design Guide. The Agent has advised that whilst the NRM
line is permanent the landscaping shown is a temporary measure until the
proposed RMA including the park area comes forward therefore landscaping
detail would be addressed at that stage. Furthermore the NRM, who is
responsible for the safe operation of the line, has confirmed that they would be
happy to work with the Applicant and the Council at the point at which proposals
for the main park come forward to review the rail line, including its fencing and
stand-off distances, to ensure a coherent proposal that makes the best use of
the space available and ensures the running line is a positive feature for the new
park whilst maintaining its safe operation. This approach is accepted subject to
a condition which makes it clear that the surface treatment, fencing and
landscaping, whether temporary or not, needs to be agreed in detail before
commencement to ensure compliance with the Design Guide and to ensure that
there is no detriment to open space and soft landscaping provision.

Coal Drops

5.122 The OPA Design Guide stated that the Coal Drops shall be retained, with partial
conservation and re-use along with substantial landscape improvements. It was
envisaged that there would be some level changes throughout this area to
provide a flat space to offer flexibility of use.

5.123 The existing topography in the vicinity of the Cinder Lane and the Coal Drops
varies significantly. To create a level and accessible pedestrian route from the
pedestrian crossing from the NRM entrance gate posts to the Marble Arch
Tunnel and to the Station, the existing ground level immediately to the north
of the Coal Drops car park will be raised by approximately 1.5m and at the
southern end of the Coal Drops, the ground level will be raised by
approximately 2.5m. The Council’s Urban Design and Conservation
Manager considers this an acceptable approach, however has stated that it
was envisaged that trees would be provided within the coal drops and this
area could appear very stark until this landscaping comes forward. The
Applicant has stated that this RMA only seeks to infill the area and alter the
levels with temporary hoarding placed around the area. The final hard and
soft landscaping design would be submitted as part of Condition 24 of the
OPA and would be brought forward under a future phase of development.
Whilst not ideal, this approach is accepted.

Townscape and Visual Impact
Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a




Page 67

5.124 In terms of the townscape and visual impacts arising from the proposals these
were considered in the OPA Townscape Visual Impact Assessment (TVIA)
which concluded that there would be adverse effects on townscape setting and
a number of viewpoints as a result of construction activities, but that the effects
were temporary and would vary during the construction programme. These
findings were accepted by the Council at outline stage. There are no new or
different construction effects than were reported in the OPA TVIA and as a
result the conclusions of the ES remain valid.

5.125 This reserved matters application does not include any significant above
ground structures apart from the new ECML Bridge which is within the
maximum height parameter that was assessed as part of the OPA ES and as
such no further TVIA has been submitted. The OPA ES recognised that the
design of the open spaces in particular with regard to location and species of
trees and buffer planting, could help to filter views and integrate the
development with its surroundings, however this detail would come forward as
part of any reserved matters application(s). Whilst new open spaces are not
included within this RMA there will be street planting and as such careful
consideration needs to be given to the impacts that this has on the townscape
when the detail is provided to discharge the landscaping conditions. The
submitted ESCS confirms that there will be no change to the townscape and
visual impacts resulting from the bridge structure from that assessed within the
ES and the Council accepts that on the basis of the information submitted to
date that this would be the case.

General design points

5.126 Following consultation with North Yorkshire Police (NYP) they raised concerns
regarding pedestrian safety on the ECML bridge. Following this the Applicants
liaised with NYP and minor design changes were made to address these
concerns. North Yorkshire Police have considered these revisions and
confirmed that the proposals are acceptable. It is noted that condition 19 of the
outline approval relates to secure by design measures being included within the
development and this condition needs to be discharged prior to commencement
of development. The Applicants have therefore confirmed that the discharge of
this condition for each RMA would include the appropriate safety and security
measures and this approach is considered satisfactory.

Design conclusion

5.127 As set out above the reserved matters application is in large in compliance with
the Design Guide and Parameters Plans submitted at outline stage. Where
there are deviations these are required due to site constraints or technical
matters and as such are, on balance, considered acceptable design solutions
which still meet the main objectives of the design intent set out at outline stage.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 68

Given that full landscaping details have not been submitted as part of the RMA
and these elements are an important part of the design it is imperative that these
elements are given full and proper consideration and that comments by the
Urban Designer and Landscape Architect are taken into account once the
appropriate discharge of conditions applications are submitted. The Council are
however satisfied that the discharge of conditions 23 and 24 of the outline
approval can adequately deal with the matter of both strategic and site specific
landscaping. Overall, despite a lack of detail in some parts it is considered that
the proposals are, on balance, acceptable in terms of the design and
compliance with the ES and that any outstanding elements can be dealt with by
discharge of conditions in order to ensure compliance with local and national

policy.
ECOLOGY/BIO-DIVERSITY

Impact on Habitats

5.128 The York Central site as a whole contains extensive areas (9.18ha.) of
ephemeral habitat (e.g. the limestone ballast of railway sidings). This is
considered to be the most ecologically significant habitat on site due to the
invertebrate assemblage it supports, and in part as there are unlikely to be any
other sites supporting this extent of habitat elsewhere in York and North
Yorkshire. The Ecological Impact Assessment submitted within the OPA ES
concluded that the loss of this habitat will result in a permanent moderate
adverse effect on ephemeral vegetation and minor adverse effect on scrub and
tall ruderal and broadleaved woodland. The ES set out mitigation which would
be embedded into the design which comprised of planting 0.43ha of woodland,
provision of 0.95ha of ephemeral vegetation, 2180m of green corridor consisting
of hedgerow within minimum planting of 80+ trees, creation of 465m of SuDS
and 0.4ha wetland waterbody habitat with retained habitats fenced off with a
buffer zone if possible sitting alongside a LEMP outlining maintenance post
construction. Following this mitigation it was accepted at outline stage that
there would be a significant impact on habitat loss arising from the scheme.

5.129 Whilst this habitat loss was accepted at outline stage, given the extent of this
loss it is extremely important that each reserved matters scheme brought
forward includes the appropriate mitigation and habitat retention/enhancement
set out at outline stage and where this is no longer possible to demonstrate that
this can be incorporated within future phases of the development to ensure that
further losses do not occur and if they do occur ensure that compensatory
habitat is provided elsewhere across the site.

5.130 The Council’'s Ecologist has stated that it is difficult to establish whether the
areas of habitat to be retained and created are still the same quantities and in
the same location as set out in the Ecology chapter of the OPA ES based on the
information submitted as part of this RMA. The OPA ES stated that Figure 11.2

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 69

outlined indicative habitat areas which had been calculated and utilised for the
purpose of impact assessment and recognised that when detailed design was

brought forward if there were changes to areas of habitat that would be provided
a reassessment of impacts would be required.

5.131 No reassessment of impacts has been submitted as part of this RMA, however
it is acknowledged that this could be clarified as part of Condition 31 which
requires that a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) be
approved prior to or concurrently with the first reserved matters application. A
discharge of conditions application was submitted for this condition, however
the Council were not in a position to discharge the condition as further
information is required. The Council’'s Ecologist has advised that in relation to
the LEMP there is a need to agree overarching objectives including quantities
and locations of habitat that are as a minimum those figures set out within the
OPA ES. Each reserved matters application as it comes forward would then
need to confirm any changes to the habitat assessment and provide alternative
habitat if necessary this can be secured by a site specific LEMP condition being
attached.

5.132 The Council’s Ecologist notes that much of the habitat creation provided on site
is within the Central corridor and relates to the SUDs scheme and therefore the
LEMP should make clear at what stage of the development these areas of
habitat would be put in place and when the detailed design for them would be
received by the authority. Ideally these habitat areas should be in place as early
as possible in order for them to start to offset some of the impacts of
construction.

5.133 The Applicants acknowledge that consenting this RMA would be in breach of
the LEMP condition which needed to be discharged concurrently with the RMA
to ensure that if areas originally envisaged for habitat creation are lost on this
RMA then they are secured on further phases. Discussions are ongoing within
the Council’s Ecologist in respect of discharging this condition The discharge of
the site wide LEMP condition (31) will give the Council certainty in terms of
ecological impacts and habitat retention, creation and enhancement and as
such this condition needs to be discharged as a matter of priority and certainly
before development commences. Whilst not an ideal situation the Council
accept assurances from the Applicant that these matters will be dealt with
promptly following determination of this application. Furthermore in order for the
Council to have control regarding this specific phase it is proposed to add a site
specific LEMP condition to this reserved matters application to ensure that
matters relevant to this phase are appropriately dealt with.

Impact on Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC)

5.134 Part of Millennium Green is designated as a Site of Importance for Nature
Conservation (SINC). The area of SINC habitat is far enough east of the

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 70

proposed access road that the grassland habitat would be retained in its
entirety, however it is recognised that this will need careful protection
throughout the construction phase. The Framework Construction Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP) covered a range of ecological issues that can be
impacted upon through construction. Condition 15 of the outline approval
sought the submission and approval of a CEMP prior to commencement of
development and this condition therefore needs to be discharged and include
the appropriate measures to mitigate any impacts on ecology/habitats,
particularly those to be retained.

Invasive Species

5.135 The OPA ES identified invasive species on the site, namely Himalayan Balsam
and Giant Hogweed along the banks of Holgate Beck. Condition 29 of the
outline approval therefore required a management plan for the removal of
invasive species to be approved by the LPA and this condition needs to be
discharged accordingly.

Protected Species

5.136 A number of ecological surveys on specific species were undertaken at outline
stage, however it was recognised that these were to provide baseline
information and would need to be updated for each reserved matters phase to
reflect changes in the distribution or abundance of mobile species on the site.
Condition 28 of the outline consent therefore required that application(s) for
reserved matters shall include an up to date (no more than 2 years old)
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) and any further necessary habitat or
species surveys as recommended by the appraisal. The application is therefore
accompanied by an up to date Preliminary Ecological Appraisal which was
undertaken in June 2019. The Council’s Ecologist has confirmed that this
provides an accurate update to the baseline ecological survey information.

5.137 The recommendations set out within the PEA are:

e Habitats (including invasive species): Any loss of trees or scrub will be
replaced on a 2:1 ratio through planting of trees and hedgerows, and
mitigation for the loss of semi-improved grassland has been agreed as part
of the mitigation measures described in the EIA. Additionally, an updated
Invasive Species Management Plan will be required in order to avoid the
spread of invasive plant species off site and to satisfy Planning Condition 29
of the OPP.

e Bat activity surveys are required for each building. Dusk emergence and
dawn re-entry surveys are to be undertaken on four buildings and Severus
Road Bridge identified to provide low, moderate and high bat roost suitability
prior to commencement of works. Following the recommendation for further
bat surveys identified in this PEA bat surveys were undertaken in June 2019.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 71

Of the buildings identified as having potential to support bat roosts they were
all classified as having low potential and a single emergence survey was
undertaken in accordance with current standards. No bat roosts were
discovered and this is in line with earlier findings in the EIA. A further bat
survey for Severus Road Bridge was undertaken in May 2020 which
concluded that whilst there are bats foraging in the area of the bridge there is
no roost contained within the bridge. The Council’s Ecologist has therefore
confirmed that no further survey work is proposed and there is no
requirement for mitigation. The report considered that lighting was a limiting
factor in terms of bats using the bridge and it is recommended that following
works, the lighting design reduces direct light spill onto the bridge which
would be supported as an enhancement measure.

e Badgers: A pre-start survey within three months prior to construction is
recommended within the sidings to determine the presence or likely absence
of badger before construction commences.

e Water vole: Based on results from surveys conducted in 2017 and 2018, it is
considered that water vole are likely absent from Holgate Beck and no further
surveys are required.

e Breeding birds: Nest boxes should be considered to provide potential nesting
habitats for birds. Areas of scrub offer value to breeding and foraging birds
and should be retained wherever practicable. Where it is not possible, new
areas of scrub should be established to replace that lost.

e A Reptile survey was previously undertaken in 2016, which did not identify
any reptile species. Since the habitat has not sufficiently changed, reptiles
are assumed likely to be absent.

¢ Invertebrates: The York Central Site provides county level importance for
invertebrates. The EIA describes appropriate mitigation measures, such as
installation of bee bricks which will be appropriate for this RMA.

5.138 The Council’s Ecologist has confirmed that the conclusions of the report have
been reflected in other submissions such as the Invasive Species Management
Plan and the LEMP (Conditions 29 & 31), therefore she considers that there are
no outstanding matters resulting from the PEA that require further action. On
the basis of the above it is therefore considered that the proposals accord with
the OPA ES in that there have been no significant changes with respect to the
habitats or species within the site and as such ecological impacts remain as
originally envisaged.

Biodiversity Enhancement

5.139 With respect to biodiversity enhancement, Condition 30 of the outline approval
relates to a Biodiversity Enhancement Management Plan (BEMP) for the
creation of new wildlife features to secure net gains for biodiversity. Whilst the
condition is not applicable for the reserved matters application relating to the
primary vehicle road the applicants have included within their submission

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 72

details of such biodiversity measures given that the extent of the RMA site goes
beyond the primary vehicle route and it is understood that further BEMP reports
will be provided alongside future reserved matters submissions.

5.140 The scope for biodiversity enhancement measures is limited for this RMA, given
the nature of the proposals (highway infrastructure), however it is proposed to
incorporate bat, bird and bee boxes within the bridge structures where possible.
The minimum number of boxes that will be provided are 3 no. bat boxes; 5 no.
bee bricks; and 3 no. sparrow boxes and these will be conditioned. It has been
agreed that the contractor will consult with a suitably qualified ecologist to agree
suitable locations of the boxes.

5.141 There is also a link with information contained within the LEMP (condition 31)
which deals with habitat creation, enhancement and management which is
discussed above. The Council’'s Ecologist has confirmed that the information
contained on the drawing within the BEMP is sufficient for this reserved matters
application.

Water Framework Directive

5.142 The Environment Agency have commented that the Water Framework
Directive (WFD) assessment submitted and agreed upon at the outline planning
stage, recommended that the development should provide morphological and
aguatic habitat enhancement to Holgate Beck through Millennium Green, and
that these opportunities would be discussed and agreed upon during the
detailed design stage. Also supporting information was submitted at outline
stage detailing and justifying the decision to not include culvert removal/
daylighting works as part of the development around Holgate Beck. The
information submitted as part of this reserved matters application differs from
that provided at the outline stage. The newly submitted information details that
the culvert will now be partly diverted beneath the proposed development site
and this appears to contradict information previously provided to justify the
decision to not undertake further ecological enhancements. The EA have
therefore recommended that the Council’'s Ecologists need to be satisfied with
this justification.

5.143 The Council’s Ecologist has considered the EA concerns in particular the
opportunity to include further enhancement measures for biodiversity within the
lower reaches of Holgate Beck through Millennium Green. It has been agreed
that the most sensible place to include these measures is within the Landscape
and Ecology Management Plan (LEMP) which is condition 31 of the outline
permission and as this has not yet been discharged it is recommended that the
LEMP be updated to include appropriate ecological enhancements to Holgate
Beck. This should provide certainty to the EA that ecological enhancement of
Holgate Beck will be secured as part of the overall scheme.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 73

Resident comments

5.144 Local residents have expressed concerns with respect to the loss of nature and
wildlife habitat, the impact on the flora and fauna on Millennium Green
alongside the loss of trees and habitat for animals and the impact on retained
habitats which would now be adjacent a busy road. These matters were
assessed in detail in granting outline consent where it was accepted that habitat
would be lost and impacted by virtue of the proposals. As set out above the
CYC Ecologist is satisfied with the level of detail provided within this application
and that suitable enhancement, retention and mitigation can be secured via
discharge of conditions in order to ensure that biodiversity gains and
enhancements are achieved across the site wherever possible in accordance
with the OPA ES.

5.145 Comment has also been made by residents regarding proposed tree species
being indigenous to the British Isles and preferably north east England and
sourced from mainland Britain so as to avoid unknown pests and diseases.
These comments are noted and the Council’'s Landscape Architect will advise
on appropriate species once the landscaping detail is submitted as part of the
discharge of Condition 24.

5.146 Residents have stated that any works should be done outside of the nesting
season and is suggested that this would be the case within the OPA ES.

Ecology Conclusions

5.147 The application includes an appropriate update in terms of impacts on habitats
and protected species within the site which remain in line with the OPA ES. Itis
acknowledged that the LEMP Condition needs to be discharged in a timely
manner so as to ensure that any habitat retention, mitigation and enhancement
remains in line with the OPA ES and that if further losses do occur that these
can be secured through future RMAs. Furthermore a site specific LEMP
condition is proposed. Overall having had regard to the above the proposals
accord with the OPA ES and subject to the discharge of conditions will comply
with the requirements of both local and national policy in terms of biodiversity
and ecological mitigation and enhancement.

FLOOD RISK AND DRAINAGE

5.148 The ESCS states that the drainage strategy and design of the flood
compensation storage for the RMA is the same as proposed and assessed in
the OPA ES and there are no new or different operational or construction effects
than were reported therefore the ES remains valid. The following sections
consider whether that is the case.

Flooding
Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 74

5.149 The eastern portion of the site is within Flood Zone 1 but there are areas of
the site within Flood Zones 2 and 3a. Flood zone 2 is towards the northern
end of the site and the source of flooding is a combination of fluvial flooding
from Holgate Beck and indirect overland flow from the River Ouse. The
Holgate Beck Culvert will be upgraded or rerouted to enable the new
approach ramp to the ECML bridge to be constructed over the beck. The new
access road between Water End and the ECML and Millennium Green are
within Flood Zone 3a. The source of flood risk in this area is direct fluvial
flooding from the Holgate Beck. The new access road will be constructed
through Millennium Green which is part of the flood plain for the Holgate
Beck. To accommodate the new landscape and terracing within Millennium
Green a proportion of the existing flood storage will be lost. It is however
proposed that compensation will be provided in below ground storage located
east of the ECML and north of the proposed highway and hydraulically
connected to Holgate Beck (HB). The remainder will be provided within an
above ground compensation feature located within the site of the Central
Park. The Council’s Drainage Engineer has advised that it is important the
flood compensation provision is kept separate from the proposed surface
water system and have its own connection falling back into HB. On
examination of the submitted surface water drainage (SWD) and highway
drainage plans (HWD) this feature has a high level overflow connection into
the SWD system therefore this over flow should be removed but also the
compensation feature should have its own separate connection to HB
(subject to Environment Agency (EA) agreement).

5.150 Appropriate Flood Risk Assessments and a Sequential and Exception Test
were undertaken at outline stage which established that the proposals would be
safe for its lifetime taking into account the vulnerability of its users and would not
increase flood risk elsewhere. An updated Flood Risk Assessment has been
submitted as part of this reserved matters application in order to comply with
Condition 72 of the outline approval.

5.151 The RMA flood risk assessment confirms that the new access road will provide
a safe means of access and egress during flood events to existing higher
ground at Water End and Leeman Road to the west and north of the RMA site
respectively. There is a residual risk of flooding to the Leeman Road Tunnel,
however the RMA site is protected from flooding by existing flood defences on
the right bank of the River Ouse. The RMA will provide an alternative means of
access for Emergency Services to the York Central site and an alternative
means of egress for future occupants of the York Central Development which is
located above the anticipated future flood levels with an allowance for climate
change. The FRA concludes that provided the recommendations of the FRA
are adopted, the site will be safe from flooding and will not have any adverse
iImpact on surrounding areas.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 75

5.152 The Environmental Compliance Statement confirms that the drainage strategy
and design of flood compensation storage is the same as was proposed at
outline stage. The RMA proposals are in accordance with the parameter plans
in terms of access and circulation and proposed site levels and there are no new
or different effects in terms of water resources therefore the conclusions in the
original Environmental Statement remain valid.

5.153 The Environment Agency have confirmed that following the receipt of an
additional Drainage Statement they are satisfied with the proposals subject to
the discharge of drainage conditions attached at outline stage. The Council’s
Drainage Engineer has also confirmed that further details can be provided
through Condition 73 of the outline approval which requires that details of flood
compensatory flood water storage to be submitted to and approved in writing by
the LPA prior to construction of the primary access road. The Council are
therefore satisfied with this approach.

Surface water

5.154 The OPA ES confirmed that the permeable and impermeable areas post
construction will vary significantly from the existing site which has the potential
to impact on ground water, peak flow and total volume of water discharged
off-site, the flow of surface water overland to the existing drainage infrastructure
and current flood storage. A new surface water drainage network was
considered in principle as part of the OPA, along with on-site flood storage and
attenuation to avoid impacts on receptors.

5.155 The application suggests that sub-soil conditions do not support the use of
soakaways and therefore the majority of the site will drain back to public
combined sewer. Yorkshire Water accepted at outline stage that there will be a
reduction in peak flow entering the public sewer, however the volume of surface
water will increase therefore the site provides an opportunity to remove as much
flow/volume of surface water from the public combined sewer network as
possible and discharge instead to watercourse. Condition 74 of the outline
consent requires that prior to any surface water discharge to Holgate Beck the
existing surface water discharge shall first be proven and agreed by the Local
Planning Authority and despite the Applicant providing further clarity around
how Holgate Beck would function, the EA have confirmed that this condition still
requires formal discharge.

5.156 The application suggests that surface water conveyed from the highway will be
to the discharge point or outfall via traditional below ground sewer network.
Surface water from the development zones (not part of this RMA) and public
realm will be conveyed via traditional drainage networks and Sustainable Urban
Drainage System (SUDS). The SUDS may include including permeable
trenches with positive drainage connections incorporated to convey a

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 76

proportion of the surface water flows and to store surface water runoff on site
until it can be discharged.

5.157 To achieve an overall reduction in the existing surface water discharge from the
site, attenuation will be required to balance surface water during flood
conditions upstream of the flow restrictions. The attenuation will be provided by
a combination of measures including:

e Below ground attenuation tanks and oversized pipes; and

e The central landscaped area (Central Park) will incorporate a swale to
provide surface level attenuation for larger storm events and to convey
surface water from adjacent plots surrounding the park in to attenuation
features within it.

5.158 Although the detailed design of the drainage across the site is still being worked
up, it is envisaged that this RMA will implement all the mitigation measures that
were recommended in the OPA ES. Following the implementation of mitigation
the Environmental Compliance Statement confirms that there will be no new or
different effects.

5.159 The full surface water drainage details are required to be submitted and
approved in order to discharge condition 77. In addition the management and
maintenance of the watercourses, swales, ditches and surface water
attenuation features and drainage within the site has to be provided in order to
discharge Condition 79. It is therefore considered that there are appropriate
controls in place in order to ensure that appropriate surface water drainage is
achieved.

Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS)

5.160 SuDS will be introduced to mimic natural drainage by storing runoff, reducing
peak flow, harvesting rain water for re-use and for the conveyance of surface
water. The outline application established that SuDS across the site could be
provided in a number of different features. A SuDS Audit was undertaken to
identify the potential for these features to be incorporated into the drainage
design.

5.161 The audit identified that the following features are appropriate for consideration
in the detailed design of the drainage network:

Attenuation Tanks and Below Ground Storage;
Green Roofs;

Permeable drains with positive drainage;

Filter Strips and Drains;

Permeable Paving;

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 77

e Swales, Detention Basins, Ponds and Bio-retention systems; and
e Water gardens.

5.162 The Council’s Drainage Engineer has advised that whilst they do not object to
the use of SuDS and in line with Government Planning Regulations encourage
their use, the design that has been presented carries risks that they believe are
not necessary. The piped system is effectively an overflow and attenuation at
source provided for when there is an intense storm within the SUDs system.
There is concern that without significant and regular heavy maintenance the
SUDs system may block with silt and root infestation. When the systems
performance reduces (storage volume lost) the Highway will have no positive
drainage, which will be a danger to the Highway users. This may not just occur
in isolated locations but will fail throughout the length of the carriageway.

5.163 The Council’s Drainage Engineer has therefore suggested that a hybrid piped
system in the carriageway providing the primary storage and the off line SUDs
system (swale/basin/aqua cell type attenuation) as the overflow to cater for
intense storms may be more resilient and efficient to maintain and it is
recommended that this be investigated further when discharging Condition 77.

Foul Water Disposal

5.164 As this RMA does not propose any buildings there will be no foul water disposal
as a result of it, however it is envisaged that the necessary infrastructure would
be put in place as part of the infrastructure works. The layout of the foul water
system is reliant on agreement to the diversion of the public sewers by
Yorkshire Water and an appropriate condition was attached at outline stage
(Condition 78) for foul water drainage to be approved and this condition has yet
to be discharged. Yorkshire Water have raised objections to the RMA
application given that the sewage diversion has not yet been agreed.
Discussions with the Applicants are ongoing in respect of this, however the
Council are satisfied that this can be appropriately dealt with through the
discharge of condition.

Flooding and Drainage Conclusions

5.165 Having had regard to the consultation responses from the relevant Drainage
Bodies, the Council are satisfied that the discharge of planning conditions
attached at outline stage can provide the detail required to ensure that an
appropriate drainage scheme is incorporated into the site and that there would
be no additional impacts in terms of flood risk. The proposals therefore comply
with local and national policy with respect to drainage and flood risk subject to
discharge of conditions. There are therefore no further impacts beyond those
identified within the OPA ES.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 78

Air Quality

5.166 There have been a number of representations received concerning impacts
arising from the development on air quality both within the site itself and
surrounding areas. _The OPA ES confirmed that taking into account Transport
Assessments and Air Quality Monitoring, there would be no residual effects as a
result of the development from construction activities subject to implementation
of construction dust mitigation measures for high risk sites which would be
discharged through Condition 15 (CEMP). In addition the OPA ES established
that there would be no predicted residual effects as a result of the development
to human or ecological receptors arising from operational traffic and that any
potential impacts arising from temporary car parks would be mitigated by
suitable design.

5.167 The Environmental Compliance Statement confirms that in terms of both
construction and operation there would be no new or different effects than were
reported in the Environmental Statement.

5.168 Condition 53 was attached to the outline approval and this required that an
Emission Mitigation Statement be submitted to the Local Planning Authority at
the same time as the reserved matters application. An Emission Mitigation
Statement includes an air quality ‘damage cost’ calculation, which is a simple
way to value changes in air pollution caused by a development. The statement
Is then used to make a judgement about whether the mitigation proposed for a
site is considered reasonable and proportionate to the emissions harm
generated by that site.

5.169 A draft Emission Mitigation Statement was submitted as part of an Approval of
Details Application (AOD//20/00109) which is pending consideration. As part of
this a residual emission damage cost (i.e. the damage cost that remains after
travel planning measures and other agreed sustainable transport initiatives
have been implemented) has been recalculated based on a 30% reduction in
development related trips. The new 5 year damage cost is estimated at £2.3m,
compared with the original figure of £3.2m.

5.170 The Council’s Public Protection Officer has confirmed that the draft Emission
Mitigation Statement has provided examples of additional mitigation measures
that may be possible on the site to mitigate some of this damage. Such
measures have been broadly classified into packages that would be appropriate
to either the full site, or specifically to reserved matters applications for
residential, commercial or hotel aspects. It is proposed that each future
Reserved Matters Application will be required to calculate the individual
damage cost of the respective application and incorporate mitigation measures
from these packages.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 79

5.171 Whilst the submitted draft Emission mitigation statement has considered a
range of options for further reducing emissions across the site, the Council’s
Public Protection Officer remains unclear about exactly what the Partnership
has committed to deliver/fund. In addition the statement, as submitted,
describes a number of options that could be delivered, but there does not
appear to be any definite commitments, particularly for measures applicable to
the wider site. The agreement and assessment of specific emission mitigation
measures was the original rationale for the emission mitigation statement and
the wording of condition 53 reflects this. There is currently no clarity around
who will deliver the measures and when therefore whilst discussions are
ongoing the Condition 53 cannot be discharged at this stage.

5.172 The Council’'s Public Protection Officer has however considered the position
and has raised no objection in terms of this RMA in terms of air quality impacts,
given that there is a mechanism to secure these measures through the
discharge of Condition 53. This condition will however require formal discharge
as soon as possible given that it was envisaged that this would be completed
prior to the reserved matters submission. The conclusions of the OPA ES in
terms of air quality are therefore considered to remain valid and there are
appropriate mechanisms in place to ensure that air quality is appropriately dealt
with.

Noise and Vibration

5.173 The Environmental Compliance Statement confirms that construction activities
for the Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA are consistent with the activities that were
assessed in the OPA ES therefore there will be no change in the predicted noise
levels and the mitigation identified in the OPA ES will be applied during the
construction phase.

5.174 The effect of night-time noise was previously considered within the OPA ES to
be not significant given the small number of days that night-time working would
be required. Although itis not yet known what activities will be required, taking a
worst case scenario there is potential for night-time construction activities to
exceed the adopted threshold values for 30 weekends. The Agent clarified that
night time working would be 30 weekends over a 12 month period across the
whole site and not specifically in relation to proposed construction access. They
therefore feel that sufficient controls can be put in place through the discharge
of Condition 15 (CEMP) condition.

5.175 The ECS states the use of Best Practical Measures (BPM) construction
methods and control of noise, which will be agreed through the discharge
Condition 15 relating to the CEMP, will help to manage noise levels. Noise
levels during construction will also be managed through a Section 61
agreement with the local authority under the Control of Pollution Act 1974, for
any night-time works. A Section 61 is a formal agreement between the

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 80

contractor and the local authority, which allows the contractor and local
authority to agree noise levels, hours of work and communication with
residents.

5.176 Depending on the extent of the anticipated disturbance during the night-time
activities (once the detailed construction programme is confirmed), this may
include the requirement for mitigation including management and monitoring of
noise-generating activities, noise insulation or potentially temporary relocation
of residents.

5.177 The Council’s Public Protection Officer initially raised concerns with respect to
night time working, however they appreciate that a full understanding of the
noise impacts cannot be undertaken at this time until a contractor is in place.
They are therefore satisfied that issues of noise and any necessary mitigation
can be dealt with through the discharge of the CEMP and through Public
Protection’s statutory processes to as to ensure that residents are adequately
protected.

5.178 Local residents have expressed some concern with respect to day time noise
levels, however there are no new or different day-time construction effects than
were reported in the noise and vibration chapter of the OPA ES and accepted by
the Council at outline stage. In terms of operational noise the Environmental
Compliance Statement confirms that there are no additional impacts arising
through noise or vibration beyond those identified at outline stage. These
conclusions have been accepted by the Council’s Public Protection Officer
given that there are conditions in place which need to be discharged prior to
commencement which gives the Council control regarding this.

Contamination

5.179 The ECS states that the ground conditions assessment identified a high risk to
construction workers of encountering contamination as a result of the
excavation of potentially contaminated soils. Condition 55 was attached at
outline stage and this relates to a site investigation and risk assessment being
undertaken to better understand the contamination on site and this requires
formal discharge prior to commencement. This assessment will then inform
Condition 56 which relates to a remediation scheme being submitted. In
addition any material imported to the site will be analysed to ensure it is suitable
for the intended use, which will be agreed with the LPA to satisfy condition 59.

5.180 The OPA ES also identified potential for construction workers to come into
contact with Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) during excavation and piling works.
A UXO mitigation strategy has been submitted under application AOD/20/00109
to discharge condition 60 and this sets out the measures required to protect
workers from the risk of UXO. This report has been accepted by the Council’s
Public Protection Officer.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 81

5.181 The OPA ES identified the potential for a significant adverse effect on
controlled waters as a result of the leakage of contaminants or runoff from
stockpiles. Measures to manage the risk of spillage/ leakage will be detailed in
the CEMP which will be submitted and agreed with the LPA as part of Condition
15 prior to commencement of development.

5.182 The ECS confirms that the RMA will implement all the mitigation measures that
were recommended in the OPA ES so as to ensure there would be not
significant effect to human health or controlled waters as a result of
contamination.

5.183 Following the implementation of mitigation there will be no new or different
construction effects than were reported in the OPA ES and as a result the
conclusions remain valid.

5.184 Any risk of contamination to future users of the RMA site will be managed
through the remediation strategy during construction. For this RMA, apart from
road users, cyclists and pedestrians, there are no future users of the site who
are likely to come into contact with soil (for example, in gardens associated with
the residential development). The drainage of the Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA
will be appropriately designed to avoid the risk of contamination from the new
road entering any controlled waters. The drainage design will be agreed with
the LPA to satisfy condition 77.

5.185 The Council’s Public Protection Officer and the Environment Agency have
confirmed that the details provided with respect to contamination are
satisfactory at this stage and it is acknowledged that the discharge of relevant
contamination conditions will appropriately deal with any outstanding mattes.

5.186 The ECS states that waste generation from the Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA is
anticipated to be similar to the estimates that were provided in the OPA ES. A
detailed Site Waste Management Plan, in accordance with the framework
SWMP that was submitted with the OPA ES, will be prepared for the site and
agreed with the LPA prior to commencement of construction and discharged as
part of Condition 15. Following the implementation of a detailed SWMP, no
significant effects resulting from waste are anticipated.

5.187 Taking into account all of the above, the Council’s Public Protection Officer has
confirmed that there are no identified impacts beyond those set out in the OPA
ES and the proposals are acceptable with respect to contamination subject to
the discharge of relevant conditions.

Light Pollution

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 82

5.188 Section 5 of the Planning Statement refers to the lighting of the infrastructure
proposed on site. This will include the main routes and associated public space
areas, the bridges on the site and the Leeman Road tunnel. The statement goes
on to state that this infrastructure lighting will be designed to prevent light
spillage, reduce light pollution to sky and properties and be low energy, further
detail is referenced in part 7 of the Design Report. This design report confirms
that the infrastructure lighting provision on the site will meet all the relevant
British Standards and the CYC street lighting policy. As there is no mention in
this phase of specific lighting of premises, private carparks or signage, Public
Protection have advised that they will not be commenting specifically on the
lighting provision associated with the infrastructure. Detailed comment will be
provided on the lighting of the private buildings and spaces along with any
illuminated signage proposed across the site as and when reserved matters
applications come forward for these elements of the scheme.

5.189 Condition 22 of the OPA requires that a lighting strategy be submitted with any
reserved matters application. A lighting strategy has been included within the
Design Report submitted, however the Council’s Urban Designer has raised
concerns in terms of the level of lighting to be provided and this is still to be
adequately addressed in order that this condition can be formally discharged.

Public Protection Conclusions

5.190 The proposals are considered to be in accordance with the OPA ES which
accepted any impacts subject to mitigation and a series of conditions to be
discharged. It is noted that night time noise may be increased beyond what was
anticipated at outline stage, however it is considered that there are sufficient
measures in place through the discharge of Condition 15 (CEMP) and the
Section 61 Agreement which has to be submitted to Public Protection in order to
ensure that residents are appropriately protected and that there is no significant
impacts on the environment. The proposals are therefore in large in
accordance with the OPA ES and accord with national and local policies.

SOCIO ECONOMIC IMPACTS

5.191 As this first reserved matters application relates to the key infrastructure within
the site there would be no jobs created as a result of buildings on the site,
however it does open up the site to enable such development to come forward
and bring with it such economic benefits.

5.192 The effects of employment during construction were assessed as part of the
OPA ES and that set out that for Phase 1 (anticipated to be the construction of
the new access road plus the delivery of up to 400 homes), the number of
full-time equivalent construction staff was estimated at 596 FTE over the
duration of 6 years. The ECS states that it is now estimated that during peak
construction there will up to approximately 135 staff on site however this is due

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 83

to the delivery of buildings being part of a future RMA. It is therefore
acknowledged that the anticipated jobs are still likely to arise, but potentially to a
different timescale.

5.193 Some local businesses have made representations concerning the impact on
them and their contribution to the local economy. The OPA ES recognised that
some businesses along Leeman Road could be displaced elsewhere however it
was considered that the effects on employment and the local economy would be
limited. This was accepted by the Council at outline stage. The conclusions
within the OPA ES with respect to impacts on the economy remain valid and the
proposals are therefore considered acceptable in this respect in accordance
with local and national policy.

OTHER MATTERS WITHIN THE OPA ENVIRONMENTAL STATEMENT OR
ARISING FROM CONSULTATION

5.194 The ECS confirms that with respect to wind, daylight, climate change and any
cumulative impacts arising from the development the proposals would be as set
out in the OPA ES and the Council accepts this to be the case.

5.195 Comments have been received from local residents in respect of the housing
types and space standards that would be provided and although the principle of
housing was assessed at outline stage, the specific detail of housing provision
on site and the relationship of housing to other buildings across the site will be
given further consideration in future RMAs given that these proposals do not
provide any housing.

5.196 Some representations have been received in respect of the timing of the
application and the fact that a decision should not be taken at this time given the
financial implications for the Council and the potential issues with marketability
of the site in face of a recession. The application has been submitted and there
is therefore a duty on the Planning Authority to determine it within a timely
manner. Once consent is granted the Council have the decision when they wish
to implement the scheme provided that this is in line with the timeframes
conditioned at outline stage.

5.197 Comments have been made regarding the lack of consultation with Friends of
Leeman Park and Leeman Road Residents Association in relation to the
proposed 750m of path on the riverbank through Leeman Park which was
agreed at outline stage and attracted £100k of Open Space Contribution
funding according to the Section 106. These comments have been noted by the
Applicant and appropriate consultation will be considered once these works
come forward as they are not part of this RMA.

5.198There have been a number of comments received which make reference to the
proposals running contrary to various Executive Council decisions taken in July

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Page 84

2019 and December 2019 regarding climate change and restricting
non-essential motor vehicle movements in the city centre. These decisions
would have been taken into account within the outline application given that this
was not granted until 24 December 2019 and as such the principle of the
development was accepted with these Council decisions in mind. Furthermore
this reserved matters application does not generate any additional car journeys
and future reserved matters applications would need to assess their impacts
with respect to climate change and transport policies relevant at the time of
submission.

CONCLUSION

The principle of development of this site within the remits of the approved
parameter plans and design guide was approved at outline stage. There has
been a significant level of objection with respect to highways/transport and air
guality issues in particular, however the Council are satisfied that the proposals
accord with the technical reports and assessment undertaken and accepted by
the Council as part of the outline approval OPA ES and that any outstanding
Issues can be addressed appropriately through the finished design and the
discharge of relevant planning conditions.

With respect to heritage assets within the site and their setting, the setting of
adjacent conservation areas and the impact on non-designated heritage assets,
the proposals are not considered to result in adverse impacts and indeed in
some areas would result in benefits to the heritage assets through enabling the
re-use of buildings, opening up the site to enable heritage assets to be better
appreciated and by improving their setting. The proposals are therefore
considered acceptable and are in line with what was envisaged at outline stage.
Given that the road alignment and site levels are within the approved limits of
deviation, the proposals would at worst have a less than substantial impact on
the setting and views of specific heritage assets outside the site, however this is
balanced against the significant public benefits the scheme will bring forward
and the fact that future reserved matters applications for buildings on the site
would need to undertake a detailed assessment of their individual impacts when
determining their position within development plots.

It is acknowledged that archaeological work is still ongoing however the
Council’'s Archaeologist is satisfied that the approach to archaeological work
and recording has been planned as far as possible at this stage in the
development and that this will be an ongoing exercise. The proposals are
therefore in accordance with the NPPF in so far as the less than substantial
Impacts identified to heritage assets have been balanced against the public
benefits.

With respect to design, the reserved matters application is in large in
compliance with the Design Guide and Parameters Plans approved at outline

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Page 85

stage. Where there are deviations these are required due to site constraints or
technical matters and as such are, on balance, considered acceptable design
solutions which still meet the main objectives of the design intent. Any
outstanding elements of the design such as materials and landscaping which
form a critical part of the design quality can be appropriately dealt with by
discharge of conditions.

The application includes an appropriate update in terms of impacts on habitats
and protected species within the site which remain in line with the OPA ES. Itis
acknowledged that the LEMP Condition needs to be discharged in a timely
manner so as to ensure that any habitat retention, mitigation and enhancement
remains in line with the OPA ES and that if further losses do occur that these
can be secured through future RMAs. Overall having had regard to the above
the proposals accord with the OPA ES and subject to the discharge of
conditions will comply with the requirements of both local and national policy in
terms of biodiversity and ecological mitigation and enhancement.

The Council are satisfied that the discharge of planning conditions attached at
outline stage can provide the detail required to ensure that an appropriate
drainage scheme is incorporated into the site and that there would be no
additional impacts in terms of flood risk.

The proposals are considered to be in accordance with the OPA ES which
accepted impacts with respect to air quality, noise and contamination subject to
mitigation and a series of conditions to be discharged. Itis noted that night time
noise may be increased beyond what was anticipated at outline stage, however
it is considered that there are sufficient measures in place through the discharge
of Condition 15 (CEMP) and the Section 61 Agreement which has to be
submitted to Public Protection in order to ensure that residents are appropriately
protected and that there is no significant impacts on the environment.

Where there are conditions attached at outline stage which required approval of
details prior to or concurrently with the RMA and this has not been possible,
discussions are ongoing and the Applicant is aware that these issues will need
to be resolved to the satisfaction of the LPA prior to commencement on site.
Subject to these conditions being satisfied the Council consider that the
proposals accord with the Environmental Statement submitted at outline stage
and following mitigation no additional impacts beyond those identified at outline
stage should arise.

The application is therefore recommended for approval subject to the following
conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 86

Location Plan/Red Site Boundary YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-GX-1001 Rev P04.1
Reserved Matters & Outline Approval Boundaries
YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-GX-1002 Rev P03

General Arrangement 1 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0101 Rev P06
General Arrangement 2 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0102 Rev P06
General Arrangement 3 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0103 Rev P06
General Arrangement 4 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0104 Rev P06
General Arrangement 5 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0105 Rev P06
General Arrangement 6 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0106 Rev P06
General Arrangement 7 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0107 Rev P06
General Arrangement 8 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0108 Rev P05
General Arrangement 9 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0109 Rev P06
General Arrangement 10 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0110 Rev P06
General Arrangement 11 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0111 Rev P06
General Arrangement 12 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0112 Rev P06
Typical Highway Section 1 of 7 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0121 Rev P03
Typical Highway Section 2 of 7 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0122 Rev P03
Typical Highway Section 3 of 7 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0123 Rev P03
Typical Highway Section 4 of 7 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0124 Rev P04
Typical Highway Section 5 of 7 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0125 Rev P03
Typical Highway Section 6 of 7 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0126 Rev P03
Typical Highway Section 7 of 7 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0127 Rev P01
Existing Site Levels YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-GX-1006 Rev P01

Proposed Site Levels YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-GX-1007 Rev P01

East Coast Mainline Bridge Plan YCL-KNI-RM1-SP-DR-CB-1000 Rev P02
East Coast Mainline Bridge Cross Section YCL-KNI-IP2-EB-DR-CB-1001 Rev
P02

East Coast Mainline Bridge Elevations YCL-KNI-IP2-EB-DR-CB-1002 Rev P02
East Coast Mainline Bridge Detail YCL-KNI-RM1-SP-DR-CB-1003 Rev P02
East Coast Mainline Bridge Abutments YCL-KNI-RM1-SP-DR-CB-1004 Rev
P02

East Coast Mainline Bridge Parapets YCL-KNI-RM1-SP-DR-CB-1005 Rev P03
East Coast Mainline Bridge Steelwork YCL-KNI-IP2-EB-DR-CB-1005 Rev P02
Severus Bridge Plan YCL-KNI-RM1-WE-DR-CB-1000 Rev P01

Severus Bridge Elevation/Section YCL-KNI-RM1-WE-DR-CB-1001 Rev P02
Severus Bridge Steelwork YCL-KNI-RM1-WE-DR-CB-1002 Rev P02

Severus Bridge Parapet YCL-KNI-RM1-WE-DR-CB-1003 Rev P01

Severus Bridge Parapet YCL-KNI-RM1-WE-DR-CB-1004 Rev P02

Severus Bridge Sections YCL-ARP-RM1-WE-DR-CB-2001 Rev P01

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is
carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

2. Notwithstanding the detail shown on General Arrangement Plans 1 to 12
inclusive and Typical Highway Sections 1 to 7 inclusive, details for hard and soft
landscaping, lighting, street furniture, boundary treatments and drainage and

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 87

the cycle provision between Hudson Boulevard and Marble Arch (as shown on
plan ref General Arrangement 6 of 12 YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-0106 Rev
P0O6) are not approved.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as the specific detailing for these elements
of the scheme are still under discussion and full details will need to be provided
as part of subsequent discharge of conditions applications so as to ensure that
the development is carried out to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority
and in accordance with the approved Design Guide.

3. Notwithstanding the detail shown on the plans hereby approved the following
details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to commencement of the East Coast Mainline Bridge:

a) Samples of all visible materials in their chosen finish including the concrete
(in situ/pre cast), steel(s), glass, gratings, deck treatment, any over claddings
and exposed system components such as fixings and the abutment stone
cladding and gabion materials. These materials should be provided for
inspection together so that a full assessment of their suitability as a materials
package can be assessed.

b) Detailed drawings (1:10 or 1:20 scale) of a typical bridge bay in
plan/section/elevation and any associated 3D diagrams to explain geometry.

c) Detailed drawings (1:10 or 1:20 scale) of bridge transition design features at
either end and any associated 3D diagrams to explain geometry.

d) Detailed plans/elevation/section/diagrams of any anti vandalism or anti climb
design features to be incorporate.

e) Full bridge lighting details including plans showing the location of these and
technical specifications for illumination.

f) A schedule setting out how the bridge would be maintained and cleaned.

The proposals shall thereafter be carried out in complete accordance with the
details provided as approved and in the approved materials.

Reason: In order to ensure that the detailed finish of the bridge is in line with the
approved Design Guide and so as to ensure that it achieves an appropriate
aesthetic.

4. Notwithstanding the detail shown on the plans hereby approved the following
details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to commencement of the Severus Road Bridge and Severus
Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge:

a) Samples of all visible materials in their chosen finish including the concrete

(in situ/pre cast), steel(s), glass, gratings, deck treatment, any over claddings
and exposed system components such as fixings. These materials should

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 88

be provided for inspection together so that a full assessment of their
suitability as a materials package can be assessed.

b) Detailed drawings (1:10 or 1:20 scale) of a typical bridge bay in
plan/section/elevation and any associated 3D diagrams to explain geometry.

c) Detailed drawings (1:10 or 1:20 scale) of bridge transition design features at
either end and any associated 3D diagrams to explain geometry.

d) Detailed plans/elevation/section/diagrams of any anti vandalism or anti climb
design features to be incorporate.

e) Full bridge lighting details including plans showing the location of these and
technical specifications for illumination.

f) A schedule setting out how the bridge would be maintained and cleaned.

The proposals shall thereafter be carried out in complete accordance with the
details provided as approved and in the approved materials.

Reason: In order to ensure that the detailed finish of the bridge is in line with the
approved Design Guide and so as to ensure that it achieves an appropriate
aesthetic.

5. Prior to any works commencing within the former Coal Drops detail of the
proposed infill material and temporary surfacing treatment, together with details
of proposed site levels and scaled drawings showing the alterations to the Coal
Drops walling shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be implemented in
full.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposals can be fully understood and that
they accord with the approved Design Guide and that the proposals do not
result in harm to heritage assets beyond that approved within the OPA
Environmental Statement.

6. Prior to commencement of development further detail for lighting of roadways,
footways and any areas of public realm (Millennium Green and Coal Drops)
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and the development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the
approved details. The detail shall include the following:

a) An explanation of how artificial lighting would conform to requirements to
meet the Obtrusive Light Limitations for Exterior Lighting Installations as
detailed in the Institute of Light Professionals Guidance Notes for the
Reduction of Obtrusive Lighting;

b) Demonstrate that consideration has been given to the location and type of
lighting proposed in the most sensitive ecological locations of the site;

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 89

Reason: In the interests of good design, to give proper regard to heritage and
ecology impact arising from lighting and to avoid light pollution in accordance
with the NPPF, in particular paragraphs 127 and 180.

7. Prior to commencement of development a site specific Landscape and
Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The LEMP shall include the following:

a) Details/plans of the areas of habitat creation and retention with a clear
breakdown of the size of each area, what the area will contain and
timescales for creation;

b) A description and evaluation of the features which are to be managed;

c) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management;

d) Aims and objectives of management and options for achieving these
objectives;

e) Details of how the areas of new habitat will be monitored and managed in
short and long term;

f) Details of the body or organization responsible for implementation of the
plan.

g) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures.

h) Details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which the long-term
implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the
management body(ies) responsible for its delivery.

1) The plan shall also set out how contingencies and/or remedial action will be
identified, agreed and implemented so that the development still delivers the
fully functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved scheme.

The site specific LEMP shall not be approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority until the site wide LEMP (Condition 31 of the outline planning
permission 18/01884/OUTM) has been approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The proposals shall thereafter be carried out in full
accordance with the site specific LEMP as approved.

Reason: In order to secure the incorporation of biodiversity improvements in the
development in order to mitigate against losses accepted as part of the outline
approval.

8. The proposals shall be carried out in full accordance with the conclusions set
out in Section 6 (Pages 27 to 28) of the Condition 28 Preliminary Ecological
Appraisal (ref: YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-RP-YP-2801) and Page 2 of the Condition 30
Biodiversity Enhancement Management Plan (ref:
YCL-ARP-RM1-XX-RP-YP-3001) both dated April 2020 submitted as part of the
reserved matters application, unless otherwise first approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 90

Reason: In order to ensure that habitats and species are appropriately
protected throughout the development.

9. Prior to the development commencing full detailed plans showing the design
and materials for roads, footways, cycleways and other highway areas shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such
roads, footways, cycleways and other highway areas shall be constructed in
accordance with such approved plans prior to the road being brought into use.

Reason: In the interests of good planning and road safety.

10. The proposed roads shall not come into use until the highway works to the
southern extent of Water End as shown on the approved General Arrangement
Plans (which definition shall include works associated with any Traffic
Regulation Order required as a result of the development, signing, lighting,
drainage and other related works) have been carried out in accordance with the
approved plans, or arrangements entered into which ensure the same.

Reason: In the interests of the safe and free passage of highway users.

11. A three stage road safety audit carried out in line with advice set out in
GG119 Road safety audit (formerly HD 19/15), and guidance issued by the
council, will be required. Reports for Stages 1 and 2 must be submitted to and
agreed in writing by the LPA prior to works commencing on site. The Stage 3
report must be submitted to and agreed in writing by the LPA prior to the roads
being brought into use.

Reason: To minimise the road safety risks associated with the changes
imposed by the development.

12. Prior to the proposed roads being brought into use a strategy to regulate
and manage vehicle parking, stopping and waiting of motor traffic shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To promote sustainable travel and in the interests of highway safety
and visual amenity, in accordance with sections 9 and 12 of the NPPF.

13. No development shall commence until details of the surface water and
highway drainage proposed for the infrastructure has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details approved shall
thereafter be implemented in full.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a



Page 91

14. Prior to commencement of development in Areas 1 and 2 (as identified in
Figure 7 of the Archaeological Remains Management Plan (ARMP) Sept 2020)
a detailed Archaeological Remains Management Plan which includes the
detailed results of 2020 evaluation and hydrological investigation as well as final
subsequent mitigation strategy including evaluation and mitigation measures in
accordance with the Archaeological Remains Management Plan detailed in the
York Central Environmental Statement Volume 3 Appendix 8H Archaeological
Remains Management Plan January 2019 Revision A shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: The site contains archaeological features and deposits that must be
subject to detailed evaluation prior to commencement and it has not been
possible to complete the ARMP in detail at this stage.

7.0 INFORMATIVES:
HIGHWAY INFORMATIVE:

You are advised that prior to starting on site consent will be required from the Highway
Authority for the works being proposed, under the Highways Act 1980 (unless
alternatively specified under the legislation or Regulations listed below). For further
information please contact highway.adoption@york.gov.uk and for any Street Works
Consents please contact streetworks@york.gov.uk

Contact details:
Case Officer: Louise Milnes
Tel No: 01904 555199

Application Reference Number: 20/00710/REMM Item No: 4a


mailto:highway.adoption@york.gov.uk
mailto:streetworks@york.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93

York Central, Leeman Road, York
20/00710/REMM

Reserved Matters Planning Application Boundary

Other Land within the Appllcants Control

Organisation City of York Council

Department |Economy & Place

Comments Site Location Plan

Date 02 November 2020

SLA Number

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.



This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Planning Committee

To be held remotely on 12" November 2020 at 4:30pm.

G6 abed



20/00710/REMM — York Central, Leeman Road, York

abed

Reserved matters application for layout, scale, appearance, landscaping and access g

for the construction of the primary vehicle route and associated roads, infrastructure,

landscaping and alterations to the existing road network pursuant to outline planning
permission 18/01884/OUTM

COUNCIL

V.



a1 - B | [ | o | E | F [ M N o =
\ ) /i &5 o 7 : ' s A%
. . | - " /// i/ LR ; /)&
-~ s / 9 B
Site Location Plan \ < &Y &
% - ;
H (
; y
= \: - ml
MR : i N
g
Y :
_2\ 5
g

-/ 6 abed

.
L o o
() o 3 N
G v/
9 @ "
| ) & ¥ \ -
T o\ L @ ”
9/. - m’d_*: D 7 o
- .
)
| o o B Pradest
>, o — e =1 | ARUP —
— CITY OF il e T
D === T 120 s ot 342 -
el e e e, Homes England and Frate 1 nitasaucurs RiMA Po3 n-;:m "';.:m n-;‘::_m n-«:
e Gl RN Metwork Rall Oulline Flannlng Permlsslon and
T T ERE S "YEL «ARP-RMi- XX = DR = GK = 1002
B il Ml el Il Ml Wi
e Clty of York Councill Plannlng Committee Meetlng - 1Zth November 2020 3 o

COUNCIL



Indicative Street

Names for Identification

purposes

Va,

\ s
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

|
N \ ¥/a = s el : \\ 7 §
b X/ B %4

= - 5 / & o
\/ — | = .f'f ﬂ()\“gz %
> |
il
f;"l . N 5
3 N = / s
:

o
\ =X :
g
‘.-_;\\\\ :
L)
8 "l; ) § A
N

86 abed

£ 3
(s}
O ® Q N
i =] y/
@ L4
-~
.
L)
i — &
e 4 &
[~
by -
o
— o L
w‘— ‘Fesorved Matters Planning Applcaion Boundary Project Ths.
Yark Central = =
A 2s00 A apineaan
B e b Lard Sirveyor- Sanaral
i T Ly —
T |\' =) ewd )
- o = e -
- T | eve, T - — -
Kl ] KT = ool | - | Network Rall Street Names = m|m|m| -
e T I YCL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - GX - 1009
BT L

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020



Site Layout 1 — Water
Lane Access

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Al

J |

Prozased Slgrafad
a

Al e e
atackleg gz B

3,6 wnwary cychemay.
s

[ElZmmd

A= Shams
exyelewiny! fostwy.

A5 neetizans hine

EAST GOAST MAN LIKE

Riget wum lane:

winzehg lensth

Proposss Network Ral e dde
)

vian an cyrde bebign
1 o consbnucted dosgskle
eulsing

Ehared fostway!
oyclewty,

Propesad shgnafpad
eyeh crosalng

Proposed shgnalkbed
pedeslan crsshz

Cyellas 1o ek eodstiog on

sartgewmy
Supond thls gt

Mew constructon to 4o Il
nkeleg Rlghwry

Ao 2 wshilrg
markirgs required ¥ 1o
et the sropsens
markleg lapsut.

Project o ralzate the exkting
lein by

i remgrated T the.
retadrlrg wal.

Proposed Networs Ral lhe slee

wms,

A I vt Fuswatot Sgsiem

gl EETTEAEA

| B oo Cromnar
"| (22T sotabteg welt

Feclrg e

Frapased hearsleg ne (1 i)

Hatwsth Feal Gzstutkonil Beusdary

Fenchg (7.5m)
———— Fustand Fal

1.0

- Puast and feal Fandng [12m)

— — — Fropoens Archbectral Guard Aol
i)

------ [Re——

__ Fropend Wilknakim Grosn
Babiskain

- Frapases Knea Roll fesen
APAAA, Exdsting Hanzral ratalrad

Exjallng Pos and Wha Fance
o

Eslilhyg Wissdan Hews Ral Fance
- ahen

———+ Esdsting Ehe Fence raaled

General eyt

WM Feal Spusr

Lardseapa! Flantig

Mlkrnkim Groen Fostway

[ gy b liew
Shams foatwary! cyzleway
Surlace course colour contrast

Temparary Lansucaphg

NI Anphoh - Civl - Fkghways/ D - Craming ¥ CLARP- AN 0 DR-Cr 0101

Unbound Ased for Liw Leasor Access

bt vtk skeal ok bestken

sl daterare sk

sigtwork Ral Lineslde Anosss ovea

Tacdla Pasteg Sey!

Skgroalues Blsier Tucdls sy

W_ARUIP_LIW_ZD

Blster Tocdle parehg

Tramiie T

{emaradzn en oyck lono)

Laddur Tacille |demarcadon on fostay)

Lty e

—vm i el wbh doutle b

wa  Am columen b singhe locem

wem A column whh doutle lem
wa ol b gl e
e ol e g ead

am mukkhoad celimn

O tm mltdid e

Q  vam miihent solumn

66 abed

q
B
i
E}
i
i
i

==
York Cantral

B
Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA
General Arrangement
Sheet 1al12

12800

= | [ ——

e

i - Highways

54 « Subatle tor Staga Approval

- 0 T = o
I N N

PO§

Ty

T T T T
wingo | 1anngn | 1o -

“YCL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CH - 0101
P | D s | Lk | T | Rk | R

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

5



Site Layout 2 —
Millennium Green

\
g CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

A A

5| e s
Hahvar e

= Estsing 1.2m on
G

Exbihg peth o
bo whiened.

Exbehy

metal
Fanceal {EA mse)
0 b ratslnc,

Genaral Koyt
P Fal S
Landscapa! Havthg
I ke Resabt sgsiem
Cantagemiy
-
Mlkrakim Groan Fostway
I seirosaied cyck lsa
[

e p—

RPN O DR R 12

w0R.

Surlace oourse ook contrast
Temporary Lancusaphg
| R
#ntabkag wall

1] unbound Assa for Low Leaser Accoss

11 Aragiioh

® ledcaton rafle kel pobs bizatlen
[T pecestnn datwrrart pasieg

watwork Fal Lineslde Accass wea

Tacths Pavdeg st
Sl Blsine Tuctle prckg
Blster Tacdle pachyg

WA P_LW_Fin

Tramike Toctle {Serarcaton on cyck lme)

Laskder Tacills |dsmarzaton n fastmay)

Ligtileg oyt

—em O eolumn it ot b

ea B oolumn wih singe lem

cam e column whh deuble lalem

en Amcumn st sdgh e

s 4m column whh dogle head
am mukkhead cokimn

O tom meliheed slune

00T 9bed

e Nw foctwiys o
o construcied,
\ Eukiiog path relabi,
Hpaflsed cpole g
M -
Ayl cnsnstan ——
- A i

O vommelen slums
e o [ -
v | v | s s bk | e | -
o e | o | | o
e o | e | | -
o T e T w o | -
) w | | | w
v | Do | Dwecteer v | o | ot | e
P S
e ——
T e e—
e ———
E
CyolYorkCounel
Fraposod hoaeleg Ine (1 Am) T
. Htwerk Rl Spwenal Beuedary | YOTK Cantral
Fenclig {*.Em|
———— Pt and Rl Fandng [1.9%)
e Pzt et el g (12 T
o Propoms Archbocrml Gurd Al | PhEse 1 Infrastructure RMA
i) General Arrangement
Frapoens Hanml (1,1mi Sheet 12 ot 12
Fraposes Millsnskim Groen
T bakistain S gm0 [==* mwmn
~+——+ Froposod Knea Rall fonce - Ol - Highways.
AAAAA, Etsting Hansral raalrad M s subatle for S Approval
- 3 T = o
i Eslating Pust and Wha Fance | - | ™ | - | -
=1~ ratabneds POE | |n... T T
Exlsth; Wosden Keus Rl Fance e e | il | o
- wahe )
¥CL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CH - 0112
4 Eslith Elis Fene ruaboust Prim | | e | Lt | Tn | ek | ke
i

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

6



Al A L] [ -] E 3 5 H

General Kay

WM Feal Spur

Ladscapal Flating
I 0 Rosvatot Sgsiem

Carrigessy
-

MiHkornkim Groen Fostway
I cesrupased cyche lune
[ E———

Shams toatwmy! cyshway

Site Layout 3 — East
Coast Mainline Bridge

Surtace caurse oalour convrast
Tampuwary Langacaphy
|
atableg wll

Unbound Assa for Low Leador Access

. Foebesnfon i shyeal pofs boestlen
y}ﬂﬂ Premiinn detemant paving

Sigtwork Fal Linealde Aoosss ovea

Tocth P Myt
Skgrealums Blster Tactle vrkog
Olster Tacdle parehg
Tramiine Tosthk: {derarcaden en cyck lon)

Laskior Tazibe [damaraten on fustuay)

Ltdleg e

—ea 0 column mbh deutle b

wa 8w column b singk loem

cvm e column whh deutle latem

wn i columnwbh singlh I

wm Am columnwhh nghs nead

am mukkhoad cakimn

ol ealen O tom melihwiet colume

Q  tam mebihent solumn

TOT obed

Acceen rand 15 sbumants - - - -
ox mabrlsnancn,
Achliecund - - " " "
ausrd i,
s [0 I N
NV.I‘JGKI.HI vz | avmam | A s pajs | e [ |
gl e e e i | e | e w
vor || e o e = ] -
e e v o o [ e b | =
Gt Maks L, - - | [ |-
v | oo | o oy | e [ dowa | e
a Tie o pokt for NRM jil;lll
g raf b,
[P
demmmae
e e—
i e
el
ClyolYork Coundll
L] Ferclrg <oy
Froposed headleg line (1 2m) Fcleci T
e Natwerk R Dgsstfens] Beeaary | ¥ 01K Cantral
Fenclag (7.5m)
Pt and Rl Fadng [1.1)
—_— Pt an el Fandng (1 2m) T
o — Proposes Arkhoshral Guar el | PHESE 1 Infrastructure RMA
18| [t General Arangement
------ Froposs Hansrml (7, m) Sheet 2 af 12
Froposed Milenakim Gresn
T T paksrads Sabuan 12500 | ekt FH1ME00
o« 4} Froposos Knta Fnll fonca o g
o CITY OF oo bt | St Al
- ™ = = =
e et Pstans Wk Fance | - | ae | - -

" b PoE |n... |n... = =
Extithg Wosden deus Rall Fance ikl i | i | b
retakned -

¥CL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CH - 0102
~—— Eslsting Ebe Fenze atabed e Iml ek | Lamwton | e | ok | Prbe
S

L

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020 7

101 AragivCH - I HighwaysiDR - Dramnghf CLARP-RM 00 DR CH 02

WA P_L¥_2iy




Site Layout 4 — New
Link through to Leeman
Road

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

A

=1

Fusestlan pale © ©

= for accoes,

Maonal Ral Museum
Sipur Ral ¢ Ral Cross)

s
Y,

A - ~

-

==

General Kayt

WM Feall Spur

Ladscapa Aantig
I ot Rosvak Sgsiom
Currpigamsy
[ [l
Mllonn lim Groan Footway
N cosrosed cycks lona
N oy crche b
shares oty cyhway
Surlace course oolour contrast
Tamparary Lancucaphy
B vt oo
satablng wall
Unbound Acsa for Luw Leodor Ascoss

 feaden it skl pobe oestlen

1M1 ArplioH - CW1- Highwiys DR - Dras T CLARP- AN -O-DR-CH0103

[Z

=
=
S

swshen daperars vk

sigtwork Ral Linoalde Acoess ovea

Tucdls Paston Seryt

Slgrafant B

wethe kg
hster Tacdls probg

Tramlin Taztle jdamaradon o cyke lane]

N_ARUF_UK_ i

Laddur Taclbe [damaraton sn fastmay)

Lty e

—vm i el b sl b
w8 column wih single o

cvm A caunn s doutls latem

ea i column wbh gl seam
m amcolun b gl read

am mu Bkiead cokimn

/ 7 «Q
//,,% - 7 S:lwm mm«'.ro‘ 0 9 mo-haid colume
e T abonr nneremny
s R A A A R i _ camigusmy i £0m ©  tim mebl-hand column m
T s S =
B A AR AL Aﬁz’(ﬂﬁ.-.__ i e
T Propased nocess
R [y H
_ \c.-u-.d-.w-. - T - o
":,u:':\“' Wishizulor gef « gatos % ba sel back N HEE
riral ezl Pl I wrashe vatlch i gl o8 gy, —— 1 I\)
{5 i Gates 12 opee bz T k.
slamiads D [ [~
e DR
7 e [ aream| A saebabn | e |
e || A sk R
o e e |
P | 1018 A o e, w | w |m | -
— - | e | |-
woe | oo | o By | o | et |
’ ARUP
T
T —
e —
—_———
e
# Famclrg ey
Froposos heasleg e (1 Am) T
Natwerk Ful Opurfzns| Beusdary | YOTK Cantral
Fenclg {1.6m|
————— Pt and Rl Fandng (1.5
——— Post and Feal Fansdng [1 2} ——
— — — Fropsres Arcrhochnl Guard el | PhBse 1 Infrastructure
18| it General Arrangement
______ Propossd Handral (1.1} Sheet 3ol 12
Fraposed Wllenikm Grosn
T akistan R gnn R e
- Froposas knea Fall fancn " o gy
AP Eslsting Hansrall retslrad I 54 sabatle or St Apprral
- T T =] 3
Fust and Whs Fanze - e " "
" POE T ) T
Esdsling Wisdan ras Rl Fance e e i Rk
- waken —
¥CL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CH - 0102
- Exlaihng She Fenze il Poimt | D | e | Lk | Tn | Rk | e
S L

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

8



Site Layout 5 — New
link through to
Leeman Road
Tunnel

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

A ) [ [ o E 3 5 | H

Accoss Junction It of dedaden.

Teanaen tn an camagessmy provdelen,

Sydle lane 12 cantinus

n el
N\
" g furction,

0

hi—-‘h!__

Tamporary
Lasdscasleg.

dfpicfon of B M,

T way cyclewary maralibns
o e e cychelans b e

Chatilen e

General Kyt

e

Landscaral Hanthy
I e Resrain Sysiem

Canlagesmsy
.

Wllorrkim Groan Fostway
N sesresated ekl
N ooy crch i

Sharna ootwy cychrwny

Surtacs oourse pokour corrast

Tamporary Lencucaphig
=== R T
fntallg well

| Unbound Acea for Low Leagor Accoss

11 ArghCH - CWI- Highways\DR - Dras g Y CL-ARP-AMT 0L DA-CHI108

- Indleatvu rafls skyral pole beatlen
[CTTTTT] oottt snerare ke

st Ral Linoalds Aposss orra

Tareths Parg Hoy:
Skl Bl Tuctls jehg
Blster Tazdle pavhg

Tramline Taztle {demaradon on cyche lane]

W_AFeLIF_LH_0;

Lasdor Taclbe {dsmarcuton e fostuay)

=+m  Omdumn whh douthe lanem

wa  Amolumn

sl I
cvm G calumn st doutle latem
wa A edumn abh sl e

s dm column s slngle head

Bm mubkhead cobimn
O tom med it solume

O tim meb-hend solumn

s s s

€07 obed

gle|z|z|a|z|]=]:]: |
g
B
Plelelale]as]|=]:|: |

BB
Ble|e(s|s]a|]=] ||

o b bk
Cyeda cenecton 1 cruss ki
‘omards Khgedond Temce, =
Doe_| Do s
e R
e —
e o —
e ———
e
CliyolYork Councll
Fencleg <o
Fraposos hoaesleg e (1 3m) ==
. ahwctk Rl Oparatenl Biudary | YOTK Gentral
Fenclag (7.
———— Pust ang Fal Fendng (1.3
——-— st and Feal Fandng (1 e T
—— — Froposes Arcrbechrl Guard all | PHase 1 [nfrastructure RMA
l it General Arrangement
Fraposns Hansral (1,1m) Sheet & af 12
Froposed ilknskim Groen
T bakistain B [z
4+ Proposos Knea Rall fonce - Ol - Highways
AN Eslsting Hangral relslrad I 54 Subatle or Sage Appral
1y Exlathng Pust and ks Fance - Y [T [T "
. 171~ rtatnes POs T
Esdithg Wossden Hus Ral Fance e i " !
e —
¥CL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CH - 0108
4 Eslathg Ebe Fance el Pt | D e | Lt | T | ok | Pk
S i

9



Site Layout 6 — Park
Street

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

N Genoral Kayt
, M el e
Landscape! Flantig
I o140 Fuosvake Sgstom
ey cund
. e e

Sugragated cpcl lane
continue along P boukvas,

Bus st
3wt
= tdm by

s thgomy 12 5,1,

[ D
Milkornkim Groen Fostway
I seseaned cpcklunn
e
Shams foohwmg! cysleway
‘Surace course ook oorrast
Temparary Lancucaphy
B v crmner
Sntaklg well
_____ Unbound Acsa for Low Leador Accoss
& Pdoaten il skl pole pestlen
Prctustiin determare pavivg

sigtwork Rall Linoalde Acosss ovea

Torethe Pl Mot
Shyralins Blsisr Tactle sy
Blsier Tozdls pareng
Trarmiine Tactk jderarcadon en cyck lane)
Ladkdus Tactbe |dararciren o fostmiy)

Lt Kot
=sm  #m column whh doutle larsem

a8 column wih single lnem

mem e e whh doutls lalem
wn i b g e
wm Amcolumnwhh dngle nead
8 rubkead cebimn
O Y0 el ecdums

0 tmmell-hend column

0T 9bed

o e | s b w o [ | o
i [ | o e b e [
e || ek o [ | o
van || ek o o [ [
[l T T Ty w o | |
) w [ = [
o | o | o e | o | e |
Akl i,
e gmae
e —
T —
e
Clyol Yok Councll
Fenclrg ey
Am) o
e ot Pl Sl By | ¥OTH Gntral
Fencing {1.6m)
———— Post and Ral Fandng (1.9
JE— Pastand E———
—— Phase 1
L= General Arrangement
----- Fraposes Hansral (1,9m] Sheat 4 of 12
T bakistaie A gm0 [ ——
- Froposas Knea Sallfanca " ad - st
AAAAN Eslsting Hansral ralalrad 54 « Subatle for age Approval
- G T o "
ey Folithg Prst an Vb Fance - ™ a f
raaled POG = =
P T [ e
retaled e
¥CL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CH - 0104
4 Exdillng Ehis Fance bt P | O | e | Lonkr | T | Bk | ek

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

10



Site Layout 7 —
Hudson Boulevard

S

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

General Kay:
—TT T
Landscape Flanting
I a0 R 3psiom
Curligamsy
Fatwmy
Wilksrakim, Gresn Fostway
I seswaed cpch e
N ce-cartugosy cyehi lem
Shams foahwmg! cysleway

Dvamingf CLARP-ANT 0L DACA- 0105

‘Surtace ceurse ool portrast
Temparary Lancacsphg

[ [ —

(L] otatebeg et

Unbound Acsa for Low Leador Azcoss

Feecanfon trafl slgeal pobe bizstken

I AnsgiiCH - W

(77771 prcmsstin saerars pavieg

sigtwork Rl Linoalde Acoess ovea

Tortle Pasdrg Kery!
Shralund Blsier Tucths sakg
Blster Tazdle gy

Tramiine Taztlk jdemaradon e oyck lana)

N_ARIIF_UK_2i0:

Ladkdus Tasthe |damarsiden o fostmiy)

Lt Kot
=sm A column whh doutls lrsem

ea Bmcdumn st singhIimem
- e column with double lelem
wu o column e sghs

e Am column whh einghs nesd

am rubkead cebimn
O 0w bl odums

O tammedl-hend column

GOT obed

- | | | =
W | Dok | Oomcter By | oo | et | mm
Jr T B T
e —
e e —
e ———
e
Clyof Yok Councll
Fenclrg Ko
B Fchect The.
_____ Ntk Fal Dstlens| Beuetary | 07K Central
Fenchng (7.6m)
————— Fust and Rl Fandng (1.5
— Pt and ——
- Fhase 1
11,7} General Arangement
=== === Fmposss Hansral (3,1m) Sheet & of 12
T akistan e gm0 R ante
- Fropases nea Fall fonca - il - Hlghwirys
AANAA, Elsiing Hanzrall rsislrad 54 - Suboble for Stoge Approval
- uu T = o
sl Pust s b Fance - ae - -
raahied P06 [ T T T
P v [ [ [
[ =
¥CL -ARP-RMi- XX - DR - CH - 0105
- Estathng Shis Fence el b | Db | Lk | T | | e
L

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

11



Site Layout 8 — Hudson
Boulevard and Cinder
Street

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Genaral eyt
KM Feal Spuar

Lardseapal Fovthg
I ke Resrait Sysiem
Cartlapamay
[ oo
Wllornkim Groan Fostway
I seirosaied crck lane
[ comcantugemy crch
fiharms laatwg! cyzhway
Surtace course ool oonfrast

B v cromnenvar
sntallg wall
1] untssund Acsa for Law Loaser Accoss
- Idleatvn rafle skyral pole beatlen
Pretmt{ne datermare pasieg

watwork Fal Lineedds Aroass wea

ot e Byt
Slgralfue: Blsier Tuztl ks
Blster Tocdle parshg
Tramiine Toctlk iemarcadzn on cyck lane]

Lasdor Tacille {demarcaton en fostmay)

Lt g
—vm i cehun b doutle b
- B column with single laam
wem G column with double lalem
wa i wbhslgh e
ol b gl s

am mulkhoad colimn

Q
a

#0m meldduat eodume

v mebl-hawt column

11 ArgiCH - M- FighwaysDR - Dras g ¥ CLARP-AM LI DR-CA-1 10

W_AFeP_UW_Z 00

90T 9bed

. | o | | o
P W e | | o
. o e || -
o | | | |
- w | [ |
woe | Do | Dencteer By | ke | ewa | em
T S
T ——
T e —
e ——
e
Clyol Yok Counell
A T
o Mtk Rl S By | Y07K Gantral
Fenchig {1.8m|
———— Fustand Ral Fandng [1.56)
——— Pustan
J— Phasa 1
it General Arrangement
—— Praposns Hansml (1,1} Sheet 100112
T bakistain e gm0 [ a0
4+ Fropasad knea Fall fosca M o g
AANAA, Exliling Hanzral ratalred 54 « Suhatle for Saga Approal
- 3 T = o
| el Pt an Wb Fance | - | ae | - | -
raahed POE o

Fall Fance

T T T
v v v v

- e

- Essting e Fence retaled

T
¥CL -ARP-RMi- XX - DR - CH - 0110
bt | O s | L | T | Bk | R

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

L

12



Site Layout 9 — Link to

Foundry Street

\
g CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

=

)

Fedeatian croashg pelit.

.\I —

Frapased fencalhne -
1o ths[res wadsing, ;k_,-h_-;a--
'_/'—_‘

Gate o allow dellthe

It MM Sonath Furd,

Frapased gaie 12 sncuns
AN I 2uthg
mavemens.

Genenal Kay!
j—TT R
Lardseapal Fovthg
I e kae Resaint spstem
Cartlapamay
Featuny
Wllornkim Groan Fostway
N sesrosaied cychiluna
N ccantugensy ki
fiharms laatwg! cyzhway
Surlace course ook contrast
Temporary Landucaping
=== R
sntallg wall

1] unbound assa for Low Leasor Accoss

11 ArpiCH - - FighwaysDR - Dessingl Y CL-ARP-RM 0L DR-CHO108

®  ledcaton rafle skyal pelks stk

T R——

watwork Fal Lineedds Aroaes wea

ot Paden Mo
Slgrafsut Blsier Tucls sk
Blster Tocdle parshg

Tramiive Toctle {demarcaton o cyck lane)

W_AFeP_LH_Z 00

Lasder Tacille {demarcaton on fostmay)

Lghide ot
P L e T Ay

am column sh singhe I

—- e column with deutle balem
wu el b sl e

A column wih single nead

am mulkhoad colimn

= | 0 s mittmss e U
— O vommebn solumn QJ
o [ s ra b v [ o
s [avea| s b o | o |
o | o o | o [ \I
vor | | o e bn o | o | [
[ T e ey | o |
- - | | [
v | o | ovecten oy | o | e | e
il
T e —
e e r—
e —]
E=
Clyol York Counell
Fendg Ko
Am) T
IR ——— LA
Fencing (2.6mi
Pt and Rl Fandg [ 50
[ —— =
— Phase 1
it General Arrangement
——— Froposnd Hansml {11 Sheet 801 12
T pabieute A gm0 )
- Frapases Knea Aol fosce R N m—
AAAAA, Exiting Hinzal rstalrad 54 - Sukable for Saga Approal
= L ) = =
1 Bt Pt b Fane | - | a | - | -
ratabiesd POE T ) T
o Fom o [P o
- e =
¥CL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CH - 0109
St Ealalhog Sl Fance it L Rt Rl Rl Tl R M
=

S

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

13



Site Layout 10 —
Foundry Street

B i
g CITY OF

YORK

Ly

COUNCIL

Vardstandlng provdad for
e

Mussurs ExhbR 2olvartes,
Asastod Higirwy
ity tntlaa, et 0 psoations cycfis + yrgagy sl

Frugas: uul..u..\ Prdustin muts,

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

g A

(¢

frues Lseman
FAnad,

General Hayt

WP Fal St
Landscape Flosthy
I e Resrain spsiem
Calgossiy
[ v
Mllarnbims Groan Fostay
I sesresaied cychlina
I oo reha i
Sharns tootw cyclwny
Surtace oause pokour conrast
Tampuary Lancucsph
vt Crasacnnr

(77T s wal

(11 untound Asea for Low Leasor Accoss

® lecdeaten e skyral pobs bzatlen

(77777 Pt srars ke

watwork Sal Linealde Aroees orea

Tacth Padrg Moy

Syl Bl Tuctls prckg

Blster Tazdlke pavhyg

Tramiine Toztls {demaraten on cych mre)

Lasder Tache [damarcuton e foctmay)

Loy Mt

A celumn b el bareaen

wa Bmodum

h slnghe loem
cem ol whh deutle latem
e Amerdumn sbh sl |

e= dmcolumn sk gl fead
am mubknead cokimn
Q

#0m meld dnsat ecdume

O tammebl-hend column

" Smengag

SR o g,
4 ngni oy
Fovae
e .

‘80T 9bed

gl D Drtad g ¥ CL-ARF AN 0-DR-CH-011

NI AngiCH - G -

W_ARLF_UW_ZD)

s mae b

s Satkaken

B
B

Audia Cyck i

HHEHEOEEHEE

elefe|z|z|z]5] ] |:
glele)e||8]®] ]|

Ilelelalele|a]:|:]:]:

Frnclrg ke

Fraposod hoardleg lne (1 2m)

Hetwah Fral Opsratfenal Beusdiry

T Fenchg (1.6

——-— Pastand el Fandng 12

—— — Fropans Archkectoral Guard Bl
[19m)

——— Fmpases Hansml (3,

Fraposed Mlknikim Groen

Babiskain

- Frogsens Knea Aol fenca

AnAAA, Editing Hanzral ratalrad
Exdaling Pusl and Win Fance

117 rahes

Estilh; Wissden s Rl Fance
- e

P il

York Cantral

=y

Phase 1 [nfra:

Siruchsre
General Arangement
Sheel 11 of 12

o
ac -
P06

TYCL -ARP.RM1- XX - DR - CH - 0111

s ol Tl il Il Wl

14 -



P Page 109 n
““mx““w m m|_|m.ul

=HE H | § 20

EOET | ]

gl dael F o4 dii s |||z
TR FIRHETTRI L
SUTHH T i 2T 1ok e
lw_S\\_ ME CBEE-S aTHAN ¢ M\ TR Al BT LR
P il esd p 0ty
e N
. | 1INIRRE INE

I - _ B . ! =1 . | U

H

— 2
o]

5 ¢
_.I
- 8 3
1_NS
5234
O — o
> C o> =
T O c A
-1 o 2=
0.8 =
20T ®@ O
n<x O



Site Layout 12 —
Leeman Road
Tunnel and Station
Rise

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

A A ] (4 D E E o H 1 J

Emarmart gk, o~

o o] s pbbe = = [~
v [sveam| s sk o [ o= [ |
I o o= [ | o
T o o= [
[ T e T | o [ | -
- | o | |
Sy | Dae | Decipten By | ook | Aewd | Al
3 A .
r, e
e e —
o e ——
el
ClyolvorCoundll
i Fenelrg Megi
FPraposed hearsleg Ine (1 2m) Tackeci T
N Natwrk ul Ogssfensl Bedary | 1 OTK Cantral
Fenclng (1.6m)
——— Pl and Ral Fandig 1 %)
——— st an Feal Fandng (1 2 Tta e
—  — Froposes Arrbockml Guard el | Phse 1 [nfrastructure RMA
N it General Arrangement
------ [——— R Sheet 7 of 12
FPraposed Mllernkim Groen
T babiatn Ry aag et n oy
—~—+— Fropsns Knea Fall force o s
AAAAN, Eslsting Hansrall retalrad 54 « Subatle lor Sage Approval
- L = = =
. Exfallng Pusl and Wi Fance. a~ o - -
. rutaked POE | T T T
Estalhyg Wosden Heas Fial Fanse i i o !
- wanes )
¥CL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CH - 0107
- Exfillg Shis Fence bt Prbe | O | ke | Lok | Tre | Pk | ke
Epepn

Eantroow skgrage

General ey
WAt Fal S
Landscage! luiing
I oo Reavakit System
Canfgemsy
[ oo
Wllarnhis Grosn Foshusy
I sesrusated cycke luse
[ [———
hams by cpchway
Sutaco cowse cakur corrast
Teirgorary Linsetaphg
| R
atakbg vl

Unbund Acea for Low Lzoger Accoss

Frelzaten il shgral ok posthen
f[[[fﬂ Prtmrtinn dalemart paving

setwork Sl Linesdde Acoses ovea

Tirclhs Pasdrg Koyt
Skl Blater Taclls kg
Alster Tacdks pavhyg

Tramiine Toct

{semaraten en oyck lane]

Laddur Tacibl {darrarcadon n fastmay)

Ligheley e
=+m O column wih dastle e
e 8w column wih singe loem
e ol i deutle laten
wa e clumn e sl e
s am column whh ngh read
am rutkaoad cehimn
O vom el et eolume

@ vam e ol

IV AraffiCH - M1 Flghways DR - Drmse gy CLARP M O DAL 010,

cosracPV_ARUF_UW_Z0

01T abed

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

T



mmm  Segregated 2 way cycle route
Marble Arch Tunnel - e

R NN\ 77

e ———
Improved pedestrian Segregated 2 way
connection cycle lane
Z > < N
_ MARBLE LEEMAN ROAD
==" Y ARCH TUNNEL
YCQNBLK City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020 17

TTT obed



Sections 1 — Adjacent

to Millennium Green

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

A

T

[+] o E F =] ] J L N o P -
: E
0 C
g E
g
200 4 i F 20
Exprirg Eat;
Coast Mah
2 Lo
=0 [ 150
80 - 100 g
3|
&0 T T T T T T T T T 58
| 3 3 3 ] E E] g H E El el
Sectlon - Ch; 0+020,000
Ecals 1:200
300 roano §
‘ Key Plan R
Scake 1:10000 (|
ELD | [ 250
w00 H [ 200
5|
150 [~ 150 ﬂ
MBenkum Grean QJ
& 0o o [ oo ‘ ! !
= o T T 58 I LN
g § g E] =
7 N
08 rano
ELD | [ 250
&
0o o [ 200
150 [ 150
9
RLTRE | oo
sa T T T T T T T T T a8
1) g ] § # - 3 E H g g H
Sectlon - Ch; 0+180,000
Seale 1200
- Pradest e
B UP York Cenral
- AR - T v—
" T
- m P
- - T 4413 343 MBS em obd Y 2T e —
IR = = == r— =
S E—r Car ] ol O G e
CYC, Homes England and Typleal Seclons Do ) T T
el ) B ) o | oec . Netwark Ra" ngnm‘ 00D 08 Eili -
O T o Sheet 1of 7 "YEL «ARP=RMi- XX = DR = GH - 0121
T w [5e |t am
ook e | et | o | e | e
= N

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12t

ovember 2020



Sections 2 — South of
Millennium Green

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Al A B © o 3 F [} H 4 L
30 4 R
1 3
250 4 My b LuE et [ 250
Eslelng L dusirg
Esdsling tedecommunk
— Propased HY ducting
Frispussist LV dusfey 3
20 Proposed telscommunications ducing [ 20
Esdsting East
Coast Mal Una
2
150 1580
. - i
wo - 1e0 §
| | -
50 T T T T T T T T T 50
- - L] ] o o o - - o o
- g A B q 7 & £ ® ] E g
Section - Ch: 0+220.000
Scale 100
4 Key Plan o
Key Flan y
Hign bresl cvarfrw mocie and fow cont dasfoss Scaka 110000 5
Efcratiasfo planier, Wi ks pats sa o1 suknshe locatiens or salnarancs. E
drain the fa0f and aytleways ond an
— ovncfow for lirgs siom avents. Blaretendon e piand plonter. with kam
DT Ry b Usllilea: bilats % crakn e carmel peseay e an [0 %
Mo v shoemn evenils
Progased WY ductig Hytrs brask
Progosed LY ductieg IL 7.38 mOD
Progased wlcommuskathng dusing
5 sog ] Prosesed g sueely Wil et 5 fonn g ol bacms L oann
Progosed potablo water supply 1o redute the pradent on dfs plea. 3
- s - Bend fm dogin TN e i [
ILa 5.040man. % ™ s
‘E T
. . - ‘“_g [ —— - _
6 1 Dalesigu stsiiu o alten.sits waler g - L
2 okt te b besds, ! o
@ tea S drsin, Sos rale . e e 3 i g
Gompanssry Storags 1790 QJ
_ 18,8 a0 & Dapehe 2m
50 T T T T T T T T T 58 @
? g E E g 3 g E 2 g E )
. Sectlon - Ch; 0+400,000
Scale 1200 I AN
N ¥
i Finy to Utliles1 %- i g %
Preposad HV ducting
Praponsd LV cuthg £ & Apsrsimatn koo of
158 Propomed I meommankalkes dochg i -i:(ha plvate ::hh 158
Prapossd gaa supsly Vo — — — - — ey [mm o — — A waler supply (o
— Proponed potnshs waler mipply 1 [ e ]
mots 1 A L -
- i L S i
100 100
Frogoned Aperbate focafos of
f oo e :; eadsting combined sewer
e be 1]
&0 T T T T T T T T T 50
. b 3 3 g g 3 E E g E
Sectlon - Ch: 0+128.000
1) Teah 1200
1. Drewing o be read In conjunction with al relevant drawirgs. detalls and 9. Duslgn of aarth retalning structurs s 1 saparata the foundation i T
smclladons, 0 highwsy from B8 Milanlum Graen ambankmen, ARUP “York Cenral
ADLImk of deviation based upon the parsmeters plan, kA T
9, Eross sectlons are Indkadve anly, 11.Htched aroa baneah embankmants Lo ba treated. Meshod = = =
{ e e e e e N : ] S
. Th t Lo 28 . 4 - Gukwshe for
s nes:n?;'::;:.‘" et dra swale deslgn wil b duvsl Infiure be-g-m vartlal face, Milennlum Green slope to be bt - | TS e e st iz = ~I-=h ald | — _
6. Unless staled slsswhere the bghway wil be dralned using rapoed gulles kil i il ™3 Totea THe Ll ac L:3 -
o i, w sl s b e earust Highvany oo drab ‘*M'““"“ reirarcement amangament shown I indicative [l e e i [ oe | C¥C, Homes England and Typleal Sectlans PO3 = -
7. Starage type ta bedulnnﬂnbddll'hg detaled nnulgn High vold raticn only. Delalled design io be completed by suppler. ea [ovean) ran i = | | Netwark Rall Highways aonszs | towm | avmses -
stana ar gaocaljular crates are balng consid P T [T P P ey Sheet 2 of 7 —
5, Gantractor 1o abous or 8 3 ascavaton and Instllaon f lean il o | oo [ o e YCL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CH - 0122
matertal up to formatlon laval, )

| D] Vel | T ]

e

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

19

=



Sections 3 — Central
Area adjacent to Park

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

[

Al A B [} o 3 F [} H | J L [:] B -
1 E
250 r#a
— Blerutention rea pi and plasier, wih ket
200 4 Inkota ta draln the Tost ared cycleseys and Bt vrge i s i o [ =
o ovarlow oe angn st s it s gy, i
NFM ral e ovelow faf large llmn .ML
E Proposad heardg
o _unm———|—————| ———— —tSmam [ 1se
Cmor || I mers i
_ e —— L1 Sirm L e .
o o [ 10
Eg . 5 m?ou\‘l potable Water susply
3 E! ‘; 2 U ! ST — --a.., e slon
B T T T o T T T 54
o
3 3 7 q g 3 g 3 3 3 2
n Sectlon - Ch: 0+600.000
Soalks 1:200 8
4 Key Plan a!
Beak 1110000 g‘
N Blanutartben varge wlih nm Iebets 1
drain he carragesey, wih
i R e s
5
Progosed hoarding
150 158
— 1Pty -U
[ et el e - - -
150 1090 m
! fsmg «Q
Frapased Foul sewar (D
50 g T g T g T g T g T g T g T T g T &
— o E] E] o = = a o E] E]
i i i § g : E H H E g [ .Y
Sectlon - Ch; 0+760,000 =
Beaks 1200 h
7
;|0 5 r &0
] Fny to Uefhon:
ELL A " [ 200
Progased :m Prepossd hoardrg Proposed hosndlg
Progesed [akcommunieations dusteg
| Progosed fos supply
Prozosad bottle mate mpshy e i acs
160 [ 50
FLoTe . IRLOTE
— - -- sl e
_ [ ; e
F
e \ 'H g £ g £ I s
Apprsmate bcarkon ot ¥ g L g .
‘sl e poinbl 5 L] gt s
A wartar sugply f1o be. Apgrodimate koadon of ‘water wupgly (o be
sbandomd) ealsting pdvae LW ducing |
L T T T = T T T T T T L
= = = 2 2 e 3 ) ) =
. § § % & s 3 B & & g ]
Section - Ch: 1+100.000
Seale 1200
10|
1. Drawing o be read In conjunction wih sl relevant drawirgs. datsls and 9. Dsslgn of aarth ratalning sructurs |5 1o separata the foundation ka1
spechiatons, of 018 highvwsy from 18 Mllanlum Geaen ambankmen, ARUP York Cenral
A0LImR of deviaon based upon the paramebers plan, kAl el g e 00
1. Habched area baneath embankments 1o bs irsated. Metod
: &mﬂmﬁmﬁmk :‘d“c‘:"“]b'ﬂ:.u upan completion nfi::!vd o e o ot 8 T
The t Inaga 12, Yark Cantral embankmant to ba constructed th bur] hl il bl - il Lt Lin i kel oL s for
& ms:n?\ex':a::‘" plotra swale deslgn wl e dvsloped b ifure bag week vertkal face, Milennlum Green slope to be bullt I E w [ [ = Tl 44173 242 B8 T 44 310 42 072 _ ~;-=|. s:::w| = _
. Unlsss staled alsewtens B bghway wil be draired using Faped gulles afarwards El o I = == KN ac e -
ar similar, with lsteral dralns bo the nearest highway carder drak. 13.Geogrid Gﬂﬂ.’l relnforcament arangement shown |s Indlcative M. i | e | CYC, Homes Englanﬂ ond Typlcal Sections PO3 o o o
7. Starage type to be determined during detaled design. High vold ration orly. Delalled deslgn to be completed by suppler. ea [ovean) ran i - | | w Network Rall Highways aonszs | avewms | s -
stona ar gaocaljular crates are balng conslderad, P T [T = e [ w | = 5 307 —
8, Contractor o alow for 8 2w excavaton and Installation of clean All e | e | oo P ey ey e e ¥CL =-ARP=-RM1- XX = DR = CH - 0123
matarlal up to formaton leval, Priact

|t em | on | T | e | e

T

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

20

=



Sections 4 — Cinder Street

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

A A B c D E E -3 H 1 1 K L [ o | e
N
1 @ -4
. - Boulevard
=0 =0 Badua
N ]
200 o I 200
z|
e
150 4 [ 158
PLOTF L
] o 1imALD
o o - e 3
3|
Bection = Chy
5o T T T T T T T a0 1420,000
Baction = Che
i : s 3 3 2 2 3 3 8 L
o
:
4 Key Plan o
Bcake 1:10000 5
e r =8
;e o I =a
& Dvap O Pelat.
188 h I 158
AoTD
— . _
10 - Clreles Lane | F10e
’ U
5 : : : : : : : : : 0 QD
7 t 3 3 3 2 2 2 3 ? 2 «Q
7 H
¥ Blarstnetfan tres ol arsd
r, with Ker Inlots to
drak the foat and
Hony 1o Ui Hes; and i cxvarflow Tor large
wiom avenis
— Exkilng saer "
R 3
Pmmwmn::: - Edillng fwntar plzon PLOTF
Prepomad ircomminkatoes ducthg NRM
Prepesed gas supsly g,
9| Proposad potazie waler supgly
7
Dabaga siatingu i alianate water deabbg fus fu
1 High baved iy Ratarm being released ata
corirol devices provdded al mafntle sucer el o the carr crab, See nsin 7,
lecatons for makilenance.
1) 28m 3,
am Real Zane Cidacaging 4m Footway Fuishe Bpars
Boulevard Section
1, Drawing to be resd In canjunction whh sl relevant drawirgs, detalls and 9. Daslgn of earth retalning structurs |s 1o separata the foundation e T
" oo, s ras of 16 Highwy from Be Milsnlum Graen ambankmen, ARUP York Cenral
A0.LinR of deviation based upon the parsmebers plan, SebwAl N kA 00
11.Halched aren baneath emiankments Lo ba reated. Method
¥ &“&ﬂmﬂmﬁ;‘" ard extert fo b spockled upan campletion of G - o N e ot 3 " ot
5, The devalopment plot drakage swale design wil b developed In fulure 12, ¥ark Gantral smbankmant ko ba constructed first with burled - M ey — T ——
design phases, bag work vertkal face, Mllennlum Grean slope 1o be bullt - || - T 44 173242 MBS Tam 4 111 20D - 2 .-... _ _
8, Unless staled alsewhene By Hghway wil be dralred using rapoed gulles anenwards, oot |aanvio] s mimimim wifo|w =" K ac NE -
ar sirila, il el el o the nearest highway oot draty 13.Geogrid earih reinforcement amangament shown |6 indicative o[ veina] s arate. - e | = e Pod | - — —
7. Staraga type ta be determined during detaled design. High vold raflcn arly. Delalled design o be completed by suppler. en || s i -0 | ﬁ:z'n?:::"’ England and H;A‘&f:‘ lons venezs | “oemian | “dewins |7 —
stana ar gaocelular crates are bajng conslderad, R T P e e —
8, Gontractor to alow for a 2m excavatlon and Installalan of clean fl o T e e Sheet4 of 7 YCL -ARP-RN1- XX - DR - CH - 0124
masarlal up to fermaton level, P | Ol | Vol | lomien | Tige | G | e

Genaan

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

=



Sections 5 — Coal Drops

4

N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Al

AT AP ComPW_RLF_UK_Tin

L N o B
1
00 ; g g ms
. CodDogs oo
80 ! 1 ! I ! b se
noTC
: A ¢ P ) i
e T T T T T T T T T T T 10
. ¢ # E E E E E g 3 3 E E g
Sectlon - Ch; 1+466,000
3| Soale 1:200
A
— = £ 2 g ma
{4
L — s
5| 182 ———— o ! ! ' I ' L
POTG | ﬁ Q i ’” i I i e
[ P A R o
— 0e r r r na -U
# E ? E E i i § g QD
. Section - Ch: 1+480,000 «Q
Bealn 108 (D
N N O )
&
Secton = Ch;
14480 000
9|
Sectlen - G
486,000
9
Key Plan
Scal 1;10000
- - - Pradest e
- 1= ARUP Yark Gentral
= N I L™ R im0
= - e [ ——
| . T —
- [ I = == - P03 " |Tee | |-
er [ i M
oot e == N England and H;A‘&f:‘“"“’ E T R
e s e ey e e Sheet 5 of 7 YCL -ARP-RMi- XX - DR - CH - 0125

Prive | Ohhkr| s | Lok | Tipe | ke | b

G

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

=

22



Sections 6 — Concrete

Depot

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Al

F ] M | 1 K L H o | B
I N
Kay ta Ll itean
raite focstfen af Approodmate. of
1 Existng KV dustng <A i e @
Efsing tabsen=muicaons sucing gy i o
Sty embradeovr T o e
Pr e xkrdng el meking gow ducing {is e
Frugosed LV dutieg uing {1 bm abancorns) atwrddereet)
— Propase murksatkens ducing 4
Propaset gan aupy 3
Progosed potable water supply
HE
mugeul 1
E I
# g 1 I | : moTe
o _ _ 4 P 4
- § i ! wmrions, e
E _g & i i g uana 5 14625000 i
e H weber |2
3 Sectlon - Ch: 1+510.000
‘Seak 1200
4 Key Plan al
Beake 1:10000 §|
Koy to Udlttive: Apprasimn losaion of E
unbiing potutl waler
— Eslueg HY duating supply (0 b nbardoned) E
Exbeieg tabssommunkeation dusdrg
Exlbiteg pusatle malw supcly Repezafrraa bzstlen ol 5
Enloirg sewer * ankiing LV ductiag (o be E
Frepemed HY ductihg o)
Propesed LV du
5| 'roposed mibcommunications duding Apgrovimats leoaton of
Proposed gm walsting ielecommnicarions
Proposed potable waler supsly Suctig 1o be azandoned]
Agprodmane bcatkon of
— aalriry gas dusing 1o ba
atandoned)
P
& T
1
: N T q , R il
{ i ' -
] | A : o
] g g r——— = Aopaadsats losation of a @
andsing WY ducteg o ke anksiing MY dhcting i Bo § CD
1
i Apsraximate lscaion of
g g e =
Sectlon - Ch; 1+525,000 b
_ Bealn 1208 \l
&
g My o U Iithes
g 4 g i E‘ Exbilrg LV duciing
_ Progased Ky
e & £ & Progeoed LY ductivg
Progosed tkcommunizations dusing
Progosed gas supply
. \ [rr——— . . Q i E E a"__"__""'m Prossersat cosathe wati sespshy 5
- ___________I__ —— [ I — - -
N FLOTH ! o [ L
. [ N -
o T T T T T T T T T
B e ? g ? E E ] # ? 2
Concrete Depot Sectlon
10 Soals 1:200
- - Prdest e
B B Yark Central
= - ARUP A ]
- - = Chell= HI
" w | i e e o 7 R B e R —
- = T 50173243 48 e ot 11T 2T
- i = e - P03 " |Tee | |
| o b, i | oz | w
CYC, Homes England and Typleal Sections Do ) T T
Ll e ) o oo | Network Rall ngnm‘ 0N EIL) il -
T T PRI Sheet & of 7 "YeL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CH - 0126

ETT

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

=



A a B c o E E -3 H 1 1 3 L ™ [ o |

Sections 7 — Adjacent |
to National Railway :
Museum |

3 R Balnsa bulkiing

. e Cattmpr s
:
4 Key Plan o
Beak 1110000 §|
= @ i
T
[}
E i
. Section - Ch: 1+560.000
Scale ;200 U
b g wol 5o =
) \LL E o
1 N
g £ 2
4
b Section - Ch! 1+618.000
Beale 11200
|
")
- - - - - Prsfeat e
- [~ -] - Yaork Central
e MR B e, ]
’: o R HEEE ) L r—
=N CITY OF N e | T T it o S e
bl bl Bk bl il [y - Pt - LY H‘GC MNB - -
L S L e = CYC, Homes England and Phase 1 [nfrastructure b " b -
Es P Py il d Network Rall Typleal Sectlons = e | s | swees —
e | e | cobn DI Sheet 7 of 7 ¥CL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CH - 0127
T =

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020 24



Serverus Bridge — Cross
Section and Elevation

/l

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

6TT obed

A A B c o E F G H 1 J K
Concrete of side wall of abutment with
texture using elastomeric forminer
(Reckl or equivalent)
1
— N N D O B
— - =
South elevation
2 Scale 1:250
[ T T T RRE: ) o
o 15m
Miain structural girder Pedesirian-friendly face wsing ciadding or surface treatment Giass parapet
FRefer to drawing Reter fo drawing Feefer to drawing
] YCL-HNHRM 1-NE-DR-CB-1002 YCL-KNHRM 1-NE-DR-CB-1002 YCL-=NHRM1-WE-DR-CE-1003
Detail A
FRefer to drawing o
\'CL-KNH‘HI-“EDH—GE—IIIIZ
e e =
2 p A S . —
J il ! 1
I r / 1 - (r\\
I | Ly — ~ ol
) o | - [ b v
—~ it | ¥, | ¥ 7
-1 [ [0 | ! [ i
. . Y | ! \l
4 / 7 | T 7
- / "
‘Secondary girder
B [ || Referio aawing
'.I YCOL-KNI-RM1-WE-DR-CS- 1002
e
e
/ \
5 e =y
/ 2000
e
— /
e
e
&
Cross section A-A
Scale 1:50
—~ Mote: Refer to drawing YCL-KNIRM?-WE-DR-CB-1000 for cross section location
n ‘ : 2,
T // Concrete of front wal of abutment wih urfacng Concrete siab,
1 texture created using elastomeric forminer: mnmnmﬂ
! / /nz:ulor:nuuulam n(cnlo\muw'ﬂ /// ! /
I Iy | /// 777 : A
1 Existing Severus Bridge 1 : Severus Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge !
| —— —
‘York Central, Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA J—
As Ehown 134
. Brigge Antitectine
i i e —
5 g B = =
=0 Toeairg T oP HE MK
- - L) 2 T
: x:: : e : : : CYC ! Homes England / Network Ral mg:"eim;m%sydem ':;mm R )
G | o | Ceenonos By | | g | e mY:L-KM-MI-WE-W-tE-IDO!
Mlmlmlwllﬁllmlum
Do vl el © Hight Aschitects

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting

12th November 2020

25



Serverus Bridge —
Steelwork Details

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

A B c D E
x4 X3 Main structural girder x3 4
SO — oo e
2 ® Secondary girder
1= e
Linear ighting
Plan of steelwork
Scale 1:200 £
 I———
Pedest ity
Tace using cladding
- ‘or surface reatment
E . .
e
i
E B E /
o 1= 0 ] =
x1 =4

Steelwork cross section
Scale 1:20

o in

3D Cross section

0¢T 9bed

Detail A - Pedestrian-friendly face using cladding or surface treatment

Scale 1:10
;:I:I:I:I%Im

P e i g

=T
‘York Central, Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA = S T
ay— - i34
[

Brisge Architecturs

B m B bl for Sagm Approval

¥
E
£
E

= T = N oP MNB mm\ -
. - L) 3 T 2 2
CYC { Homes England / Network Ral §E""""P§d§f“‘d Cycle Bridge e | oundmes | ououanss
YL = KM = AM1 = WE = DR = C8 = 102
b | oo | ama | i | Ten | som | e

Dt el sl

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

6 & Hright Aschitect



Severus Bridge — Visual 1

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Y,

== F—
-
Bage Arctaecture.
E4 = Eulatie fr Stage Apgrovel
- o e = =
= T oF e e
i ez
CYC / Homes England / Network Raid Severus Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge o = B =
£ - o .- > ry CRO4020 | OHO42020 | 0M0L020
Aerial view
T [ | 5= = —
G | e | Omepnon L B B YOL = KN = M1 = WE = DR = C8 = 1006
s | o | Ve | o | Tom | bom | wamie
Do rot scele

—

York Central, Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

7 T




Severus Bridge — Visual 2

T

York Central, Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA

— S As Shown I“‘"(mg- 1
z -y - Brige Actiechure
g CITY OF P —
Y — 1 CYC 1 Homes England / Network Rl Severus Pedestian and Cycle Bridge L 3-L - ‘-,'H = o - —
— - —— \nmmoﬂ G340 | 05042020 | 0S0M020 -
ORK - a oy |Owe| Aga | A - YCL = KN = M1 =« WE = DR = C8 = 1008
e | v | e | i | ron | |
COUNCIL Da fut scule City or YOrk Council Planning Committee vVieeting - IZ2th November ZUZU 23 SRPEARN



East Coast Mainline Bridge

— Bridge Plan

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

e, MILLENNIUM GREEN

1.5m Ha n sk s
cortainment parapet Wi
ciagding on back face
fToctway side]

Footway, concrebe paving bpe 1

Bridge Plan
Scale 1:250
L I I I ]
L =

Sructural weathering stesi arch

1.0m In =ity concrete
mpact barer with ciadding on back face (cycleway side]

Sagretaied cycieway, resin bound gravel
or coloured asphal

Fosotwary, resin bound grawel or coloursd asphat

I
1
I -
R . B
1
1
I _
I 1 |
- : -
1 —
i
1
i
1
1
I R
' _—
] | = I
1 1
:
e e C T
- m !
- I
————————————————— g o R 5" . AR xR WAL e
—"’ 1 -
— \ ///
A | -
1" ¢ -
- - /
.-/'- /
- -
l—" 'Y -
-
-
-
-
-
o
e NLleuRH.NL_'Lic""ﬁ —
i — BOUNDRAT,
e . £t i
— __ RESERVED MAT] |
— — FRTRTP I
- o | e DL
- | BUILDING EUTURE DEVELOPMENT

IS
NS

g it e SR

‘fork Central, Phase 1 Infrastructurs RMA

= ==
= CYC | Homes England / Network Ra East Coast Mainfine Bridge
Bridge Plan
= =
O

s Enown

T R

134
= Eridge Architecture
= B4 Buitabie b Singe Appr
= - i -
e E3 — T T
OEO4E000 | DEMMO0N0 | OE042000 -
YCL o= KM = M1 = ER = DR = C3 = 0
Frama | copmer | e | iomas | Tgs | G| e

D et scle:

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

29

© Kright Architects



East Mainline Bridge —
Bridge Cross Section

\
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

J K

A B c D E F G H
Footeay, resin bound  Segregated cycieway, resin bound grave In situ concrete Héa In situ concrete Footway, Structural weathering steel arch
gravel o coloured or coioured asphalt mpact bamier with cadding on back face containment parapetwin  concred = paving
asphak ciadding on back face b

LY
)
\
\
!
Detsill A \
Refer o drawing YCL-KNI-RMT-3P-0R-CE-1003 A
\
\
)
)
\
W X
|
|

i —
Y X >
— s ST o
i-
)
T . i
Section C-C - Cross section T
Scale 1:50 = —]
—
Niote: Riefer 1o drawing YCL-¥NHRM 1-2P-DR-CB-1000 for coss secion location i
—Tr— T T T 1 L
0 25m
PR — S—
KA ‘York Central, Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA
e T ——
= ”
e [ p—
=) Ty T " B - HE i =
- CYC { Homes England / Network Ra East Coast Mainfine Bridge e = = =
Elndge Cross Section OEOAR000 | DEMAD000 | DSO42020
-
[ [ Wo- R e 22 - D6 3 - 0o
i bt Bl e e e Lt
3 O & Hright Archineds

o City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020



East Coast Mainline
Bridge — Bridge
Elevations

I.
\ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

YL Y W

MATICNAL RAILWAY MUSEUM SFUR

EAST COAST MAIN LINE T—

Access door for abutment inspecson

West Elevation A-A
Scale 1:250
Nicte: Fiefer o crawing YCL-KMNFRM1-8P-DR-CE-1000 for sievation location

L
o

s

G¢T obed

ge-—= (U WAV RV B B R

Access door for abutment Inspection

7
East Elevation B-B

Scale 1:250
Nicte: Fiefer o crawing YCL-KMNFRM1-8P-DR-CE-1000 for sievation location

‘fork Central, Phase 1 Infrastructurs RMA

eSS

CYTC ! Homes England / Metwork Ra

B

#s Enown 34
= Eridge Architecture
FEE S4m Sutatie for Stage Apor
== = | == M
- . . P L
East Coast Mainfine Bridge = e = =
Bridge Elevations oenanee | osndcoo | ososmon

YL - KNI - RM1 - P - DR - C3 - @

Fea | g | v | sse | Tee | R | e

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

© Kright Architeds



East Coast Mainline
Bridge — Bridge Details

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

T
Dietad A - Bridge deck edge glass parapet fixing
5

e

Intermediate frame and beam elevation (top)
Edge arch and edge beam elevation (bottom)

Weaifering siesi arch

Weathering steel pisteipost ————————@

Isalator betwesn
giazs and sniniess

Ff——— Stminiess stesl clamp piate

Glass: 31.52mm thi laminate
Comprizing of:

15mm heat soaked foughened pane (outside]
1.52mm SeniryGias Pius nterayer or eguivaient
15mm hest soaked toughanssd pane (nside)

Removabie staniess steel id
10 access glass fiing vold

Solted connecsion

Leweiling mortar
Fiezin bound grave! of coicared azchalt

steel clamp plate 5

Izciator between

giass and black piate

I | S

back piate L

Isciator mm,—/

stainiess steel and
weatherng steel

Stariess stee!
camp plas

Seale 111
Ncte: Riefer 10 drawing YCL-KNFRM1-2P-DR-CE-1001 for detall iocaticn
 — ——— —

5 L

11 1
I

‘Wieathering st=ei edge beam

e

= x
(Ecge beam) (Longiudial beam}
T p— = |
4 {Arch Mid Epan) X5 (Arch End)

Steel profles
Seale 120

Visualisation | Typical deck amangement

x3
{LongRudinal beam)

XE
Bk st}

o¢T abed

*fork Central, Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA

= r\d!muu

As Ehown

132

= Eridge Architecturs

o FE 24 suitie for Stage Al
5 B == = =
=0 Ty T80 B HE MK -
[P [ p—— o= CYC { Homes England | Network Ral East Coast Mainfine Bridge P2 e = =
| S | o = = |- Bridge Details DE4E0O0 | DSO4T000 -
- o oy | | agwe YL = KMl = RM1 = EF = DR = C3 = 100
e e e L
© Knight Architects,

D ret scale

City of York Council

Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020



East Coast Mainline
Bridge — Visual 1

g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

i |
.q,...-mmllllll|ll!l|||||||||||||||||||l|[f'll!ll!'ll|||!llllll!llluu
sHERAER LU LI L uElnhxd‘.):nl.llh"lH’

‘;&;,

| L0 AmAE) 1T 1

bl L PR 4

LCT |abed

¥
5

Tnaie | o e =
MR DR

—
|(/\ York Central, Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA
______
oh k. bz 13 8
e it 5
= —
CYC / Homes England / Network Rai East Coast Mainiine Bridge
Bridge Visualisation

b As Ehown I 134
oos Sridge Arctitecture
T = Suitabie for Stage Approval
- = e =3 =
= = '
PO1 B3 B3 T T

Do 1ot scale

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020



East Coast Mainline
Bridge — Visual 2

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

=

K /\ York Central, Phase 1 infrastructure RMA
Traca e +Cnem s
T
= T
CYC / Homes England / Network Rail East Coast Mainline Bridge
Bridge Visualisation

EL ) K -
L = B = =
25032000 | 25032020 | 26082020 -
g
YL - K - RMT - 8 - DR - CB - 1007
Poms | O | e | et | Tpe | e | e

Do not scale

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

34

© Krigtt Architects



Buildings to be demolished X e \, X\ N [ =

Flani} 0 5o domalEhed,

ﬂﬂ sl foclirdgn (FB) not ls e

i
i
t
:
i
i
g
Y Arspl X ~ G - GomeraliOF - Drawingiv CL-ARE-RM 136D CH-2000

Bulihga structuras be b sutadned

108 Phtwrs Rl Cistributien and Plan

i
i
ili
it |

FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY

‘¢t sbed

Yor Centrl
Reserved Matters Application
Bulkilngs to be Demallshed
— L =
J il Ganaral
=Zd»  ciTY OF e
' P2 n-“ “m: “nn T
ORT4EE | DBDARE | OST4GED
ORK YCL -ARP=-RM1- XX - DR - CX - 021
ot Bl Ml Bl il Mol i

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020 35



Al

Indicative Temporary Car
Parks

CITY OF

YORK L

X T
\“l\‘ iy
“‘I“I‘t‘l““mlml

““\“‘“‘“l\“

T
' T
T

San drilog YELAARF M DU RR 202

T
i
gt

e
iy
Tt

Sam driewfog YEL-ARP UK DRCH- R

Noles:

1, Tnls drawlng Iz provided for llustratlve
purpasas arly,

2, The capaclly of each development plot has
baan

Indleated for [nfermatlan,

3, The tetal number of lemporary car parklng
spaces to be providad will be In accordanca
wlth the candlllans of the Gutllne Plannlng
Permlsslan,

4 Temporary car parklng provislon and
detalls of the proposal far each plat wil be
developed and submitted to dlschange the
relavant OPP condlllon, Thls will Includs
layoud, surface treatmen, llghling and
baundary treatments.

5, Reference should be made the falowlng
drawlngs

Plot G and H - YCL-
ARP-RM1=XX-DR=-CH=2601

Plat F =¥ CLe ARP-RM1=XX-0R-CH=2802
Flot B, C and 0 ¥YCL-
ARP-RM1-XX-DR-CH-2603

Ko
[ Temperary Car Parklog

PN _7n

Exbilng Parnhy

T 1 vt Boursery

A

FOR INFORMATION PURFOSES ONLY

0cT obed

o D
o e o w |
0 o D
[ e w = | m | -
e o | oo | wem | mem
okl e Mt
T ——
T —
e
LCYC Homes Enpland and
MehwnrkBall
T
York Central
=
Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA
Temgorary Car Parks
SR sy ]
" o g
e ]
= 3 = - =
KN ] NE -
L ) o =
OBMRS | 0BUAED | 0B -
¥CL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CH - 2600
[T S Rl Rl Tl Ml

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

=

36



Indicative Soft and hard

Landscaping Areas

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Al

i linesse
S

%

#

A
%, i

L I
3 L ot mc@a—ahufx{n*—m—_‘a&
_l . o0 II II”L

AAFIELD TERRACE th
1 B

NG L TER R e
1

R i YELGPEAM:

SOCORLD-00T

-3 DRLTgeT

T
E 4 _U
L ; y.
Rt 10 VL 8 M1 906 DA LD 0164 st s Y L-HERM-0-D D908
q
0|
Feemarve Matiens Acpheaton
Ecarsany —
*fork Central, Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA
T — Fwme
T Lantsear
—
= = = = =
= T - T w w
N_em:kRal Infrastructure Limitsd HOCATIONFLAN e e e
e e | S of York Gounel YCL -GPB-RMI- XX - DR - LD - 0100
| g | s | L | Tm |n.u |

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

37



Proposed Drainage
Overview

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Rnserved Mattors Rod Line Boundary

101 Arup/CD-

_ARUP_UN_ 201

/ L
— Wl Elstg YWS Sutlace Waler Sewar /&\\ 7 \\ \
9 W Ealeirg YWS Combhed Sewe \\: // N \\n s
o Eabylng YW Sewer 12 be Abandoned / / \\
— Progosed YWS Sewer Dteerdon /(’ // // \\ >
| memams  Prososed Phase 1 P Dradrags Sewer / /™, \\/
Fitkaiive Futirs P Orslisge Sawar 7 4 / > \\ 4
e A A '/\:\ ] -
b Folgats Beck Easement 7/ N \\\ J (/
N olpate Back (Open chamnd) / N X \\;/ N\
Ry
N Ny
s % T
' -- ARUP = -
2 = = e T
b ot i i " Qe Drinage
" > 3 - " - - - - - :I_m—wn—n
& Fhato 1 drhage newth & = Tk 113300 b e at 1 02008 B g4 - ubsshe o Stage Asprow]
oty - O o - -
FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY oo v Py o v i £ == - - ac na -
e CYC, Homes England and Phase 1 Infrastructure RMA K e
bl St jeal e Network Rall Foul Dralnage =
e[| e i o [w = Overview Plan -~
T DEETE YCL -ARP-RM1- XX - DR - CD - 0550
e

| Sroma:Avwamn | Ko | R B ot

EET

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 12th November 2020

e

38



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4a York Central, Leeman Road, York [20/00710/REMM]
	York Central Site Location Plan
	Planning Committee presentation 12 November 2020 REV A


